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DEFINITIONS

In this Circular (other than Appendix II), the following expressions have the following
meanings unless the context requires otherwise:—

“American Appraisal” American Appraisal Hongkong Limited, an independent
professional valuer

“Anglo Chinese” Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited, the
independent financial adviser to the independent board
committee of NWI in relation to the Infrastructure Assets
Acquisition and the Services Assets Acquisition

“associates” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
“Board” board of Directors
“Book Value” the book value of the unaudited consolidated net asset

value of Stalagmite Investments Limited (a company
through which NWI holds its effective interest in the
Wuhan Bridge) as at 30 June, 2002, being approximately
HK$751 million

“Bridge Companies” the CJVs in which NWI holds an indirect interest and
which operate three toll bridges in Guangdong and
Tianjin in the PRC; and Wuhan Bridge Construction
Company Limited, a joint stock company established
under the laws of the PRC, in which NWI holds an
indirect interest

“Chesterton” Chesterton Petty Limited, an independent professional
valuer
“CJv” a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture company

established under the laws of the PRC and CJVs shall
be construed accordingly

“Circular” this circular, including the appendices hereto

“Commerzbank” Commerzbank AG acting through its Hong Kong Branch,
the independent financial adviser to the independent
board committee of PPC in relation to the Infrastructure
Assets Acquisition and the Services Assets Acquisition

“Company” New World Development Company Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange

“Completion” completion of the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition and
the Services Assets Acquisition

“CTFEL” Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and
the controlling shareholder of the Company
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DEFINITIONS

“Director(s)”

“Distribution”

“EIV”

“Enlarged PPC Group”

“Extraordinary General Meeting”

“Group”

“Highway Companies”

“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

“Independent Board Committee”

“Independent Shareholder(s)”

“Infrastructure Assets”

“Infrastructure Assets Acquisition”

the director(s) of the Company

the distribution in specie of the PPC Distribution Shares
to NWI Shareholders in the ratio of approximately 5.87
PPC Distribution Shares to one NWI Share held on the
Record Date (subject to rounding down of fractional
entitlements)

a Sino-foreign equity joint venture company established
under the laws of the PRC and EJVs shall be construed
accordingly

the PPC Group immediately following the Completion

the extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be
held at Room 407, Level 4, Hong Kong Convention and
Exhibition Centre, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
on 12 December, 2002 at 12:00 noon, notice of which is
set out on page 29 of this Circular

the Company together with its subsidiaries

the CJVs in which NWI holds an indirect interest and
which operate a total of 34 toll roads in Guangdong,
Guangxi, Shanxi and Wuhan in the PRC; and Tate’s Cairn
Tunnel Company Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability in which NWI holds
an indirect interest which operates the Tate’s Cairn
Tunnel in Hong Kong

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
PRC

the independent committee of the Board consisting of
Cha Mou-Zing, Victor and Yeung Ping-Leung, Howard

Shareholder(s) other than CTFEL, and its associates

NWI’s effective interests (comprising equity and
shareholder’s loans and advances) in the Operating
Companies which operate toll roads, bridges, tunnels,
water treatment and power plants in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC

the acquisition of all the Infrastructure Assets by PPC
from NWI pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale
Agreement



DEFINITIONS

“Infrastructure Assets the conditions precedent to the completion of the
Acquisition Conditions” Infrastructure Assets Acquisition as set out in both the
NWI Circular and the PPC Circular

“Infrastructure Assets Sale the conditional sale and purchase agreement between
Agreement” NWI and PPC dated 21 October, 2002 relating to the
Infrastructure Assets Acquisition

“Latest Practicable Date” 11 November, 2002, being the latest practicable date
prior to the printing of this Circular for ascertaining
certain information contained herein

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange

“Macau” the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

“Morgan Stanley” Morgan Stanley Dean Witter Asia Limited, an investment
adviser registered under the Securities Ordinance
(Chapter 333 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

“NWCI” New World Infrastructure (China) Investment Limited,
a wholly-foreign owned enterprise established by NWI
under the laws of the PRC

“NWCL” New World China Land Limited, a company incorporated
in Cayman Islands with limited liability and the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

“NWCL Group” NWCL and its subsidiaries

“NWI” New World Infrastructure Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange

“NWI Circular” the circular dated 18 November, 2002 issued by NWI in
respect of the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition, the
Services Assets Acquisition and the Distribution, a copy
of which is reproduced in Appendix II

“NWI Consideration Shares” approximately 853 million new PPC Shares to be issued
at approximately HK$0.9327 per PPC Share on
Completion, as part of the consideration payable by PPC
to NWI for the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition

“NWI Group” NWI and its subsidiaries

“NWI Share(s)” the share(s) of HK$1.00 each in the issued share capital
of NWI

“NWI Shareholder(s)” the holder(s) of NWI Shares
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“NWS” New World Services Limited, a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and which
is approximately 52.35%-owned by the Company

“NWS Consideration Shares” approximately 11,701 million new PPC Shares to be
issued at approximately HK$0.9327 per PPC Share as
the consideration payable by PPC to the NWS
Shareholders for the Services Assets Acquisition

“NWS Group” NWS, its subsidiaries and its interests in associated
companies

“NWS Share(s)” the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital
of NWS

“NWS Shareholder(s)” the holder(s) of NWS Shares

“Operating Companies” the Highway Companies, the Bridge Companies, the

Power Companies, the Water Companies and the Tangjin
Highway Companies

“Ports Business” the investment in, and the development, operation and
management of, terminals in seaports and riverports and
related businesses in Hong Kong and various parts in
the PRC

“Power Companies” the CJVs and EJVs in which NWI holds an indirect
interest and which operate four power plants in
Guangdong and Sichuan in the PRC and one power plant
in Macau

“PPC” Pacific Ports Company Limited, a company incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange

“PPC Circular” the circular dated 18 November, 2002 issued by PPC in
respect of the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition and the
Services Assets Acquisition, a copy of which is
reproduced in Appendix VII of the NWI Circular

“PPC Distribution Shares” being approximately 5,592 million PPC Shares
comprising the 1,544,976,000 existing PPC Shares held
by NWI, approximately 853 million NWI Consideration
Shares and the 3,193,654,306 PPC Shares to be issued
and allotted upon conversion in full of the Preference

Shares

“PPC Group” PPC and its subsidiaries

“PPC Share(s)” the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital
of PPC
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“PRC”

“Preference Shares”

“Record Date”

“Reorganisation”

“Rothschild”

“Sallmanns”

“SDI Ordinance”

“Services Assets”

’

“Services Assets Acquisition’

“Services Assets Acquisition
Conditions”

“Services Assets Sale
Agreement”

the People’s Republic of China (and except where the
context requires, references in this Circular to the PRC
do not apply to Hong Kong, Macau or Taiwan)

3,193,654,306 4% cumulative convertible redeemable
preference shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share
capital of PPC held by Seashore Development Limited,
representing approximately 155.03% of the issued
ordinary share capital of PPC as at the Latest Practicable
Date, which can be converted into 3,193,654,306 PPC
Shares at the option of Seashore Development Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWI

9 January, 2003 (or such other date as the board of
directors of NWI or a committee thereof may decide),
being the date by reference to which entitlements of
NWI Shareholders to the PPC Distribution Shares under
the Distribution are to be determined

the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition, the Services Assets
Acquisition and the Distribution

N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, an
investment adviser registered under the Securities
Ordinance (Chapter 333 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the independent financial adviser to the Independent
Board Committee in respect of the Reorganisation

Sallmanns (Far East) Limited, an independent
professional valuer

Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (Chapter
396 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

the businesses of the NWS Group prior to Completion
which comprise facilities, contracting, transport, financial
and environmental services

the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of NWS
by PPC from the NWS Shareholders pursuant to the
Services Assets Sale Agreement

the conditions precedent to the completion of the
Services Assets Acquisition as set out in both the NWI
Circular and the PPC Circular

the conditional sale and purchase agreement between
the Company, PPC and NWS Shareholders dated 21
October, 2002 relating to the Services Assets Acquisition



DEFINITIONS

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”
“Stock Exchange”

“Tangjin Highway Companies”

“TMT Assets”

“Water Companies”

“Wuhan Bridge”

the share(s) of HK$1.00 each in the issued share capital
of the Company

holder(s) of the Shares
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the 14 CJVs which are owned as to 60% by NWCI and
which operate the Tangjin Expressway (Tianjin North
section) in Tianjin in the PRC

the telecommunications, media and technology
businesses owned by NWI

the companies in which NWI holds an indirect interest
and which principally operate one water treatment plant
in Macau and 15 water treatment plants and one micro-
filtration equipment company in the PRC

Yangtze River Bridge No. 2, a bridge in Wuhan held by
Wuhan Bridge Construction Company Limited, one of
the Bridge Companies which forms part of the
Infrastructure Assets and which has ceased toll collection
as required by the Wuhan government with effect from
1 October, 2002
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18 November, 2002
To the Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

DISCLOSEABLE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
REORGANISATION OF NEW WORLD INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED,
PACIFIC PORTS COMPANY LIMITED
AND NEW WORLD SERVICES LIMITED
involving the acquisition of the Infrastructure Assets
and New World Services Limited by Pacific Ports Company Limited

1. INTRODUCTION

On 21 October, 2002, the Board together with the board of directors of NWI and the board
of directors of PPC jointly announced that a reorganisation of certain principal subsidiaries of the
Group. The Reorganisation comprises:

. the acquisition of the Infrastructure Assets by PPC from NWI for an aggregate
consideration (comprising cash, the NWI Consideration Shares and an undertaking by
PPC to pay certain liabilities of NWI) of approximately HK$10,227 million;
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. the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of NWS by PPC from the Company
and other NWS Shareholders for a total consideration of approximately HK$10,913
million which is to be satisfied by the issue of the NWS Consideration Shares; and

. a distribution of all PPC Distribution Shares held and to be held by NWI to its
shareholders in the ratio of approximately 5.87 PPC Distribution Shares to one NWI
Share.

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, subject to satisfaction or waiver of the
Infrastructure Assets Acquisition Conditions, NWI will sell, and PPC will purchase, the Infrastructure
Assets. The aggregate consideration amounts to approximately HK$10,227 million and will be
satisfied by (i) the payment of approximately HK$8,545 million in cash by PPC to NWI; (ii) the
issuance of the NWI Consideration Shares by PPC to NWI or its nominee and (iii) the undertaking
by PPC to pay certain liabilities of NWI in the aggregate amount of approximately HK$886
million.

The aggregate consideration payable by PPC to NWI pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets
Acquisition amounts to approximately HK$10,227 million and has been determined on the basis of
arm’s length negotiations (with reference to an independent valuation of the Infrastructure Assets
prepared by Sallmanns, valuing the Infrastructure Assets at approximately HK$10,160 million as
at 30 June, 2002 which, after adjusting for certain corporate expenses and the Book Value, is
equivalent to approximately HK$10,227 million).

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and subject to the approval of the
independent shareholders of NWI, the Company, NWI and CTFEL will, on Completion, execute a
termination agreement pursuant to which the Company and CTFEL will be released from the non-
compete agreement entered into by them on 17 September, 1995 (as amended by a supplemental
non-compete agreement dated 22 December, 1997) whereby each the Company and CTFEL
undertook, among other things, that it will not and will procure that its subsidiaries will not
directly or indirectly participate in, hold any right or interest in or otherwise be involved in any
infrastructure projects involving the development, construction, ownership, operation and/or
management of airports, container terminals, cargo handling and storage facilities, toll roads,
expressways, bridges, tunnels, power stations and water treatment plants in the PRC, Hong Kong
or Macau.

Pursuant to the Services Assets Sale Agreement, subject to satisfaction or waiver of the
Services Assets Acquisition Conditions, the Company and all the other NWS Shareholders (including
CTFEL) will sell, and PPC will purchase, the entire issued share capital of NWS. The aggregate
consideration amounts to approximately HK$10,913 million and will be satisfied by the issuance
of the NWS Consideration Shares to the Company and all the other NWS Shareholders at a share
exchange ratio of approximately 8.84 PPC Shares to one NWS Share.

The consideration payable by PPC to NWS Shareholders pursuant to the Services Assets
Acquisition amounts to approximately HK$10,913 million and has been determined on the basis of
arm’s length negotiations (with reference to an independent valuation of the NWS Group prepared
by American Appraisal, valuing the NWS Group at HK$11,003 million as at 30 June, 2002 which,
after adjusting for the amount of cash dividends of approximately HK$89.61 million elected by the
NWS Shareholders, is equivalent to approximately HK$10,913 million). The valuation of the
operating subsidiaries of the NWS Group has been determined based on the discounted cash flow
method.

It is also a term of the Services Assets Sale Agreement that, at Completion, the Company
and PPC will enter into a deed of non-compete and engagement undertakings pursuant to which

8
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the Company will undertake to PPC that within the period of 15 years from the date of Completion,
the Company will not and will procure that its subsidiaries (other than members of the NWI
Group, PPC Group and NWCL Group) will not, other than pursuant to certain exceptions, directly
or indirectly, participate in, hold any right or interest in any business in the nature of:

. any of the services comprised in the Services Assets anywhere within Asia; or
. any of the projects comprised in the Infrastructure Assets anywhere in the world.

Pursuant to the deed of non-compete and engagement undertakings, the Group will be
allowed to engage in (including but not limited to) the following businesses:

. the carrying on by the Group of any business (not being part of the business of the
NWS Group or the business of the NWI Group relating to the Infrastructure Assets as
carried on by them as at 21 October, 2002) which as at 21 October, 2002, the Group
was carrying on;

. the investment of any member of the Group in any company listed on the Stock
Exchange or any recognised stock exchange (regardless of the business of the investee
company), provided that the Group’s interest in such listed company does not exceed
15% of the entire issued share capital of such listed company;

. in relation to facility management and ancillary related businesses comprised in the
Service Assets, the operation or ownership of an interest by any member of the Group
in the convention business of any hotel or leisure properties or hospitality business
(but excluding any business whose annual revenue from convention activities exceeds
15% of the total annual revenue of such business) in which the Group has an interest,
regardless of the extent of such interest;

. in relation to the business of facility management and property management comprised
in the Services Assets, the provision by the Group of facility and property management
services in establishments such as department stores, super/hypermarkets, hotels,
entertainment, leisure, medical, recreational and other special purpose facilities,
telecommunications, broadcasting facilities or properties;

. the provision by any member of the Group of construction and/or construction project
management services in respect of development projects owned by the Group;

. the provision of services on normal commercial and arm’s length terms by any member
of the Group to the PPC Group in relation to the Infrastructure Assets pursuant to a
decision by the independent directors of PPC allowing the provision of such services;

and

. the business presently carried on or proposed to be carried on by New World Liberty
China Ventures Limited (a joint venture, 50%-owned by the Company) or its
subsidiaries.

In addition, the Company will, pursuant to the deed of non-compete and engagement
undertakings (subject to certain qualifications), undertake to PPC, in relation to all requirements in
Hong Kong of the Group for the provision of any services comprised in the Services Assets, to
engage the PPC Group for the provision of such services for a period of 15 years from the date of
Completion.
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Pursuant to the non-compete and engagement undertakings, the Company shall not be obliged
to engage the Enlarged PPC Group for provision of any services comprised in the Services Assets
if: (i) the businesses and projects for which such services are required are not wholly-owned by the
Company, or if the Company does not have the right to select providers of such services for the
relevant businesses and projects; (ii) the compliance with the terms of such undertakings are
contrary to the terms of contracts governing the relevant business or projects or any applicable
law, regulations or administrative directives promulgated by competent authorities; or (iii) the
Enlarged PPC Group does not have the necessary qualification to provide the services required.

The engagement undertakings shall lapse if the Company ceases to be the controlling
shareholder of PPC.

Under the Services Assets Sale Agreement, each of the NWS shareholders has also given an
undertaking to PPC not to sell, encumber or otherwise dispose of any of the NWS Consideration
Shares allotted to it (including those NWS Consideration Shares to be allotted to the Group)
within the period of six months following completion of the Services Assets Acquisition, except
with the prior consent of PPC or for disposal of any of the NWS Consideration Shares to the
Company or its nominee.

Upon Completion and subject to the approval of the NWI Shareholders at a general meeting,
NWI will make a distribution in specie of all the PPC Shares held by it to the NWI Shareholders.
The Distribution will be made to the NWI Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of NWI on the Record Date in the proportion of 5.87 PPC Shares for every one NWI
Share held on the Record Date.

Following the completion of the Reorganisation, the Company will remain the controlling
shareholder of NWI and PPC with an interest of approximately 54.25% in NWI and approximately
52.00% in PPC.

The Infrastructure Assets Acquisition constitutes a discloseable and connected transaction
for the Company under the Listing Rules. CTFEL is one of the NWS Shareholders selling NWS
Shares to PPC under the Services Assets Sale Agreement. The Services Assets Acquisition also
constitutes a discloseable and connected transaction for the Company. In view of the interest of
CTFEL and its associates in the Reorganisation, the Independent Board Committee has been
established to advise the Independent Shareholders in relation to the Reorganisation. Rothschild
has been appointed as the independent financial adviser to the Independent Board Committee in
respect of the Reorganisation.

The purpose of this Circular is to provide the Shareholders with further information relating
to the Reorganisation, to set out the letter of advice from Rothschild to the Independent Board
Committee and the recommendation and opinion of the Independent Board Committee as advised
by Rothschild in respect of the Reorganisation, and to give notice to the Shareholders of the
Extraordinary General Meeting at which an ordinary resolution will be proposed to approve the
Reorganisation.

2. INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in property development, property investments, hotel and
infrastructure investments, services and telecommunications and technology businesses, primarily
in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Company is the ultimate holding company of the NWI Group, the
PPC Group and the NWS Group.
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3. REASONS FOR, AND BENEFITS OF, THE REORGANISATION

The Board believes that the Reorganisation will be highly beneficial to the Group and the
Shareholders. It will transform NWI, PPC, and is intended to give each of NWI and PPC a capital
structure that matches with their respective business profile and risks and to allow each of them to
pursue a clear business and growth strategy.

The Reorganisation will unlock the potential value of NWS, NWI and PPC, and enable the
Company and its other principal subsidiaries to focus on their primary businesses and create a
more streamlined and focused organisational structure.

. Better utilisation of the Group’s assets to reduce its debts. Upon completion of the
Reorganisation, the NWS Group, which has been contributing stable cashflow to the
Group as a non-wholly owned subsidiary, will become wholly-owned by the Enlarged
PPC Group. Accordingly, its entire free cashflow can then be utilised for reducing the
debts within the Enlarged PPC Group as appropriate, as well as for funding operations.
The PPC Board aims, on the basis of the prospective improvement in cash flow, to
reduce the Enlarged PPC Group’s debt by approximately HK$5 billion over the next
three years. The majority of the reduction is expected to be achieved through the use
of internal resources, including cash flow from operations, and to a comparatively
lesser extent, sale of selective non-core assets and repatriation of project-level
investment capital. This would, in turn, have the effect of reducing the Group’s
consolidated gearing ratio. With an enhanced credit profile and rating for the Enlarged
PPC Group, the overall borrowing costs of the Group could be reduced. In addition,
NWTI’s net gearing ratio (being the ratio of net debt to equity) is expected to fall
below 15% immediately after the Reorganisation (as compared to approximately
72.23% as at 30 June, 2002), on the basis of the pro forma financial information set
out in Appendix II of the NWI Circular. NWI’s capital structure, following the
Reorganisation, will be more appropriate for its technology business.

. Streamlines the Group’s organisation structure. The Reorganisation will streamline
the Group’s organisation structure — with NWI Group focusing on telecommunications,
media and technology businesses in the PRC and the United States of America and
the Enlarged PPC Group on infrastructure, ports development and services businesses.

. Creates greater business focus. With the re-alignment of assets and businesses, the
respective management of the Company, NWI Group and the Enlarged PPC Group
will be able to adopt and pursue clearer and more focused business strategies.

. Unlocks potential of subsidiaries. The Board believes that the Reorganisation will
unlock the potential of certain subsidiaries of the Company. With the independent
valuations carried out in respect of the Infrastructure Assets, the NWS Group and the
PPC Group, shareholders and other investors will be in a better position to assess the
value of the companies and their performance against others in the same sectors. The
combination of the independent valuations, re-alignment of assets and liabilities,
greater liquidity in PPC Shares and a stronger credit rating for PPC and stronger
credit profile for NWI will enable the fair value of NWI Shares and PPC Shares to be
better reflected in the market.

Benefits to the NWI Group and the PPC Group are set out in the respective circulars to the

NWI Shareholders and the shareholders of PPC as set out in the NWI Circular and the PPC
Circular (reproduced in Appendix VII of the NWI Circular) respectively.
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4. CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
The corporate structures before and after the Reorganisation are as follows:—

(a) Before the Reorganisation

the Company™

54.25%' 52.35%
NWI* NWS
Infrastructure Assets Services Assets
TMT Assets
75.00%
PPC *
Ports Business

Note 1: As at the Latest Practicable Date, in addition to approximately 54.25%, the Company also had an indirect
interest of approximately 0.35% in NWI held by Financial Concepts Investment Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWS.

(b)  After the Reorganisation

the Company™

54.25% 52.00%
NWI* PPC *
TMT Assets Ports Business

Infrastructure Assets

100%

2

NWS”

Services Assets

Note 2: As at the Latest Practicable Date, NWS held an interest of approximately 0.35% in NWI through a
wholly-owned subsidiary. Following completion of the Reorganisation, PPC (through that wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWS) will hold an interest of approximately 0.35% in NWI and (as a result of the Distribution)
NWS will hold an interest of approximately 0.11% in PPC.

* Listed on the Stock Exchange
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5. EFFECTS OF THE REORGANISATION ON THE GROUP’S NET TANGIBLE ASSETS
AND EARNINGS

As the Reorganisation is a transfer of assets and liabilities between non wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company and the attributable interest of the Company in NWI, PPC and NWS
will not change materially as a result of the Reorganisation, the Reorganisation will not have any
significant impact on the financial position of the Group.

6. EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Set out on page 29 of this Circular is a notice convening the Extraordinary General Meeting,
which is to be held at Room 407, Level 4, Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 12 December, 2002 at 12:00 noon. The Extraordinary
General Meeting will be held for the purpose of proposing the ordinary resolution to consider and,
if thought fit, approving the transactions contemplated by the Reorganisation. CTFEL, (which, as
at the Latest Practicable Date, beneficially owned 831,206,530 Shares, representing approximately
38.37% of the issued share capital of the Company) and its associates will abstain from voting in
respect of the ordinary resolution because of its interests in the Reorganisation.

A form of proxy for use at the Extraordinary General Meeting is enclosed. Whether or not
you are able to attend the Extraordinary General Meeting in person, you are requested to complete
and return the form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon to the registered
office of the Company at 30th Floor, New World Tower, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong as
soon as possible and in any event not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
meeting. Completion and return of the form of proxy shall not preclude you from attending and
voting at the meeting or any adjourned meeting should you so wish.

7. RECOMMENDATION

The Independent Board Committee, being independent of the parties to the Reorganisation,
is required under the Listing Rules to advise the Independent Shareholders in relation to the terms
of the Reorganisation. Rothschild has been appointed as the independent financial adviser to the
Independent Board Committee in this regard. Accordingly, your attention is drawn to the letter
from the Independent Board Committee set out on page 15 of this Circular, which contains its
recommendation to the Independent Shareholders in relation to the Reorganisation, and the letter
from Rothschild set out on pages 16 to 28 of this Circular, which contains its advice to the
Independent Board Committee in relation to the Reorganisation.

8. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the Appendices to this
Circular, in particular Appendix II which contains (i) the NWI Circular setting out in details of the
Infrastructure Assets Acquisition and the Distribution and (ii) the PPC Circular (reproduced in
Appendix VII of the NWI Circular) setting out in details of the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition
and the Services Assets Acquisition, which are deemed to form part of this Circular.
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The summary letters on valuation of the Infrastructure Assets, the NWS Group and the PPC
Group prepared by Sallmanns, American Appraisal and Chesterton respectively are contained in
both the NWI Circular and the PPC Circular (reproduced in Appendix VII of the NWI Circular).

The letter of advice prepared by Anglo Chinese and Commerzbank are contained in NWI
Circular and PPC Circular (reproduced in Appendix VII of the NWI Circular) respectively.

The accountants’ reports prepared by PricewaterhouseCoopers are contained in Appendix I
of the PPC Circular (reproduced in Appendix VII of the NWI Circular)

Yours faithfully,
By order of the Board
New World Development Company Limited
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Managing Director
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LETTER FROM THE INDEPENDENT BOARD COMMITTEE

R RARL D

New World Development Company Limited

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Members of the Independent Board Committee: Registered Office:

Mr. Cha Mou-Zing, Victor 30th Floor

Mr. Yeung Ping-Leung, Howard New World Tower
18 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

18 November, 2002
To the Independent Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

DISCLOSEABLE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
REORGANISATION OF NEW WORLD INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED,
PACIFIC PORTS COMPANY LIMITED
AND NEW WORLD SERVICES LIMITED
involving the acquisition of the Infrastructure Assets
and New World Services Limited by Pacific Ports Company Limited

We refer to the Circular of which this letter forms part. Terms defined in the Circular shall
have the same meanings when used herein unless the context otherwise requires.

Since both the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition and the Services Assets Acquisition constitute
discloseable and connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules, the Independent
Board Committee has been formed to advise the Independent Shareholders as to whether, in our
opinion, the terms of the Reorganisation are fair and reasonable so far as the Independent
Shareholders are concerned. Rothschild has been appointed as the independent financial adviser to
the Independent Board Committee in respect of the Reorganisation.

We wish to draw your attention to the “Letter from Rothschild” as set out on pages 16 to 28
of the Circular. We have considered the terms and conditions of the Reorganisation, the advice of
Rothschild and the other principal factors contained in the “Letter from the Board” as set out on
pages 7 to 14 of the Circular. In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the Reorganisation are
fair and reasonable so far as the Independent Shareholders are concerned. Accordingly, we
recommend the Independent Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary resolution in respect of
the Reorganisation to be proposed at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

Yours faithfully,
The Independent Board Committee
Mr. Cha Mou-Zing, Victor
Mr. Yeung Ping-Leung, Howard

Independent non-executive Directors of
New World Development Company Limited
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LETTER FROM ROTHSCHILD

The following is the text of advice to the Independent Board Committee received from
Rothschild for the purpose of incorporation into this Circular.

Bl ROTHSCHILD

18 November, 2002

To the Independent Board Committee of
New World Development Company Limited
30th Floor

New World Tower

18 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

DISCLOSEABLE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
REORGANISATION OF NEW WORLD INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED,
PACIFIC PORTS COMPANY LIMITED AND NEW WORLD SERVICES LIMITED
involving the acquisition of the Infrastructure Assets
and New World Services Limited by Pacific Ports Company Limited

We refer to the Reorganisation which involves the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition, the
Services Assets Acquisition and the Distribution, details of each of which are contained in the
Circular of which this letter forms part. Rothschild has been appointed as the independent financial
adviser to advise the Independent Board Committee as to whether or not the terms of the
Reorganisation are fair and reasonable so far as the Independent Shareholders are concerned.

The terms used in this letter shall have the same meanings as defined elsewhere in the
Circular unless the context otherwise requires.

Both the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition and the Services Assets Acquisition constitute
discloseable and connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the Reorganisation requires the approval by the Independent Shareholders at the Extraordinary
General Meeting. CTFEL, which owned approximately 38.37% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Latest Practicable Date, is also a party to the Services Assets Sale Agreement
and, accordingly, CTFEL together with its associates will abstain from voting in respect of the
Reorganisation at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

In formulating our recommendation, we have relied on the information and facts supplied to
us by the Group and have assumed that any representations made to us are true, accurate and
complete in all material respects as at the date hereof and that they may be relied upon. We have
also assumed that all information, representations and opinions contained or referred to in the
Circular, including the valuations conducted by the independent valuers (and information and
representations made to such independent valuers are true and accurate in all respect), are fair and
reasonable and have relied on them.

N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited Telephone: (852) 2525-5333
16th Floor, Alexandra House Fax: (852) 2868-1728
16-20 Chater Road, Central (852) 2810-6997

Hong Kong SAR
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We have been advised by the Directors that no material facts have been omitted and we are
not aware of any facts or circumstances which would render the information provided and the
representations made to us untrue, inaccurate or misleading. We have no reason to doubt the truth,
accuracy and completeness of the information and representations provided to us by the Directors.
The Directors have collectively and individually accepted full responsibility for the accuracy of
the information contained in the Circular and have confirmed, having made all reasonable enquiries,
that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no material facts the omission of which
would make any statement in the Circular misleading. We consider that we have reviewed sufficient
information to reach an informed view in order to provide a reasonable basis for our advice. We
have not, however, conducted any independent in-depth investigation into the business and affairs
of the Company, NWI, PPC, NWS or any of their respective subsidiaries.

PRINCIPAL FACTORS AND REASONS FOR THE REORGANISATION

In arriving at our opinion, we have taken into consideration the following principal factors
and reasons for the Reorganisation:

1. Background and rationale

The Group is one of the blue-chip conglomerates in Hong Kong and is principally engaged
in property development, property investments, hotel and infrastructure investments, services and
telecommunications and technology businesses, primarily in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Company
is the ultimate holding company of:

1) NWI, which is currently owned as to approximately 54.25% by the Company (and in
addition to this interest, the Company also has an indirect interest of approximately
0.35% in NWI held by the NWS Group). The NWI Group is principally engaged in
the traditional infrastructure businesses such as the investment in and development,
operation and/or management of toll roads, expressways, bridges and tunnels, water
treatment and power businesses, container terminals, cargo handling and storage
businesses as well as some non-traditional infrastructure businesses such as
telecommunications, media and technology, mobile communications and data
transmission businesses;

ii) PPC, which is being owned as to approximately 75.00% by NWI (or approximately
90.20% if the Preference Shares are fully converted into PPC Shares), and is principally
engaged in the investment in and development, operation and/or management of
terminals in seaports and riverports and related businesses; and

iii)  NWS, which is currently owned as to approximately 52.35% by the Company, and is
principally engaged in a diversified range of services businesses including facilities,
contracting, transport, financial and environmental services businesses.

The respective directors of the Company, NWI and PPC consider that the Reorganisation
will be highly beneficial to the Company, NWI and PPC and their respective shareholders as it
would give NWI and PPC the capital structures that match their respective business profiles and
risks, and would allow each of them to pursue a clear business and growth strategy upon completion
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of the Reorganisation. For the Group as a whole, the benefits would mainly be derived from the
achievement of a more streamlined and focused organisation structure, with better alignment and
utilisation of assets and liabilities, as well as through the expected enhancement in values of NWI,
PPC and NWS as a result of the Reorganisation.

In particular, the respective directors of the Company and NWI are of the view that NWI
has been substantially undervalued by the market in the past given its high level of gearing and
unclear business and growth strategy because of the mixture of its businesses. They believe that
the Reorganisation would significantly enhance the NWI Group’s operational and capital structure
and unlock the hidden value of its assets, particularly its traditional infrastructure projects and its
interests in PPC. In addition, upon completion of the Reorganisation, the gearing level of the NWI
Group would reduce substantially which would give NWI a much more suitable capital structure
for its businesses. The NWI Group, upon completion of the Reorganisation, would own and focus
on non-traditional infrastructure businesses including mobile communications, data transmission
and internet operations in the PRC and the United States of America, and become a pure
telecommunications, media and technology company with a clear business strategy and appropriate
capital structure which would enable the NWI Group to capitalise on the potential upside of the
technology businesses. Further details of the other expected benefits to the NWI Group as a result
of the Reorganisation are set out in the section headed “Reasons for, and benefits of, the
Reorganisation” in the NWI Circular.

With respect to PPC, the Reorganisation would allow it to pursue a clear business and
growth strategy in the infrastructure, ports and services businesses. Its assets and scope of business
would be broadened significantly upon completion of the Reorganisation. The Enlarged PPC Group
would become a diversified group with a number of significant businesses which could principally
be classified as toll roads and bridges, power generation, water treatment, port, facilities, contracting,
transport, financial and environmental services. It would also expand its geographical scope in the
PRC where the respective directors of the Company and PPC believe that the Enlarged PPC Group
would be able to leverage on the expanded scope of business and geographical presence to capture
further growth opportunities including those arising from the PRC’s accession to the World Trade
Organisation.

The size of the Enlarged PPC Group would also increase substantially. For instance, the pro
forma combined turnover of the Enlarged PPC Group for the year ended 30 June, 2002 would be
approximately HK$12,409 million (further details of which are set out in Appendix III to the PPC
Circular), representing approximately 99 times the audited turnover of the PPC Group for the same
period. The pro forma combined total assets of the Enlarged PPC Group as at 30 June, 2002 would
be approximately HK$37,196 million (further details of which are set out in Appendix III to the
PPC Circular), representing a multiple of approximately 10 times the audited total asset value of
the PPC Group as at 30 June, 2002. The respective directors of the Company and PPC believe that
the Enlarged PPC Group would become one of the leading infrastructure, port development and
services companies in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. In addition, the respective directors of the
Company and PPC are confident that the stable cashflow from operations of the Enlarged PPC
Group, and to a comparatively lesser extent, the sale of selective non-core assets and the repatriation
of project-level investment capital could comfortably service and reduce the Enlarged PPC Group’s
debts (which would have been incurred or assumed by PPC as a result of the Reorganisation) in
the medium term, as well as to capture further growth opportunities for the Enlarged PPC Group.
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Furthermore, the number of PPC Shares held by the public would increase substantially
upon completion of the Reorganisation. The respective directors of the Company and PPC are of
the view that this would provide a more liquid market for the PPC shareholders and thus potentially
attract more investors. Further details of the other expected benefits to the PPC Group as a result
of the Reorganisation are set out in the sections headed “3 Reasons for, and benefits of, the
Reorganisation” and “10 Information on the PPC Group and the Enlarged PPC Group” in the
“Letter from the PPC Board” of the PPC Circular.

For the Group as a whole, the key benefits of the Reorganisation would mainly be derived
from a more streamlined and focused organisation structure and the expected enhancement in
values of NWI, PPC and NWS as discussed above. With an enhanced credit profile and rating for
PPC, the Directors believe that the overall borrowing costs of the Group could be reduced and at
the same time provide additional cashflow to the Group for repayment of its debts. Furthermore,
the NWS Group, which has been contributing stable cashflow to the Group in the past as a non-
wholly owned subsidiary, would become 100% owned by PPC upon completion of the
Reorganisation and, accordingly, its entire free cashflow could then be used to reduce the debts
assumed or incurred by PPC as a result of this exercise. The Directors are of the view that all the
above factors would facilitate the Group in reducing its debts more rapidly in the medium term.

2. The Infrastructure Assets Acquisition
i) Assets to be disposed of or transferred and liabilities to be undertaken by PPC

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, the NWI Group has conditionally
agreed to sell, and PPC has conditionally agreed to purchase, the entire issued share capital
of the Sale Companies (as defined in the NWI Circular). In addition, NWI will enter into
the Deed of Trust (as defined in the NWI Circular) in respect of the transfer of the rights
and benefits, liabilities and obligations accruing to NWI (from the date of Completion) in
respect of its interest in the Tangjin Highway Companies, including the Tangjin Loans (as
defined in the NWI Circular), to PPC. Pursuant to the Deed of Trust, PPC will also undertake
to repay the principal and interest outstanding under the BOC Loan (as defined in the NWI
Circular) from time to time as they fall due. Furthermore, the NWI Group will assign to
PPC the outstanding shareholder’s loans owing by the Sale Group Companies (as defined in
the NWI Circular) to the NWI Group at their respective face values as at 30 June, 2002 and
PPC will also assume the liabilities of the NWI Notes (as defined in the NWI Circular) at
their respective face values as at 30 June, 2002. Further details of the terms of the
Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement are set out in the “Letter from the NWI Board” in the
NWI Circular.

The Infrastructure Assets comprise all of NWI’s effective interests in the Highway
Companies, the Tangjin Highway Companies, the Bridge Companies, the Power Companies
and the Water Companies, further details of which are set out in the subsection headed
“Information on the Infrastructure Assets” in the “Letter from the NWI Board” of the NWI
Circular. The aggregate amount of the audited pro forma combined net tangible assets of the
Infrastructure Assets together with the Shareholder’s Loans (as defined in the NWI Circular)
and the Tangjin Loans due to the NWI Group as at 30 June, 2002 was approximately
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HK$9,024 million and the audited pro forma combined profit available for appropriation for
the Infrastructure Assets for the year ended 30 June, 2002 was approximately HK$644
million.

ii) Consideration

The aggregate consideration for the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition is approximately
HK$10,227 million and will be satisfied as to HK$8,545 million by cash, approximately
HK$796 million by the issuance of the NWI Consideration Shares by PPC at the issue price
of approximately HK$0.9327 per NWI Consideration Share and the remaining amount of
approximately HK$886 million by the assumption of the liabilities of NWI by PPC. The
consideration for the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the parties involved and with reference to the independent valuation of
the fair value of the Infrastructure Assets prepared by Sallmanns, an independent professional
valuer, further details of which are set out in Appendix IV to the PPC Circular, and adjusted
for the corporate expenses shared by the Infrastructure Assets and the value of NWI’s
interest in the Wuhan Bridge which forms part of the Infrastructure Assets.

The consideration of approximately HK$10,227 million represents an implied enterprise
value (“EV”, defined as the equity value plus its external borrowings less bank balances and
cash, which in this case is equivalent to the aggregate consideration) / Adjusted EBITDA (as
defined in the NWI Circular) multiple of approximately 9.6 times for the Infrastructure
Assets, which was computed based on the financial information of the Infrastructure Assets
for the year ended 30 June, 2002. It also represents approximately 1.1 times the audited pro
forma combined net tangible assets of the Infrastructure Assets together with the Shareholder’s
Loans and the Tangjin Loans as at 30 June, 2002.

In assessing the reasonableness of the consideration, which was based on the
independent valuation, we have reviewed the trading multiples of toll roads, energy and
water companies listed in Hong Kong which are considered to be comparable to the principal
businesses comprised in the Infrastructure Assets. The EV/Adjusted EBITDA and price to
book multiples have been used in our comparison in this section as they are commonly used
valuation indicators for infrastructure companies. In addition, the EV/Adjusted EBITDA
multiple has taken into consideration the differences in accounting treatments for depreciation
and amortisation expenses and the tax effects, the differences in the capital structure as well
as the capital intensive nature of infrastructure companies whereas other usual financial
ratios such as price earnings multiple, which have not been used in our analysis, would not
take into consideration of these factors.
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From our review of the comparable companies, we have identified and considered
that Cheung Kong Infrastructure Limited (“CKI”), which is also listed on the Stock Exchange,
to be the most comparable to the Infrastructure Assets. The summary of the relevant historical
trading multiples of CKI as at the Latest Practicable Date is set out below:

EV / Adjusted Price to

EBITDA multiple book ratio

(times) (times)

CKI 6.9 1.2

In addition, we have summarised below the relevant trading multiples of the other
comparable companies listed in Hong Kong (which have been used in our analysis) as at the
Latest Practicable Date:

Average
EV/Adjusted Average price
EBITDA multiple to book ratio

(times) (times)
Toll roads and expressways 8.8 1.1
Energy and water 54 1.6
Weighted average' 7.5 1.3

Note 1: The weighted average figures were computed by weighting the trading multiples of the comparable
companies according to the respective contributions to the Adjusted EBITDA of the Infrastructure
Assets by their respective principal business segments

From the above analysis and taking into consideration of both the EV/Adjusted
EBITDA and the price to book multiples, we noted that the implied acquisition multiples
calculated based on the consideration under the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement are in
line with the trading multiples of the comparable companies of the Infrastructure Assets.

The Services Assets Acquisition
i) Assets to be acquired

Pursuant to the Services Assets Sale Agreement, all shareholders of NWS, including
the Company (which effectively owns approximately 52.35% of the issued share capital of
NWS), have conditionally agreed to sell, and PPC has conditionally agreed to purchase, the
entire issued share capital of NWS. Following completion of the Reorganisation, NWS will
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPC. Further details of the terms of the Services
Assets Sale Agreement are set out in the section headed “5 Services Assets Sale Agreement”
in the “Letter from the PPC Board” of the PPC Circular.

21



LETTER FROM ROTHSCHILD

Bl

The NWS Group’s businesses are organised into five major operating divisions, namely
facilities, contracting, transport, financial and environmental services. The audited
consolidated net tangible assets of the NWS Group as at 30 June, 2002 was approximately
HK$4,525 million and the audited consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the
NWS Group for the year ended 30 June, 2002 was approximately HK$849 million.

ii) Consideration

The aggregate consideration for the Services Assets Acquisition is approximately
HK$10,913 million which will be satisfied by the issuance of the NWS Consideration
Shares by PPC at the issue price of approximately HK$0.9327 per NWS Consideration
Share. The consideration for the Services Assets Acquisition was determined after arm’s
length negotiations between the parties involved and with reference to the independent
valuation of the fair value of the NWS Group prepared by American Appraisal, an independent
professional valuer, further details of which are set out in Appendix V to the PPC Circular,
and adjusted for the amount of cash dividends of approximately HK$90 million elected by
the NWS Shareholders, further details of the valuation and adjustments are set out in the
section headed “5 Services Assets Sale Agreement” in the “Letter from the PPC Board” of
the PPC Circular.

The consideration of approximately HK$10,913 million represents an implied EV/
Adjusted EBITDA multiple of approximately 6.9 times for the year ended 30 June, 2002. It
also represents approximately 12.9 times the net profit attributable to the NWS Shareholders
for the same year.

We are not aware of any other company listed on the Stock Exchange which has a
similar combination of businesses and activities as those of NWS. As such, in assessing the
reasonableness of the consideration, which was based on the independent valuation, we
have reviewed the trading multiples of companies in the Asia Pacific region which are
comparable to NWS’s major lines of business. Furthermore, we are not aware of any pure
facilities or property management company listed in Hong Kong or the Asia Pacific region
and, accordingly, we have used property development and investment companies listed in
Hong Kong which have significant property management business for our comparison
purposes.

In conducting our comparable company analysis in this section, we have placed more
reliance on the EV/Adjusted EBITDA multiple as it has taken into account the differences
in accounting treatments for depreciation and amortisation expenses and the tax effects in
different countries, and the differences in capital structure whereas the price earnings multiple
does not account for these factors. We have also excluded the price to book ratio in our
comparison as it is not an useful indicator for valuation of services companies which normally
have a low asset base.
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The summary of the relevant trading multiples of the comparable companies (which
have been used in our analysis) as at the Latest Practicable Date is set out below:

Average Average price

EV/Adjusted earnings

EBITDA multiple multiple

(times) (times)

Construction and engineering 6.0 7.7
Transportation services 53 16.2
Property and facility management! 9.0 11.4
Weighted average® 6.6 11.2

Note 1: Property development and investment companies with significant property management business

Note 2: The weighted average figures were computed by weighting the trading multiples of the comparable
companies according to the respective contributions to the Adjusted EBITDA of the Services
Assets by their respective principal business segments

As noted in the above analysis and taking into consideration of both the EV/Adjusted
EBITDA and the price earnings multiples, the implied acquisition multiples calculated based
on the consideration under the Services Assets Sale Agreement as discussed above are in
line with the market trading multiples of the aforesaid comparable companies.

4. Issue price of the NWI Consideration Shares and the NWS Consideration Shares

The issue price of approximately HK$0.9327 per NWI Consideration Share and NWS
Consideration Share has been determined with reference to an independent valuation of PPC
prepared by Chesterton, an independent professional valuer, further details of which are set out in
Appendix VI to the PPC Circular. The NWI Consideration Shares and the NWS Consideration
Shares, when issued, will rank pari passu in all respects with the PPC Shares then in issue,
including the right to receive any dividend declared after the date of Completion.

In percentage term, the NWI Consideration Shares and the NWS Consideration Shares
represent approximately:

NWI NWS
Consideration Consideration

Shares Shares Total

41.41% 568.02% 609.43% of the existing issued ordinary share capital
of PPC

5.84% 80.07% 85.91% of the issued ordinary share capital of PPC
as enlarged by the issuance of all the NWI
Consideration Shares and the NWS
Consideration Shares, but before conversion
of the Preference Shares; and

4.79% 65.71% 70.50% of the issued ordinary share capital of PPC

as enlarged by the issuance of all the NWI
Consideration Shares and the NWS
Considerations Shares, and upon full
conversion of the Preference Shares
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The issue price of approximately HK$0.9327 per NWI Consideration Shares and NWS
Consideration Shares represents:

. a premium of approximately 114.41% over the closing price of HK$0.4350 per PPC
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange as at the Latest Practicable Date;

. a premium of approximately 119.46% over the closing price of HK$0.4250 per PPC
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 16 October, 2002, being the last trading
day of the PPC Shares prior to the suspension of the trading in the PPC Shares on the
Stock Exchange, pending the issue of the joint announcement of the Company, NWI
and PPC in respect of the Reorganisation;

. a premium of approximately 132.01% over the average closing price of approximately
HK$0.4020 per PPC Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange over the last 10 trading
days up to and including 16 October, 2002;

. a premium of approximately 121.65% over the average closing price of approximately
HK$0.4208 per PPC Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange over the last 30 trading
days up to and including 16 October, 2002;

. a premium of approximately 116.60% over the average closing price of approximately
HK$0.4306 per PPC Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange over the last 120 trading
days up to and including 16 October, 2002; and

. a premium of approximately 33.09% over the audited consolidated net tangible asset
value per PPC Share (as enlarged by full conversion of the Preference Shares) as at
30 June, 2002 of approximately HK$0.7008 per PPC Share.

Based on the total number of PPC Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date and
assuming full conversion of the Preference Shares, the issue price of approximately HK$0.9327
values PPC at approximately HK$4,900 million before the Reorganisation, which represents
approximately 13.9 times the net profit (excluding non-operating and non-recurring items)
attributable to the shareholders of PPC for the year ended 30 June, 2002. It also represents an EV/
Adjusted EBITDA multiple of approximately 10.1 times for the same year and approximately 1.3
times the audited consolidated net tangible asset value of PPC as at 30 June, 2002.

We are not aware of any other company listed in Hong Kong which is a pure port investment
and operating company like PPC. Accordingly, we have conducted our assessment of the
reasonableness of the issue price of approximately HK$0.9327, which was based on the independent
valuation, by comparing its implied multiples as discussed above to the trading multiples of port
and port-related companies listed in the Asia Pacific region. Our analysis shows that the implied
multiples of the issue price are in line with the trading multiples of the aforesaid comparable
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companies. The summary of the relevant trading multiples of these comparable companies as at the
Latest Practicable Date is set out below:

Average

(times)

Price earnings multiple 16.6
EV/Adjusted EBITDA multiple 7.6
Price to book ratio 1.5

5. The Distribution

The Distribution is the final step of the Reorganisation which would enable NWTI to distribute
all its shareholding in PPC (which will include NWTI’s interest in the traditional infrastructure
businesses) to its shareholders and to focus on the non-traditional infrastructure businesses as
discussed above. It is also intended to create a more streamlined corporate structure for the Group.

Immediately following the Completion and the conversion of the Preference Shares, NWI
would hold an aggregate of approximately 5,592 million PPC Distribution Shares, representing
approximately 31.40% of the enlarged issued ordinary share capital of PPC. Subject to the approvals
of the Reorganisation by the Independent Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting and
the approval by NWI Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of NWI, and the fulfilment
of various conditions including the Completion, further details of which are set out in the subsection
headed “Conditions of the Distribution” in the “Letter from the NWI Board” of the NWI Circular,
NWI will distribute all the PPC Distribution Shares in the ratio of approximately 5.87 PPC
Distribution Shares for each NWI Share held on the Record Date.

The simplified corporate structures of the Group before and after completion of the
Reorganisation are set out below:

Before the Reorganisation

the Company™
54.25%' 52.35%
NWI* Nws?

4{ Infrastructure Assets

‘ Services Assets

TMT Assets

75.00%

Ports Business
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After the Reorganisation

the Company™

54.25% 52.00%
PPC *

TMT Assets W
Infrastructure Assets

100%

Services Assets

Note 1: As at the Latest Practicable Date, in addition to approximately 54.25%, the Company was also indirectly
interested in approximately 0.35% in NWI which was held by Financial Concepts Investment Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS

Note 2: NWI’s interest in PPC would increase to approximately 90.20% if the Preference Shares are fully
converted

Note 3: As at the Latest Practicable Date, NWS held an interest of approximately 0.35% in NWI as discussed in
Note 1 above. Following completion of the Reorganisation, NWS (through Financial Concepts Investment
Limited) will continue to hold an interest of approximately 0.35% in NWI and, as a result of the
Distribution, NWS (through Financial Concepts Investment Limited) will also hold an interest of
approximately 0.11% in PPC.

*  Listed on the Stock Exchange
6. Conditions of the Reorganisation

Completion of the Reorganisation is conditional upon fulfilment of various conditions
including the passing of resolutions to approve the transactions in relation to the Reorganisation
by the independent shareholders of the Company, NWI and PPC at their respective extraordinary
or special general meetings. Further details of the other conditions of the Reorganisation are set
out in the subsections headed “Conditions of the Infrastructure Assets Acquisition” and “Conditions
of the Services Assets Acquisition” in the “Letter from the PPC Board” of the PPC Circular and
the subsection headed “Conditions of the Distribution” in the “Letter from the NWI Board” of the
NWI Circular.

7. Undertakings
i) Non-compete and engagement undertakings of the Company

It is a term of the Services Assets Sale Agreement that, at Completion, the Company
and PPC will enter into a deed of non-compete and engagement undertakings pursuant to
which the Company will undertake to PPC that within the period of 15 years from the date
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of Completion, the Company will not and will procure that its subsidiaries (other than
members of the NWI Group, the PPC Group and the NWCL Group or any of its subsidiaries)
will not, other than pursuant to certain exceptions, directly or indirectly, participate in, hold
any right or interest in:

a) any of the services businesses comprised in the Services Assets anywhere within
Asia; or

b) any of the projects comprised in the Infrastructure Assets anywhere in the
world.

In addition, the Company will, pursuant to the deed of non-compete and engagement
undertakings (subject to certain qualifications), undertake to PPC, in relation to all
requirements in Hong Kong of the Group for the provision of any services comprised in the
Services Assets of the NWS Group, to engage the PPC Group for the provision of such
services for a period of 15 years from the date of Completion. Further details of the non-
compete and engagement undertakings are set out in the section headed “Introduction” in
the “Letter from the Board”.

ii) Non-disposal undertaking

Under the Services Assets Sale Agreement, each of the NWS Shareholders has given
an undertaking to PPC not to sell, encumber or otherwise dispose of any of the NWS
Consideration Shares allotted to it (including those NWS Consideration Shares to be allotted
to the Company) within the period of six months following completion of the Services
Assets Acquisition, except with the prior consent of PPC or for disposal of any of the NWS
Consideration Shares to the Company or its nominee.

iii)  Non-compete undertaking of NWI

Pursuant to the terms of the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, NWI has given a
non-compete undertaking to PPC such that, among other things, NWI will not and will
procure that its subsidiaries will not in any relevant capacity during 15 years from the date
of Completion directly or indirectly carry on any investment, development, operation or
management of toll roads, toll bridges, tunnels, water treatment plants, power plants or the
manufacture, trading and sale of water treatment equipment (other than certain permitted
activities).

iv)  Non-compete undertaking previously given by NWD and CTFEL in favour of NWI

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and subject to the approval of
the independent shareholders of NWI at its extraordinary general meeting, the Company,
NWI and CTFEL will, on Completion, execute a termination agreement pursuant to which
the Company and CTFEL will be released from the non-compete agreement dated 17
September, 1995 (as amended by a supplemental non-compete agreement dated 22 December,
1997) whereby each of the Company and CTFEL has undertaken, among other things, that it
will not and will procure that its subsidiaries will not directly or indirectly participate in,
hold any right or interest in or otherwise be involved in any infrastructure projects involving
the development, construction, ownership, operation and/or management of airports, container
terminals, cargo handling and storage facilities, toll roads, expressways, bridges, tunnels,
power stations and water treatment plants in the PRC, Hong Kong or Macau.
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8. Financial effects of the Reorganisation

The Reorganisation is a transfer of assets and liabilities between non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company and the attributable interests of the Company in these assets and
liabilities would not change materially as a result of the Reorganisation. The changes of the
Company’s attributable interests in these assets and liabilities arising from the Reorganisation are
summarised in the following table:

The Company’s

attributable

The Company’s interests after
existing attributable completion of the
interests> Reorganisation®

NWTI's TMT Assets 54.25% 54.25%
NWTI’s Infrastructure Assets (to be owned by PPC

upon completion of the Reorganisation) 54.25% 52.00%
PPC’s Ports Business 48.93%' 52.00%
NWS (to be owned by PPC upon completion of

the Reorganisation) 52.35% 52.00%

Note 1: This percentage assumes full conversion of the Preference Shares. The percentage would be approximately
40.69% if none of the Preference Shares have been converted

Note 2: The percentages in the above table exclude the interests in NWI and PPC held by NWS before and after
the Reorganisation as discussed in the section headed “5. The Distribution” above

It should also be noted that NWI, PPC and NWS have been and will continue to be
consolidated into the Group’s consolidated financial statements before and after completion of the
Reorganisation. Accordingly, the Directors estimate that there would be minimal immediate financial
impacts for the Group as a result of the Reorganisation. In addition, the Directors believe that the
Reorganisation would enable the Group to reorganise the assets and liabilities of its principal
subsidiaries so that the cashflow from the stable cashflow generating businesses could be better
utilised to reduce the debts of the other subsidiaries which are currently suffering from high
gearings. It would also facilitate the Group to reduce its debts more rapidly in the medium term for
the reasons as discussed in the section headed “1. Background and rationale” above.

RECOMMENDATION

Having considered the above principal factors and reasons, in particular, the background to
and rationale for the Reorganisation, and the bases of the considerations under the Infrastructure
Assets Sale Agreement and the Services Assets Sale Agreement, and the issue price of the NWI
Consideration Shares and the NWS Consideration Shares, each of which have been determined
with reference to independent valuations, we consider the terms of the Reorganisation to be fair
and reasonable so far as the Independent Shareholders are concerned. Accordingly, we advise the
Independent Board Committee to recommend the Independent Shareholders to vote in favour of
the ordinary resolution to approve the Reorganisation as detailed in “Notice of Extraordinary
General Meeting” which is set out on page 29 of the Circular.

Yours very truly,
For and on behalf of
N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited

Kelvin Chau

Director
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New World Development Company Limited

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company

will be held at Room 407, Level 4, Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, 1 Harbour

Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong on 12 December, 2002 at 12:00 noon for the purpose of considering

and, if thought fit, passing the following resolution, with or without modification, as an ordinary
resolution of the Company:—

Date:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the Reorganisation (as defined in the circular to shareholders of the Company dated
18 November, 2002 of which this notice forming part (the “Circular”)) and all the transactions
contemplated thereby be and are hereby confirmed, ratified and approved and THAT the
directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to sign,
seal, execute, perfect, perform, deliver and do all such documents, deeds, acts, matters and
things as they may in their discretion, consider necessary or desirable or expedient for the
purpose of or in connection with the implementation of the Reorganisation (including, in
particular, the performance of the Company’s obligations under the Services Assets Sale
Agreement (as defined in the Circular)).”

Yours faithfully,
By Order of the Board
Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart
Company Secretary

18 November, 2002

Registered office:—

30th Floor, New World Tower
18 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Notes:

(L

@)

3

4

Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint more than one proxy to attend and,
on a poll, to vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either
personally or by proxy, in respect of such share as if he were solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so present whose name
stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in
respect thereof.

To be valid, the form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is
signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority, must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at 30th Floor, New World Tower, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting. Completion and return of the form of proxy will
not preclude members from attending and voting in person at the meeting.

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company, and its associates (within the

meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), will
abstain from voting on the Ordinary Resolutions set out above.
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1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This Circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually
accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this Circular and confirm,
having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no
other facts the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS BY DIRECTORS IN SHARE CAPITAL OR
DEBENTURE

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests of the Directors in the securities of, or
debentures of, the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SDI
Ordinance) which require notification pursuant to section 28 of the SDI Ordinance (including
interests which any such Directors are deemed or taken to have under section 31 or Part I of the
Schedule to the SDI Ordinance) or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) or which require, pursuant
to section 29 of the SDI Ordinance, to be entered in the register referred to therein, were as
follows:

Personal Family  Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests’’  Interests

New World Development Company Limited

(Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each)
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung - - - -
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry - - - -
The Honourable Lee Quo-Wei - - 3,583,464 253,321@
Lord Sandberg, Michael - - -
Dr. Ho Tim 1,805,813 - - -
Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 3,343,363 33,642 - -
Mr. Cheng Yue-Pui - -
Mr. Liang Chong-Hou, David - - - -
Mr. Yeung Ping-Leung, Howard - - - -
Mr. Cha Mou-Sing, Payson - - - -
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter - - - -
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 23,253 - - -
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 90,470 - - -
Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 20,818 - - -
Mr. Cha Mou-Zing, Victor
(alternate director to

Mr. Cha Mou-Sing, Payson) - - - -

HH Holdings Corporation
(Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each)
Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 42,000 - - -
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 15,000 - - -
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Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests!’  Interests
Master Services Limited
(Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each)
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 16,335 - - -

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 16,335 - - -
Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 16,335 - - -

New World Infrastructure Limited
(Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry -
Dr. Ho Tim 148
Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 5,594 53 - -
Mr. Liang Chong-Hou, David 262 - - -
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 6,800 - - -

1,000,000 - -

New World Services Limited
(Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each)
Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David -
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter -
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 4,214,347 250,745 -
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling - 10,602,565 -
Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 2,562,410 - - -

29,350,490 -
3,382,788 -

New World China Land Limited
(Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each)
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 100,000 - - -
Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 126 - - -

YE Holdings Corporation
(Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each)
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 37,500 - - -

Extensive Trading Company Limited
(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each)

Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling

Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung

Hip Hing Construction Company Limited

380,000 -
160,000 - - -
80,000 -
80,000 - - -

(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$100.00 each)

Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling

42,000 - - -
15,000 - - -

International Property Management Limited
(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$10.00 each)

Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling

5,400 - - -
1,350 - - -
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Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests!’  Interests

Matsuden Company Limited
(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each)

Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 44,000 - - -

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling - - 44,000 -

Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 44,000 - - -
Progreso Investment Limited

(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each)

Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart - - 119,000 -
Tai Yieh Construction & Engineering Company Limited

(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1,000.00 each)

Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 700 - - -

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 250 - - -
Urban Property Management Limited

(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each)

Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter - - 750 -

Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 750 - - -

Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 750 - - -
Notes:
(1) These shares were beneficially owned by a company in which the relevant director is deemed to be

entitled under the SDI Ordinance to exercise or control the exercise of one third or more of the voting
power at its general meeting.

(2) Interests held by a charitable foundation of which The Honourable Lee Quo-Wei and his spouse are
members of its board of trustees.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had any
interests in the securities of, or debentures of, the Company or of any of its associated corporations
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to section 28
of the SDI Ordinance or to the Model Code (including interests which they are deemed or taken to
have under section 31 or Part I of the Schedule to the SDI Ordinance) or which are required,
pursuant to section 29 of the SDI Ordinance, to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Under the respective share option scheme of NWI and NWCL, options may be granted to
respective directors and employees of NWI and NWCL to subscribe for shares. The following
directors of the Company have personal interest in share options to subscribe for their respective

shares in NWI or NWCL as follows:

Date of Grant

NWI
a. (Exercise price of HK$10.20 per share)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry 2 December, 1998
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter 1 December, 1998
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 8 December, 1998

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 9 December, 1998

b. (Exercise price of HK$12.00 per share)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry 2 December, 1998
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter 1 December, 1998
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 8 December, 1998

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 9 December, 1998

NWCL

(Exercise price of HK$1.955 per share)

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry 7 February, 2001

Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter 9 February, 2001
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 7 February, 2001
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 9 February, 2001

Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 9 February, 2001
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Exercisable
period

1 July, 1999 to
1 June, 2004
1 July, 1999 to
1 June, 2004
1 July, 1999 to
1 June, 2004
1 July, 1999 to
1 June, 2004

1 July, 2000 to
1 June, 2004
1 July, 2000 to
1 June, 2004
1 July, 2000 to
1 June, 2004
1 July, 2000 to
1 June, 2004

8 March, 2001 to
7 March, 2006

10 March, 2001 to

9 March, 2006
8 March, 2001 to
7 March, 2006

10 March, 2001 to

9 March, 2006

10 March, 2001 to

9 March, 2006

Number of
share options
outstanding at
30 June, 2002

600,000
120,000
120,000

200,000

2,400,000V
480,000
480,000

800,000V

5,000,000?)
2,500,000
500,000®
400,000?

500,000
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Notes:

(1 Divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 1 July, 2000, 2001 and 2002 respectively to 1 June, 2004.

2) The share options are exercisable during a period of five years commencing from the expiry of one month
after the dates of grant when the offers of the share options were accepted, provided that the maximum

number of share options that can be exercised during a year is 20.0% of the total number of the share
options granted together with any unexercised share options carried forward from the previous year.

Except for the foregoing, at no time during the period was the Company or any of its

subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

3.

THE DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

(a)  As at the Latest Practicable Date, no Director was materially interested in any contract
or arrangement subsisting which is significant in relation to the business of the Group
taken as a whole.

(b)  Since the date to which the latest published audited financial statements of the Group
were made up, none of the Directors, American Appraisal, Anglo Chinese, Chesterton,
Commerzbank, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Rothschild and Sallmanns has or has had
any direct or indirect interest in any assets acquired or disposed of by or leased to or
proposed to be acquired or disposed of by any member of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the

Company pursuant to section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance shows that the following shareholders
had an interest of 10 per cent. or more of the nominal value of the issued ordinary shares of the

Company:
Name Number of Shares Percentage
(Note)
CTFEL together with its subsidiaries 831,206,530 38.37%

Note: This percentage is calculated on the basis of 2,166,406,573 Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable
Date.

Save for CTFEL and the Directors as disclosed in the section headed “Disclosure of Interests

by Directors in Share Capital or Debenture” above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, no other
person known to the Directors who, at the Latest Practicable Date, is directly or indirectly interested

in 10% per cent. or more of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any members of the Group in
respect of such share capital.
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S. QUALIFICATIONS

The following are the qualifications of the experts who have given an opinion or advice
which is contained in this Circular:

Name Qualification

American Appraisal Independent professional valuer

Anglo Chinese Registered investment adviser

Chesterton Independent professional valuer
Commerzbank A licensed bank under the Banking Ordinance

(Chapter 155 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

PricewaterhouseCoopers Certified Public Accountants
Rothschild Registered investment adviser
Sallmanns Independent professional valuer

6. SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director has entered into a service contract with any member of the Group which does
not expire or is not terminable by such member of the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

7. MATERIAL CHANGE

So far as the Directors are aware and save as disclosed in this Circular, there is no material
adverse change in the financial or trading position of the Company since 30 June, 2002, the date to
which the latest published audited financial statements of the Group were made up.

8. LITIGATION

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is involved in any litigation or arbitration
proceedings which may have a significant adverse effect on the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries taken as a whole nor is the Company aware that any such proceedings are
pending or threatened.

9. CONSENT

Each of American Appraisal, Anglo Chinese, Chesterton, Commerzbank,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Rothschild and Sallmanns has given and has not withdrawn its written
consent to the issue of this Circular with the inclusion of its letter or reports and references to its
name and letter or reports in the form and context in which it appears. The letter and advice given
by Rothschild was prepared for incorporation into this Circular. The summary letters on valuation
prepared by each of American Appraisal, Chesterton and Sallmanns are contained in both the NWI
Circular and the PPC Circular. The letter of advice prepared by Anglo Chinese and Commerzbank
are contained in the NWI Circular and PPC Circular respectively. The accountants’ reports prepared
by PricewaterhouseCoopers are contained in Appendix I of the PPC Circular.
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10. MISCELLANEOUS

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

The registered office of the Company is situated at 30th Floor, New World Tower, 18
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, is at Rooms 1901-05,
19th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The secretary of the Company is Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of American Appraisal, Anglo Chinese,
Chesterton, Commerzbank, Morgan Stanley, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Rothschild or
Sallmanns has any shareholding or any beneficial interest in any member of the
Group or the right (whether legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate
persons to subscribe for securities in any member of the Group.

The English text of this Circular shall prevail over the Chinese text in the case of
inconsistency.

11. DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during normal business
hours at the offices of Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo at 27th Floor, Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place,
Central, Hong Kong up to and including 5 December, 2002:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(e

(f)
(2)

(h)

()

€)

(k)

the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement;
the Services Assets Sale Agreement;
the memorandum of association and articles of association of the Company;

the annual reports of the Company for the two financial years ended 30 June, 2001
and 30 June, 2002;

the interim reports of the Company for the six months ended 31 December, 2000 and
31 December, 2001;

the letter from the Independent Board Committee as set out in page 15 of this Circular;
the letter of advice from Rothschild as set out in pages 16 to 28 of this Circular;

the letter of advice from Anglo Chinese, the text of which is set out in the NWI
Circular;

the letter of advice from Commerzbank, the text of which is set out in the PPC
Circular;

the accountants’ reports from PricewaterhouseCoopers, the text of which is set out in
Appendix I of the PPC Circular;

the summary letter on valuation from American Appraisal, the text of which is set out
in both the NWI Circular and the PPC Circular;
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) the summary letter on valuation from Chesterton, the text of which is set out in both
the NWI Circular and the PPC Circular;

(m) the summary letter on valuation from Sallmanns, the text of which is set out in both
the NWI Circular and the PPC Circular; and

(n)  the letters of consent referred to in paragraph 9 of this appendix.
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APPENDIX II NWI CIRCULAR

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your
stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional
adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in New World Infrastructure Limited, you should at once hand this
circular to the purchaser or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for
transmission to the purchaser.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular, makes no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

This circular is for information purposes only and does not constitute an invitation or offer to acquire, purchase or
subscribe for securities of New World Infrastructure Limited.

New World Infrastructure Limited
HEeREEBRL G

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

REORGANISATION OF NEW WORLD INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED,
PACIFIC PORTS COMPANY LIMITED AND
NEW WORLD SERVICES LIMITED, SUBSIDIARIES OF
NEW WORLD DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Proposed disposal of Infrastructure Assets by New World Infrastructure Limited
to Pacific Ports Company Limited

Proposed acquisition of New World Services Limited by
Pacific Ports Company Limited
from New World Development Company Limited and others

Proposed distribution in specie of shares in Pacific Ports Company Limited by
New World Infrastructure Limited

Financial adviser to New World Infrastructure Limited

Morgan

Independent financial adviser to the NWI Independent Board Committee

ANGLO CHINESE

CORPORATE FINANCE, LIMITED

A letter from the NWI Board is set out on pages 9 to 31 of this circular, a letter from the NWI Independent Board
Committee is set out on pages 32 to 33 of this circular and a letter from Anglo Chinese opining on the Infrastructure
Assets Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition is set out on pages 34 to 50 of this circular.

A notice convening the Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of New World Infrastructure Limited to be
held at Room 405, Level 4, Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 12
December, 2002 at 11:30 a.m. is set out on pages 51 to 52 of this circular. Whether or not you are able to attend the
Extraordinary General Meeting, you are requested to complete the enclosed form of proxy in accordance with the
instructions printed thereon and return the same to the head office of New World Infrastructure Limited at 9th Floor, New
World Tower 2, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event no less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for the holding of the Extraordinary General Meeting or any adjournment thereof. Completion and
return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting at the Extraordinary General Meeting or any
adjournment thereof should you so desire.

18 November, 2002
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the meanings set out below unless the
context otherwise requires:

“Adjusted EBITDA” EBITDA before the following items: net gain/loss on
disposal of fixed assets, subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities, impairment losses of fixed assets,
provision for bad and doubtful debts, bad debts written
off, unrealised loss on other investments and impairment
losses of non-trading securities

“American Appraisal” American Appraisal Hongkong Limited, an independent
professional valuer

“Anglo Chinese” Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited, the
independent financial adviser to the NWI Independent
Board Committee in relation to the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition

“Announcement” the joint announcement issued by NWD, NWI and PPC
on 21 October, 2002 in connection with the
Reorganisation

“associates” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

“BOC Loan” the RMB998,700,000 term loan facility pursuant to an

agreement dated 17 September, 1999 (as amended by a
supplementary agreement dated 6 December, 1999)
between NWCI as borrower and the Bank of China as
lender

“Book Value” the book value of the unaudited consolidated net asset
value of Stalagmite Investments Limited (a Sale
Company through which NWI holds its effective interest
in Wuhan Bridge) as at 30 June, 2002, being
approximately HK$751 million

“Bridge Companies” the CJVs in which NWI holds an indirect interest and
which operate three toll bridges in Guangdong and
Tianjin in the PRC; and Wuhan Bridge Construction
Company Limited, a joint stock company established
under the laws of the PRC, in which NWI holds an
indirect interest

“Cash Consideration” HK$8,545 million (subject to adjustment as described
in the section headed “The Infrastructure Assets Sale
Agreement — Adjustment to the Cash Consideration” in
this circular), being the cash amount payable by PPC to
NWI upon completion of the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal



DEFINITIONS

“Cash Earnings”

“Chesterton”

“CJV”

“Commerzbank”

“Compensation Amount”

“Completion”

“Consideration Shares”

“CTFEL”

“Deed of Trust”

“Distribution”

“EBITDA”

profit attributable to shareholders before depreciation
and amortisation, gain/loss on disposal of fixed assets,
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, impairment
losses of fixed assets and other non-cash items (including
provision for bad and doubtful debts and bad debts
written off, unrealised loss on other investments and
impairment loss of non-trading securities)

Chesterton Petty Limited, an independent professional
valuer

a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture company
established under the laws of the PRC

Commerzbank AG Hong Kong Branch, a licensed bank
under the Banking Ordinance (Chapter 155 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the independent financial adviser to
the independent board committee of PPC in relation to
the Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Services Assets
Acquisition

the amount of cash compensation (net of reasonable
expenses) which may be received by PPC as a result of
the Wuhan government requiring Wuhan Bridge to cease
toll collection from 1 October, 2002 and/or the proceeds,
if any, from the sale of the effective interest held by
NWI in Wuhan Bridge to the Chinese shareholders or
the Wuhan government

completion of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the
Services Assets Acquisition

the NWI Consideration Shares and the NWS
Consideration Shares

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and
the controlling shareholder of NWD

the deed of trust and indemnity to be entered into
between NWI and PPC on Completion in respect of
NWCT’s interest in the Tangjin Highway Companies

the distribution in specie of the PPC Distribution Shares
to NWI Shareholders in the ratio of approximately 5.87
PPC Distribution Shares to one NWI Share held on the
Record Date (subject to rounding down of fractional
entitlements)

earnings before interest (and other finance costs), tax,
depreciation and amortisation
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“EJV”

“Enlarged PPC Group”

“Extraordinary General Meeting”

“Highway Companies”

“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

“Independent NWD Shareholders”

“Independent NWI Shareholders”

“Independent PPC Shareholders”

“Infrastructure Assets”

“Infrastructure Assets Disposal”

a Sino-foreign equity joint venture company established
under the laws of the PRC

the PPC Group immediately following the completion
of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Service
Assets Acquisition

the extraordinary general meeting of the NWI
Shareholders to be held on 12 December, 2002 at Room
405, Level 4, Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition
Centre, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, notice
of which is set out on pages 51 to 52 of this circular

the CJVs in which NWI holds an indirect interest and
which operate a total of 34 toll roads in Guangdong,
Guangxi, Shanxi and Wuhan in the PRC; and Tate’s Cairn
Tunnel Company Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability in which NWI holds
an indirect interest which operates the Tate’s Cairn
Tunnel in Hong Kong

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
PRC

the holders of shares in the issued share capital of NWD
other than CTFEL, and its associates

NWI Shareholders other than (i) Mombasa Limited, the
controlling shareholder of NWI and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWD, and its associates; and (ii) Financial
Concepts Investment Limited, a shareholder of NWI and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS, and its associates

PPC Shareholders other than Seashore Development
Limited, the controlling shareholder of PPC and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NWI, and its associates

NWI’s effective interests (comprising equity and
shareholder’s loans and advances) in the Operating
Companies which operate toll roads, bridges, tunnels,
water treatment and power plants in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC

the disposal of all the Infrastructure Assets to PPC from
NWI pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale
Agreement



DEFINITIONS

“Infrastructure Assets Disposal the conditions precedent to the completion of the
Conditions” Infrastructure Assets Disposal as set out in the section
headed “Conditions of the Infrastructure Assets

Disposal” in this circular

“Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement”  the conditional sale and purchase agreement between
NWI and PPC dated 21 October, 2002 relating to the
Infrastructure Assets Disposal

“Issue Price” the issue price of approximately HK$0.9327 each in
respect of the Consideration Shares

“Latest Practicable Date” 11 November, 2002, being the latest practicable date
for ascertaining certain information contained in this
circular

“Listing Rules” The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange

“Lotsgain” Lotsgain Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWI

“Macau” the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

“NWCI” AR (h ) E AR A A (New World
Infrastructure (China) Investment Limited), a wholly-
foreign owned enterprise established by NWI under the
laws of the PRC

“NWCL” New World China Land Limited, a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

“NWD” New World Development Company Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

“NWD Group” NWD and its subsidiaries

“NWI” New World Infrastructure Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

“NWI Board” the board of NWI Directors

“NWI Consideration Shares” approximately 853 million new PPC Shares to be issued
at approximately HK$0.9327 per PPC Share on
Completion, as part of the consideration payable by PPC
to NWI for the Infrastructure Assets Disposal
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“NWI Directors”

“NWI Group”

“NWI Independent Board Committee”

“NWI Notes”

“NWI Shareholders”

“NWI Shares”

“NWS”

“NWS Consideration Shares”

“NWS Group”

“NWS Shareholders”

“NWS Shares”

“Operating Companies”

“PPC”

“PPC Board”

“PPC Circular”

the directors of NWI as at the Latest Practicable Date
NWI and its subsidiaries

the independent board committee constituted by three
independent non-executive directors of NWI for the
purpose of considering and advising the NWI
Shareholders in connection with the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition

the US$45 million floating rate notes due 2003 issued
by NWI on 23 February, 2000

the holders of NWI Shares

the shares of HK$1.00 each in the issued share capital
of NWI

New World Services Limited, a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and which
is approximately 52.35%-owned by NWD

approximately 11,701 million new PPC Shares to be
issued at approximately HK$0.9327 per PPC Share as
the consideration payable by PPC to the NWS
Shareholders for the Services Assets Acquisition

NWS, its subsidiaries and its interests in associated
companies

the holders of NWS Shares

the shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital
of NWS

the Highway Companies, the Bridge Companies, the
Power Companies, the Water Companies and the Tangjin
Highway Companies

Pacific Ports Company Limited, a company incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange

the board of directors of PPC

the circular dated 18 November, 2002 issued by PPC in
respect of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal, the Services
Assets Acquisition and other related matters, the text of
which is set out in appendix VII of this circular



DEFINITIONS

“PPC Distribution Shares”

“PPC Group”
“PPC Shareholders”

“PPC Shares”

“Ports Business”

“Power Companies”

“PRC”

“Preference Shares”

“Record Date”

“Reorganisation”

“RMB”

“Sale Companies”

being approximately 5,592 million PPC Shares
comprising the 1,544,976,000 existing PPC Shares held
by NWI, approximately 853 million NWI Consideration
Shares and the 3,193,654,306 PPC Shares to be issued
and allotted upon conversion in full of the Preference
Shares

PPC and its subsidiaries
the holders of PPC Shares

the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share
capital of PPC

the investment in, and the development, operation and
management of, terminals in seaports and riverports and
related businesses in Hong Kong and various parts in
the PRC

the CJVs and EJVs in which NWI holds an indirect
interest and which operate four power plants in
Guangdong and Sichuan in the PRC and one power plant
in Macau

the People’s Republic of China. Except where the context
requires, references in this circular to the PRC do not
apply to Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macau

3,193,654,306 4% cumulative convertible redeemable
preference shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share
capital of PPC held by Seashore Development Limited,
representing approximately 155.03% of the issued
ordinary share capital of PPC as at the Latest Practicable
Date, which can be converted into 3,193,654,306 PPC
Shares at the option of Seashore Development Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWI

9 January, 2003 (or such other date as the NWI Board
or a committee thereof may decide), being the date by
reference to which entitlements of NWI Shareholders to
the PPC Distribution Shares under the Distribution are
to be determined

the Infrastructure Assets Disposal, the Services Assets
Acquisition and the Distribution

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC
a total of 42 companies incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands through which NWI holds its effective interests
in the Infrastructure Assets
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DEFINITIONS

“Sale Group Companies”

“Sallmanns”

“SDI Ordinance”

“Services Assets”

“Services Assets Acquisition”

“Services Assets Acquisition
Conditions”

t1)

“Services Assets Sale Agreement

“Shareholder’s Loans”

“Stock Exchange”

“subsidiary”

“Tangjin Highway Companies”

“Tangjin Loans”

“TMT Assets”

“US$”

the Sale Companies and their respective subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Sallmanns (Far East) Limited, an independent
professional valuer

the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance
(Chapter 396 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

the businesses of the NWS Group prior to Completion
which comprise facilities, contracting, transport, financial
and environmental services

the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of NWS
by PPC from the NWS Shareholders pursuant to the
Services Assets Sale Agreement

the conditions precedent to the completion of the
Services Assets Acquisition as set out in the section
headed “Conditions of the Services Assets Acquisition”
in this circular

the conditional sale and purchase agreement between
CTFEL, NWD, PPC and the NWS Shareholders dated
21 October, 2002 relating to the Services Assets
Acquisition

the shareholder’s loans owing from the Sale Group
Companies to Lotsgain, which as at 30 September, 2002,
amounted to approximately HK$6,020 million

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

has the meaning ascribed to it under section 2 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

the 14 CJVs 60%-owned by NWCI which operate the
Tangjin Expressway (Tianjin North section) in Tianjin
in the PRC

the shareholder’s loans owing from the Tangjin Highway
Companies to NWCI, which as at 30 September, 2002,
amounted to approximately HK$840 million

the telecommunications, media and technology
businesses owned by NWI

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United
States of America
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“Water Companies” the companies in which NWI holds an indirect interest
and which principally operate one water treatment plant
in Macau and 15 water treatment plants and one
microfiltration equipment company in the PRC

“Wuhan Bridge” Yangtze River Bridge No. 2, a bridge in Wuhan held by
Wuhan Bridge Construction Company Limited, one of
the Bridge Companies, which forms part of the
Infrastructure Assets and which has ceased toll collection
as required by the Wuhan government with effect from
1 October, 2002

For the purposes of illustration only and unless otherwise specified in this circular, amounts
denominated in RMB have been translated into HK$ at the rate of RMB1.07 = HK$1.00 and
amounts denominated in US$ have been translated into HK$ at the rate of US$1.00 to HK$7.80.

The terms “Adjusted EBITDA” and “Cash Earnings” as defined in this circular are not
measures generally used in the market, but the NWI Board believes that they are useful supplements
to cash flow data as they will enable the NWI Shareholders to understand NWI’s operating
performance and are general indicators of NWI’s ability to service and incur debt, to internally
fund its operational activities and to pay dividends to the NWI Shareholders. However, the NWI
Shareholders should not consider Adjusted EBITDA and Cash Earnings in isolation or as substitutes
to operating income, net income, cash flows from operating activities and other income or cash
flow statement data prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles or as
measures of NWI’s profitability or liquidity. Adjusted EBITDA and Cash Earnings do not take into
account any functional or legal requirements of the business that may require NWI to conserve and
allocate funds for debt service, capital expenditure or other commitments or restrictions. Adjusted
EBITDA and Cash Earnings measures presented in this circular may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures used by other companies.
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New World Infrastructure Limited

W2 EARYL I

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Executive NWI Directors:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Doo Wai-Hoi, William
Mr. Chan Wing-Tak, Douglas
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart

Registered office:
P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
South Church Street
George Town

Grand Cayman

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling Cayman Islands

Mr. So Ngok British West Indies
Non-executive NWI Directors: Head office and

Dr. Li Kwok-Po, David* principal place of business:

Mr. Cheng Wai-Chee, Christopher* 9th Floor
Mr. Coull, Gary William John* New World Tower 2
Mr. Fu Sze-Shing 18 Queen’s Road Central
Mr. Kaffenberger, Wilfried Ernst Hong Kong
Mr. Yeung Kun-Wah, David
(alternate director to Mr. Kaffenberger, Wilfried Ernst)

* Independent non-executive directors

18 November, 2002
To the NWI Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
INTRODUCTION

NWD, NWI and PPC jointly issued the Announcement on 21 October, 2002 in relation to
the proposed Reorganisation of the NWD Group. The proposed Reorganisation is to be effected
principally by the transactions set out below:

. disposal of the Infrastructure Assets by NWI to PPC for an aggregate consideration
(comprising the Cash Consideration, NWI Consideration Shares to be issued by PPC
and an undertaking by PPC to pay certain liabilities of NWI in the aggregate amount
of approximately HK$886 million) of approximately HK$10,227 million pursuant to
the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement;

. acquisition of the Services Assets of NWS by PPC from the NWS Shareholders for a
consideration (comprising NWS Consideration Shares to be issued by PPC) of
approximately HK$10,913 million pursuant to the Services Assets Sale Agreement;
and



LETTER FROM THE NWI BOARD

. conversion in full of the Preference Shares and distribution in specie of all PPC
Distribution Shares held and to be held by NWI after Completion to the NWI
Shareholders in the ratio of approximately 5.87 PPC Distribution Shares to one NWI
Share (based upon 952,180,007 NWI Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date
without taking into account any new NWI Shares which may be issued after the
Latest Practicable Date upon conversion of the convertible bonds due 2003 or upon
exercise of the share options granted under the NWI employee share option scheme).

Completion of each of the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and the Services Assets
Sale Agreement is inter-conditional and, subject to satisfaction and/or waiver of the conditions set
out in the sections headed “Conditions of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal” and “Conditions of
the Services Assets Acquisition” below, respectively, will take place simultaneously. The Distribution
is conditional upon Completion and, subject to satisfaction and/or waiver of the conditions set out
in the section headed “Conditions of the Distribution” below, will take place immediately after
Completion.

As PPC is a 75.00%-owned subsidiary of NWI, the Infrastructure Assets Disposal constitutes
a major and connected transaction for NWI under the Listing Rules and therefore requires the
approval of the Independent NWI Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

As PPC is a 75.00%-owned subsidiary of NWI and NWS is an approximately 52.35%-
owned subsidiary of NWD, the controlling shareholder of NWI, the Services Assets Acquisition
constitutes a major and connected transaction for NWI under the Listing Rules and therefore
requires the approval of the Independent NWI Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

The NWI Independent Board Committee, comprising Dr. Li Kwok-Po, David, Mr. Cheng
Wai-Chee, Christopher and Mr. Gary William John Coull, has been formed to consider the
Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition. Anglo Chinese has been appointed
as the independent financial adviser to the NWI Independent Board Committee.

The purpose of this letter and the other sections of this circular of which this letter forms
part is to provide you with information relating to the details of the proposed Reorganisation, to
set out the recommendation from the NWI Independent Board Committee and the advice from

Anglo Chinese.

Terms defined in this circular have the same meanings when used in this letter.
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURES

As at the Latest Practicable Date, NWD has an interest of approximately 54.25% in NWI
which, in turn, has an interest of 75.00% in the issued ordinary share capital of PPC. When the
proposed Reorganisation is completed, NWI will cease to hold any PPC Shares while NWD will
remain the ultimate holding company of NWI and PPC.

The simplified corporate structures of the NWI Group before and after the Reorganisation
can be illustrated by the following charts:

Before the Reorganisation

NWD*
54.25%' 52.35%
NWI* NWS
Infrastructure Assets Services Assets
TMT Assets
75.00%
PPC *
Ports Business
Note 1: As at the Latest Practicable Date, in addition to the interest of approximately 54.25%, NWD also has

an indirect interest of approximately 0.35% in NWI held by Financial Concepts Investment Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS.

* Listed on the Stock Exchange
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After the Reorganisation

Note 2:

*

NWD*

54.25%

NWI*

TMT Assets

52.00%

PPC*

Ports Business

Infrastructure Assets

100%

NWS

Services Assets

As at the Latest Practicable Date, NWS holds an interest of approximately 0.35% in NWI through a
wholly-owned subsidiary. Following completion of the Reorganisation, NWS will continue to hold an
interest of approximately 0.35% in NWI and NWS will hold an interest of approximately 0.11% in

PPC.

Listed on the Stock Exchange

The following table illustrates the effect of the Reorganisation upon the shareholding structure
of NWI and PPC respectively:

NWD

NWI

PPC

Directors'!

Notes:

(1

(2)

3)

BEFORE
Approximate Approximate
% ownership Number of % ownership

of the ordinary issued of the ordinary

issued share ordinary  issued share
capital as at  shares as at  capital as at

the Latest the Latest the Latest
Practicable ~ Practicable  Practicable

Date Date Date

PPC PPC NWI

- - 54.25

75.00 1,544,976,000 -

) - - 0.18

Approximate
Number of % ownership
issued of the ordinary

ordinary  issued share
shares as at capital
the Latest  immediately
Practicable after the

Date Reorganisation

NWI PPC

516,561,485 52.00
- 0.11®

1,706,800 0.06

AFTER
Approximate
Number of % ownership

issued of the ordinary

ordinary  issued share
shares capital
immediately  immediately
after the after the

PPC NWI

9,259,289,156 54.25
19,709,112 0.35%

11,153,000 0.18

Number of
issued
ordinary
shares
immediately
after the

Reorganisation Reorganisation Reorganisation

NWI

516,561,485

3,357,600

1,706,800

For the purposes of this table, “directors” means: in respect of the shareholdings in NWI, the NWI
Directors; and, in respect of the shareholdings in PPC, the directors of PPC.

PPC will have an indirect interest of approximately 0.11% in itself and an interest of approximately
0.35% in NWI through Financial Concepts Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS.

The shareholding structure of PPC immediately after Completion but before conversion of the Preference
Shares and the Distribution is not shown in this table because conversion of the Preference Shares and the
Distribution is conditional upon and is expected to take place immediately after Completion.
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REASONS FOR, AND BENEFITS OF, THE REORGANISATION

The NWI Board believes that the Reorganisation will significantly enhance the NWI Group’s
operational and capital structures. This will be achieved by reducing NWI’s borrowings, and at the
same time, providing the NWI Shareholders with the opportunity to own separate shareholdings in
NWI and PPC, with the former focusing on telecommunications, media and technology businesses
and the latter on infrastructure, ports development and services businesses, each with a clear
business strategy and appropriate capital structure.

The key benefits of the Reorganisation to NWI and the NWI Shareholders are as follows:

. Reduces NWI'’s debt and gearing. After the Reorganisation, NWI’s debt will be
significantly reduced as a result of an undertaking by PPC to pay certain liabilities of
NWI in the aggregate amount of approximately HK$886 million and repayment of
debt utilising part of the cash proceeds from the disposal of the Infrastructure Assets.
NWI will have little debt following the Reorganisation; and its net gearing ratio
(being the ratio of net debt to equity) is expected to fall to below 15% immediately
after the Reorganisation (as compared to 72.23% as at 30 June, 2002).

. Enables the NWI Shareholders to hold shares in two separate companies. A central
component of the Reorganisation is the proposed distribution of NWI’s entire holding
of PPC Distribution Shares to NWI Shareholders. The Distribution will give NWI
Shareholders direct shareholdings in each of NWI and PPC. Each of the two companies,
post-Reorganisation, will have a clear business strategy and appropriate capital
structure.

The NWI Group will, post-Reorganisation, focus on telecommunications, media and
technology businesses. The NWI Board is confident about the prospects of the TMT
Assets based on the future commercialisation of products which complement the
development of the TMT infrastructure in the PRC. Post-Reorganisation, NWI’s smaller
debt and gearing ratio will provide a much more suitable capital structure for its
businesses, the majority of which will be investments in the deployment and
commercialisation of technology businesses in the PRC. NWI and the NWI
Shareholders will be better able to capitalise on the potential upside of technology
businesses.

PPC will, post-Reorganisation, focus on infrastructure, ports development and services
businesses. The Enlarged PPC Group is expected to benefit from the traditionally
stable cash flows of the Infrastructure Assets and the Services Assets. The Enlarged
PPC Group would have, on a pro forma basis, an Adjusted EBITDA of approximately
HK$3,053 million for the year ended 30 June, 2002 (a multiple of approximately 6.8
times over the PPC Group’s Adjusted EBITDA for the same financial year before the
effects of the Reorganisation are taken into account). Adjusted interest cover, (being
the ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to pro forma combined finance costs of the Enlarged
PPC Group as adjusted by additional interest expense and other incidental borrowing
costs on the new bank loans and the BOC Loan to be undertaken by the Enlarged PPC
Group, details of which are set out in part 3 note 1(ii) of appendix III to the PPC
Circular), on the same pro forma basis, would be approximately 6.2 times. A summary
of the pro forma financial indicators of PPC, immediately before and immediately
after the Reorganisation, is set out below.
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. Unlocks value for the NWI Shareholders. The NWI Board believes that the
Reorganisation will unlock potential value in the NWI Shares (which had been trading
at substantially below book value for an extended period of time). In connection with
the Reorganisation, independent valuations have been obtained for the Infrastructure
Assets and PPC. It is anticipated that the liquidity of the PPC Shares in the market
will improve. These factors will enable the fair value of the NWI Shares and the PPC
Shares to be better reflected in the market.

The following is a summary of the financial indicators of the PPC Group and the Enlarged
PPC Group for the year ended 30 June, 2002. The pro forma figures set out below in respect of the
Enlarged PPC Group are derived from the audited financial statements of the PPC Group and the
NWS Group and the audited pro forma financial statements of the Infrastructure Assets set out in
appendices I and II of the PPC Circular and the unaudited pro forma financial information of the
Enlarged PPC Group set out in appendix III of the PPC Circular. The unaudited pro forma combined
profit attributable to shareholders of the Enlarged PPC Group for the year ended 30 June, 2002
after certain significant adjustments for the Reorganisation as detailed in note (2) of the table
below is approximately HK$854 million. This amount is stated after charging certain significant
non-recurring items which include impairment losses of fixed assets of approximately HK$145
million and net loss on disposal of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities of approximately
HK$72 million. Had these significant non-recurring items been excluded, the unaudited pro forma
combined profit attributable to shareholders of the Enlarged PPC Group after the Reorganisation
adjustments would have been approximately HK$1,071 million.

Enlarged
PPC Group PPC Group Multiple
HK$’000 HK$°000 (Times)
Turnover 125,057 12,408,532 99.2x
Profit attributable to shareholders 143,945 1,636,727M 11.4x
before adjustments
Profit attributable to shareholders n/a 853,918® n/a
after adjustments
Cash Earnings 378,176 2,135,926 5.6x
Adjusted EBITDA 450,560 3,052,990 6.8x
Total assets 3,817,121 37,195,742 9.7x
Cash Earnings per PPC Share HK$0.072® HKS$0.120® 1.7x
(HK$/share)
Net (Cash)/Debt® (349,331) 9,122,081 n/a
Net Debt to Total Capitalisation® n/a 34.1% n/a
Adjusted EBITDA/Adjusted Interest Expense n/a 6.2x7 n/a
Total Debt®/Adjusted EBITDA n/a 3.7x n/a
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Notes:

(1)

2

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)

(7

)

The unaudited pro forma combined profit attributable to shareholders of the Enlarged PPC Group is
prepared on an aggregate basis as if the Enlarged PPC Group had been treated as a single reporting unit.
It is based on the profit attributable to shareholders of the NWS Group, the Sale Group Companies, the
Tangjin Highway Companies and the PPC Group for the year ended 30 June, 2002.

This represents the unaudited pro forma combined profit attributable to shareholders of the Enlarged PPC
Group after certain significant adjustments for the Reorganisation, including (i) annual amortisation
charge of goodwill from the acquisition of NWS of approximately HK$327 million; (ii) annual interest
expense and other incidental borrowing costs of approximately HK$294 million on the estimated HK$7,600
million new bank loans and the BOC Loan to be undertaken by the Enlarged PPC Group; (iii) increase in
annual depreciation charge and decrease in share of results of jointly controlled entities of approximately
HKS$5 million and HK$81 million, respectively, as a result of the adjustments to the carrying values of
the Infrastructure Assets; and (iv) annual corporate expenses of approximately HK$76 million to be
incurred by the Enlarged PPC Group for the management of the Infrastructure Assets. Details of the
above adjustments are set out in part 3 of appendix III of the PPC Circular.

Cash Earnings per PPC Share of the PPC Group (as enlarged by the conversion of all the Preference
Shares) for the year ended 30 June, 2002 is calculated based on 5,253,622,306 PPC Shares, being
2,059,968,000 PPC Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date, plus 3,193,654,306 PPC Shares to be
issued upon conversion of all the Preference Shares into fully-paid PPC Shares.

The pro forma Cash Earnings per PPC Share of the Enlarged PPC Group immediately following Completion
is calculated based on 17,807,590,018 PPC Shares, being 2,059,968,000 PPC Shares in issue as at the
Latest Practicable Date, plus the 12,553,967,712 PPC Shares to be issued for the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition and 3,193,654,306 PPC Shares to be issued upon conversion
of all the Preference Shares into fully-paid PPC Shares.

Net Debt equals Total Debt less bank balances and cash. Net Cash equals bank balances and cash less
Total Debt.

Total Capitalisation equals Total Debt plus net assets.

The pro forma Adjusted Interest Expense of the Enlarged PPC Group equals combined finance costs of
the Enlarged PPC Group as stated in Part 3 of appendix III of the PPC Circular plus interest expense and
other incidental borrowing costs of approximately HK$294 million on the estimated HK$7,600 million
new bank loans and the BOC Loan to be undertaken by the Enlarged PPC Group, as stated in part 3
note 1(ii) of appendix III of the PPC Circular.

Total Debt equals bank loans and overdrafts plus long term liabilities (both current and non-current
portions) plus amount due to NWI (both current and non-current portions) less loans from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries.

THE INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS SALE AGREEMENT

Date:

Vendor:

Purchaser:

21 October, 2002

NWI

PPC

The Infrastructure Assets Disposal

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement:

NWI will procure Lotsgain (its wholly-owned subsidiary) to sell, and PPC will
purchase, the entire issued share capital of the Sale Companies;

NWI will procure Lotsgain to assign all of its rights and benefits under the outstanding
Shareholder’s Loans to PPC absolutely;
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. NWI will enter into the Deed of Trust in respect of the transfer of the rights and
benefits, liabilities and obligations accruing to NWI (from the date of Completion) in
respect of its indirect interest (through NWCI) in the Tangjin Highway Companies
(including the Tangjin Loans) to PPC. Pursuant to the Deed of Trust, PPC will also
undertake to repay the principal and interest outstanding from NWCI (as borrower)
under the BOC Loan from time to time as they fall due; and

. PPC will make an up-front payment representing the face value of the NWI Notes,
subject to adjustment, if any.

The Sale Companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of NWI through which NWI holds its
effective interests in the Operating Companies (other than the Tangjin Highway Companies held
by NWCI). Following completion of the Reorganisation, the net assets and the financial results of
the Sale Companies will cease to be consolidated, and NWCI’s interest in the Tangjin Highway
Companies will cease to be equity accounted for, in the consolidated financial statements of NWI.

Following Completion, the Sale Companies will become wholly-owned subsidiaries of PPC
and will be consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of PPC, and the Tangjin Highway
Companies will be equity accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of PPC.

The Infrastructure Assets represent all of NWI’s interests in its traditional infrastructure
assets, that is, road, bridge, tunnel, water treatment and power plant investments.

Consideration

The aggregate consideration payable by PPC to NWI pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal amounts to approximately HK$10,227 million and has been determined on the basis of
arm’s length negotiations (with reference to an independent valuation of the Infrastructure Assets
prepared by Sallmanns valuing the Infrastructure Assets at approximately HK$10,160 million as at
30 June, 2002 which, after adjusting for certain corporate expenses and the Book Value, comes to
approximately HK$10,227 million).

The value of the consideration represents approximately 1.13 times of the audited pro forma
net tangible assets of the Infrastructure Assets together with the Shareholder’s Loans and the
Tangjin Loans as at 30 June, 2002. The valuation of the Infrastructure Assets was determined on
an income approach known as the discounted cash flow method. Details of the valuation of the
Infrastructure Assets and the rationale for using the discounted cash flow method are set out in the
letter from Sallmanns, which is set out in appendix III of this circular. The Wuhan Bridge has not
been valued by Sallmanns because it has ceased toll collection from 1 October, 2002 and NWI is
negotiating with the Wuhan government for compensation.

The aggregate consideration is to be satisfied by:
. the payment of the Cash Consideration, which will be financed by external loans and
internal resources of PPC, by PPC to NWI (subject to adjustment, if any, as set out

in the section headed “Adjustment to the Cash Consideration” below);

. the issuance of the NWI Consideration Shares by PPC to NWI or its nominee at the
Issue Price; and

. the undertaking by PPC to repay the principal and interest outstanding from NWCI
under the BOC Loan.
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Adjustment to the Cash Consideration

If any additional shareholder’s loans are made by NWI and/or Lotsgain to the Sale Group
Companies or by NWCI to the Tangjin Highway Companies between 1 October, 2002 and
Completion and not repaid before Completion, PPC will acquire such loans for cash at their face
value. If any Shareholder’s Loans or Tangjin Loans are repaid between 1 October, 2002 and
Completion, the Cash Consideration will be reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis. A joint
announcement will be made by NWI and PPC if there is any material change to the Shareholder’s
Loans and/or the Tangjin Loans. There has been no material change in the balance of the
Shareholder’s Loans and/or the Tangjin Loans since 30 September, 2002 up to the Latest Practicable
Date.

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, PPC undertakes that, if so requested
by NWI in certain circumstances, PPC will execute a deed poll to assume the liabilities of NWI
under the outstanding NWI Notes with effect from Completion. In such event, the Cash Consideration
will be reduced by such amount representing the outstanding liabilities of NWI under the NWI
Notes which will have been assumed by PPC.

PPC is acquiring an effective interest of approximately 48.86% in Wuhan Bridge from NWI
at the Book Value, subject to adjustment depending on the Compensation Amount. If the
Compensation Amount exceeds the Book Value, PPC will pay to NWI an amount equivalent to half
of the amount by which the Compensation Amount exceeds the Book Value. If the Compensation
Amount is less than the Book Value, NWI will pay to PPC an amount equivalent to the amount by
which the Book Value exceeds the Compensation Amount.

NWI Consideration Shares

The NWI Consideration Shares, when issued, will rank pari passu in all respects with the
PPC Shares then in issue, including the right to receive any dividend declared after the date of
Completion. The NWI Consideration Shares represent:

. approximately 41.41% of the existing issued ordinary share capital of PPC;

. approximately 5.84% of the issued ordinary share capital of PPC as enlarged by the
issuance of all the Consideration Shares but before conversion of the Preference
Shares; and

. approximately 4.79% of the issued ordinary share capital of PPC as enlarged by the
issuance of all the Consideration Shares and conversion in full of all the Preference
Shares.

The Issue Price of approximately HK$0.9327 per NWI Consideration Share has been
determined with reference to an independent valuation of PPC prepared by Chesterton. The valuation
of PPC was determined on an income approach known as the price/earnings multiple method.
Details of the valuation of PPC and the rationale for using the price/earnings multiple method are
set out in the letter from Chesterton, which is set out in appendix V of this circular. The Issue
Price has been determined on the basis of 2,059,968,000 PPC Shares and 3,193,654,306 Preference
Shares in issue and a valuation of PPC by Chesterton of HK$4,900 million. The Issue Price
represents:

. a premium of approximately 132.01% to the average closing price of approximately

HK$0.4020 per PPC Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange from 2 October, 2002 to
16 October, 2002, being the last 10 trading days prior to 17 October, 2002 (the date
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on which trading in the PPC Shares on the Stock Exchange was suspended pending
the issue of the Announcement);

. a premium of approximately 119.46% to the closing price of HK$0.4250 per PPC
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 16 October, 2002, being the last trading
day prior to 17 October, 2002 (the date on which trading in the PPC Shares on the
Stock Exchange was suspended pending the issue of the Announcement);

. a premium of approximately 69.58% and 119.20% to the highest and lowest closing
prices of HK$0.5500 and HK$0.4255 respectively per PPC Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange during the period from 16 October, 2000 to 16 October, 2002, being
the last two calendar years prior to the date of the Announcement; and

. a premium of approximately 112.85%, 116.55%, 118.94% and 114.17% to the average
closing prices for the periods of 30, 60, 90 and 120 trading days up to the Latest
Practicable Date (inclusive) of HK$0.4382, HK$0.4307, HK$0.4260 and HK$0.4355
respectively per PPC Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The NWI Board believes that the Issue Price and the Cash Consideration are fair and
reasonable. The Issue Price represents a premium of about 33.09% to the audited net tangible asset
value of the PPC Group as at 30 June, 2002 of approximately HK$0.7008 per PPC Share on the
basis of 2,059,968,000 PPC Shares and 3,193,654,306 Preference Shares in issue without taking
into account any PPC Shares which may be issued upon any exercise of the options granted under
PPC’s employee share option scheme.

Conditions of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal

Completion of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal is conditional upon, among other things,
the following Infrastructure Assets Disposal Conditions:

. the passing at a general meeting of NWI by the Independent NWI Shareholders of a
resolution to approve the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and transactions
contemplated therein (including, but not limited to, the termination and release of
NWD and CTFEL from the non-compete agreement entered into by them on 17
September, 1995 (as amended by a supplemental non-compete agreement dated 22
December, 1997), details of which are set out in the sub-section headed “Non-compete
undertaking given by NWD and CTFEL in favour of NWI” in this circular);

. PPC having obtained financing for the Cash Consideration on terms satisfactory to
PPC and all the conditions precedent relevant to such financing arrangements having
been fulfilled (or waived) in accordance with the terms thereof, save for the condition
therein relating to the obligations of NWI and PPC under the Infrastructure Assets
Sale Agreement;

. the passing at a general meeting of PPC by the Independent PPC Shareholders, or the
PPC Shareholders, as the case may be, of a resolution to approve the Infrastructure
Assets Sale Agreement and transactions contemplated therein, the increase in the
authorised share capital of PPC and the allotment and issuance of the NWI
Consideration Shares;
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. all the conditions precedent to the Services Assets Sale Agreement having been fulfilled
(or waived) in accordance with the terms thereof, save for the condition therein
relating to the obligations of NWI and PPC under the Infrastructure Assets Sale
Agreement;

. the Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of, and permission to deal in, the
NWI Consideration Shares and the PPC Shares to be issued upon conversion of the
Preference Shares and such approval not having been subsequently revoked prior to
Completion;

. the release of NWI from certain guarantees in relation to loans taken out by Asia
Container Terminals Limited to facilitate it in completing the construction of Container
Terminal No. 9 on Tsing Yi Island, New Territories, Hong Kong and such release
remaining in full force and effect;

. the waiver of pre-emptive right from the existing shareholders of certain Sale Group
Companies and the release of NWI and Lotsgain from certain related guarantees and
such waiver and release remaining in full force and effect;

. the passing at a general meeting of NWI of a resolution to approve a distribution in
specie of the PPC Distribution Shares to the NWI Shareholders in accordance with
the articles of association of NWI; and

. the Bermuda Monetary Authority granting all necessary consents and approvals in
respect of the allotment and issuance of the NWI Consideration Shares and any
matters or actions contemplated by the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement.

Under the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, there are provisions allowing for the waiver
of certain of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal Conditions. Completion of the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal will take place on the later of (i) 15 January, 2003; or (ii) the third business day (Saturdays
excepted) after the day on which the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement becomes unconditional,
or on such other date as NWI and PPC may mutually agree in writing. Completion of the
Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and the Services Assets Sale Agreement are inter-conditional
and, subject to satisfaction or waiver of the relevant conditions, will take place simultaneously.

If the Infrastructure Assets Disposal Conditions are not satisfied or waived on or before 30
June, 2003 (or such other date as NWI and PPC may agree), the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement
will lapse and an announcement will be made accordingly. The NWI Board and the PPC Board
expect the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement to be completed on or about 15 January, 2003.

Information on the Infrastructure Assets

The Infrastructure Assets comprise all of NWI’s effective interests in the Highway Companies,
the Tangjin Highway Companies, the Bridge Companies, the Power Companies and the Water
Companies.

The Highway Companies operate a total of 34 toll roads in Guangdong, Guangxi, Shanxi
and Wuhan in the PRC and the Tate’s Cairn Tunnel in Hong Kong. The Tangjin Highway Companies
operate the Tangjin Expressway (Tianjin North Section) in Tianjin in the PRC. The Bridge
Companies operate three toll bridges in Guangdong and Tianjin in the PRC. NWI has an effective
interest of approximately 48.86% in the Bridge Company which owns the Wuhan Bridge.
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The Highway Companies, the Tangjin Highway Companies and the Bridge Companies provide
a network of expressways, roadways and bridges for freight and passenger transport in Guangdong,
Guangxi, Shanxi, Tianjin and Wuhan in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Power Companies operate four power plants in Guangdong and Sichuan in the PRC and
one power plant in Macau.

The Water Companies operate one water treatment plant in Macau, 15 water treatment
plants in the PRC and one microfiltration equipment company in the PRC.

The NWI Board currently has no plans to dispose of any other operations of the NWI Group
to the PPC Group. Any future transactions between the NWI Group and the PPC Group will be
subject to the Listing Rules.

Use of Proceeds by NWI

The NWI Consideration Shares will be distributed by NWI to the NWI Shareholders as
described in the section headed “The Distribution” below.

The Cash Consideration will be used by NWI to voluntarily repay NWI’s existing creditors
in the aggregate amount of approximately HK$8,545 million.

Non-compete undertaking of NWI

Pursuant to the terms of the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, NWI has given a non-
compete undertaking to PPC such that, among other things, NWI will not and will procure that its
subsidiaries will not in any relevant capacity during 15 years from the date of Completion directly
or indirectly carry on any investment, development, operation or management of toll roads, toll
bridges, tunnels, water treatment plants or power plants or the manufacture, trading or sale of
water treatment equipment anywhere in the world (other than certain permitted activities).

Non-compete undertaking given by NWD and CTFEL in favour of NWI

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and subject to the approval of the
Independent NWI Shareholders, NWI, NWD and CTFEL will, on Completion, execute a termination
agreement pursuant to which NWD and CTFEL will be released from the non-compete agreement
entered into by them on 17 September, 1995 (as amended by a supplemental non-compete agreement
dated 22 December, 1997) whereby each of NWD and CTFEL undertook, among other things, that
it will not and will procure that its subsidiaries will not directly or indirectly participate in, hold
any right or interest in or otherwise be involved in any infrastructure projects involving the
development, construction, ownership, operation and/or management of airports, container terminals,
cargo handling and storage facilities, toll roads, expressways, bridges, tunnels, power stations and
water treatment plants in the PRC, Hong Kong or Macau.
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THE SERVICES ASSETS SALE AGREEMENT

Date

21 October, 2002

Parties

Warrantors: NWD and CTFEL
Vendors: NWS Shareholders
Purchaser: PPC

The Services Assets Acquisition

Pursuant to the Services Assets Sale Agreement, the NWS Shareholders will sell, and PPC
will purchase, the entire issued share capital of NWS for a consideration of approximately
HK$10,913 million. NWS is an approximately 52.35%-owned subsidiary of NWD, through which
NWD holds its effective interests in the NWS Group.

Following Completion, NWS will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPC. The NWS
Group represents all of NWD’s interests in the Services Assets.

Consideration

The consideration payable by PPC to the NWS Shareholders pursuant to the Services Assets
Acquisition amounts to approximately HK$10,913 million and has been determined on the basis of
arm’s length negotiations (with reference to an independent valuation of the NWS Group prepared
by American Appraisal, valuing the NWS Group at HK$11,003 million as at 30 June, 2002 which,
after adjusting for the amount of cash dividends of approximately HK$89.61 million elected by the
NWS Shareholders, is equivalent to approximately HK$10,913 million). The valuation of the
operating subsidiaries of the NWS Group has been determined based on an income approach
known as the discounted cash flow method. A summary of American Appraisal’s valuation report
is set out in appendix IV of this circular.

The consideration is to be satisfied by the issuance of the NWS Consideration Shares by
PPC to the NWS Shareholders or their nominees at the Issue Price of approximately HK$0.9327
per NWS Consideration Share, giving PPC an implied equity value of approximately HK$4,900
million (on the basis of 2,059,968,000 PPC Shares and 3,193,654,306 Preference Shares in issue
without taking into account any PPC Shares which may be issued upon any exercise of the options
granted under PPC’s employee share option scheme) before the Reorganisation. The NWS
Consideration Shares represent a share exchange ratio of approximately 8.84 PPC Shares to one
NWS Share, which is arrived at on the basis of the consideration for the Services Assets Acquisition.
The value of the consideration of the entire issued share capital of NWS represents approximately
2.4 times of the audited net tangible assets of the NWS Group as at 30 June, 2002.

Taking into consideration the above reasons and factors, the PPC Board believes that the
consideration of approximately HK$10,913 million in respect of the Services Assets Acquisition is
fair and reasonable. The PPC Board also considers the terms of the Services Assets Sale Agreement
(including the number of NWS Consideration Shares and the Issue Price) to be fair and reasonable
and in the best interests of PPC and the PPC Shareholders as a whole.
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NWS Consideration Shares

The NWS Consideration Shares, when issued, will rank pari passu in all respects with the
PPC Shares then in issue, including the right to receive any dividend declared after the date of
Completion. The NWS Consideration Shares represent:

. approximately 568.02% of the existing issued ordinary share capital of PPC;

. approximately 80.07% of the issued ordinary share capital of PPC as enlarged by the
issuance of all the Consideration Shares but before conversion of the Preference
Shares; and

. approximately 65.71% of the issued ordinary share capital of PPC as enlarged by the
issuance of all the Consideration Shares and conversion in full of the Preference
Shares.

The Issue Price has been determined with reference to an independent valuation of PPC
prepared by Chesterton. The valuation of PPC has been determined based on an income approach
known as the price/earnings multiple method. A summary of Chesterton’s valuation report is set
out in appendix V of this circular.

The Issue Price represents:

. a premium of approximately 132.01% to the average closing price of approximately
HK$0.4020 per PPC Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange from 2 October, 2002 to
16 October, 2002, being the last 10 trading days in the PPC Shares on the Stock
Exchange prior to 17 October, 2002 (the date on which trading in the PPC Shares on
the Stock Exchange was suspended pending the issue of the Announcement); and

. a premium of approximately 119.46% to the closing price of HK$0.4250 per PPC
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 16 October, 2002, being the last trading
day prior to 17 October, 2002 the date on which trading in the PPC Shares on the
Stock Exchange was suspended pending the issue of the Announcement);

. a premium of approximately 69.58% and 119.20% to the highest and lowest closing
prices of HK$0.5500 and HK$0.4255 respectively per PPC Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange during the period from 16 October, 2000 to 16 October, 2002, being
the last two calendar years prior to the date of the Announcement; and

. a premium of approximately 112.58%, 116.55%, 118.94% and 114.17% to the average
closing prices for the periods of 30, 60, 90 and 120 trading days up to the Latest
Practicable Date (inclusive) of HK$0.4382, HK$0.4307, HK$0.4260 and HK$0.4355
respectively per PPC Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The PPC Board believes that the Issue Price is fair and reasonable. The Issue Price represents
a premium of about 33.09% to the audited net tangible asset value of the PPC Group as at 30 June,
2002 of approximately HK$0.7008 per PPC Share on the basis of 2,059,968,000 PPC Shares and
3,193,654,306 Preference Shares in issue without taking into account any PPC Shares which may
be issued upon any exercise of the options granted under PPC’s employee share option scheme.
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Conditions of the Services Assets Acquisition

Completion of the Services Assets Acquisition is conditional upon, among other things, the
following Services Assets Acquisition Conditions:

. the passing at a general meeting of NWD by the Independent NWD Shareholders of a
resolution to approve the Reorganisation and related matters;

. the passing at a general meeting of NWI by the Independent NWI Shareholders of a
resolution to approve the Services Assets Sale Agreement and transactions contemplated
therein;

. the passing at a general meeting of PPC by the Independent PPC Shareholders, or the
PPC Shareholders, as the case may be, of a resolution to approve the Services Assets
Sale Agreement and transactions contemplated therein, the increase in the authorised
share capital of PPC and the allotment and issuance of the NWS Consideration Shares;

. all the conditions precedent to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement having been
fulfilled (or waived) in accordance with the terms thereof, save for the condition
therein relating to the obligations of the parties under the Services Assets Sale
Agreement;

. the Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of, and permission to deal in, the
NWS Consideration Shares and such approval not having been subsequently revoked
prior to Completion;

. the Bermuda Monetary Authority granting all necessary consents and approvals in
respect of the allotment and issuance of the NWS Consideration Shares and any
matters or actions contemplated under the Services Assets Sale Agreement; and

. if so required, the consents, licences, authorisations, orders, grants, confirmations,
permissions, registrations and other approvals necessary for the Services Assets
Acquisition by PPC and/or NWS having been obtained by NWD and/or PPC and/or
NWS from appropriate governments, governmental, supranational or trade agencies,
courts or other regulatory bodies or lenders or creditors on terms reasonably satisfactory
to PPC or NWD (as the case may be) and such consents, licences, authorisations,
orders, grants, confirmations, permissions, registrations and other approvals remaining
in full force and effect.

Under the Services Assets Sale Agreement, there are provisions allowing for the waiver of
certain of the Services Assets Acquisition Conditions. Completion of the Services Assets Acquisition
will take place on the later of (i) 15 January, 2003; or (ii) the third business day (Saturdays
excepted) after the day on which the Services Assets Sale Agreement becomes unconditional, or on
such other date as NWD and PPC may mutually agree in writing. Completion of the Services
Assets Sale Agreement and the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement are inter-conditional and,
subject to satisfaction or waiver of the relevant conditions, will take place simultaneously.

If the Services Assets Acquisition Conditions are not satisfied or waived on or before 30
June, 2003 (or such other date as NWD and PPC may agree), the Services Assets Sale Agreement
will lapse. The PPC Board expects the Services Assets Sale Agreement to be completed on or
about 15 January, 2003.
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Non-compete and engagement undertakings of NWD

It is a term of the Services Assets Sale Agreement that, at Completion, NWD and PPC will
enter into a deed of non-compete and engagement undertakings pursuant to which NWD will
undertake to PPC that within the period of 15 years from the date of Completion, NWD will not
and will procure that its subsidiaries (other than members of the PPC Group) will not (other than
pursuant to certain exceptions), directly or indirectly, participate in, hold any right or interest in
any business in the nature of:

. any of the services comprised in the Services Assets anywhere within Asia; or
. any of the projects comprised in the Infrastructure Assets anywhere in the world.

In addition, NWD will, pursuant to the deed of non-compete and engagement undertakings
(subject to certain qualifications), undertake to PPC, in relation to all requirements in Hong Kong
of the NWD Group for the provision of any services comprised in the Services Assets, to engage
the PPC Group for the provision of such services for a period of 15 years from the date of
Completion. For details of the deed of non-compete and engagement undertakings, please refer to
the PPC Circular.

Non-Disposal Undertaking

Under the Services Assets Sale Agreement, each of the NWS Shareholders has given an
undertaking to PPC not to sell, encumber or otherwise dispose of any of the NWS Consideration
Shares allotted to it within a period of six months following completion of the Services Assets
Acquisition, except with the prior consent of PPC or for disposal of any of the NWS Consideration
Shares to NWD or its nominee. For details of the non-disposal undertaking, please refer to the
PPC Circular.

Information on the NWS Group

The NWS Group’s businesses are currently organised into five major operating divisions,
namely facilities, contracting, transport, financial and environmental services. A brief description
of each division is set out below.

Facilities

Under the facilities division, the NWS Group hosted 2,296 events and more than 5.1 million
visitors for the year ended 30 June, 2002 at the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre. The
NWS Group also has approximately 150,000 household units (making it one of the largest property
managers in Hong Kong), more than 60,000 car park spaces and more than 120 million square feet
of commercial and industrial premises under its management. The NWS Group is also one of the
largest security and guarding, cleaning and laundry companies in Hong Kong.

(a)  Convention and exhibition operations: the principal operating company is Hong
Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre (Management) Limited (wholly-owned by
NWS) which operates and manages the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre
and provides consultancy and advisory services in relation to design and operation of
convention and exhibition facilities and related functions such as the setting up of
media and broadcasting centres for major international functions.
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(b)  Property management: the principal operating companies are Urban Property
Management Limited, Kiu Lok Service Management Company Limited and Urban
Parking Limited (all wholly-owned by NWS) and International Property Management
Limited (99%-owned by NWS) which undertake the provision of property management
services and related services, including property sales and leasing agency, property
management consultancy and carpark management.

(c)  Security and guarding: the principal operating companies are General Security (HK)
Limited and Uniformity Security Company Limited (both wholly-owned by NWS),
which provide a full range of security and related business including guarding services
in the residential, commercial and industrial sectors, security system installation,
maintenance and alarm monitoring, armoured transport services and supply of security
products.

(d)  Cleaning and laundry: the principal operating companies are Pollution & Protection
Services Limited, Wai Hong Cleaning & Pest Control Company Limited and New
China Laundry Limited (all wholly-owned by NWS) which provide a diversified
range of services, including building and office cleaning, and laundry.

Contracting

The NWS Group’s contracting division has built numerous landmark buildings in Hong
Kong, Macau and the PRC including the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, Times
Square, Grand Hyatt Hotel, Hong Kong Parkview and Chi Lin Nunnery in Hong Kong, Macau
International Airport and the New World Centre in Beijing.

(a)  Construction: the principal operating company is Hip Hing Construction Company
Limited (wholly-owned by NWS), which provides a comprehensive range of
construction and related services such as building construction, civil engineering,
foundation, demolition, building services, decoration and fitting-out works, construction
management, building equipment and materials supply. The NWS Group also provides
a broad range of related services covering the provision of individual specialist
construction services to the complete design and construction of buildings on a turnkey
basis.

(b)  Electrical and mechanical engineering: the principal operating companies are Young’s
Engineering Holdings Limited and Tridant Engineering Company Limited (both wholly-
owned by NWS), which provide and install a wide range of building-related electrical
and mechanical engineering works including air-conditioning, heating and ventilation
systems, fire services systems, plumbing and drainage systems, and electrical systems.
The range of services cover the provision of individual specialist electrical and
mechanical engineering trade services to the complete design and installation of
electrical and mechanical systems.

Transport

The principal operating companies are New World First Bus Services Limited, New World
First Ferry Services Limited and New World First Ferry Services (Macau) Limited, all of which
are wholly-owned by NWS. New World First Bus Services Limited was awarded the bus franchise
of 88 routes in March 1998 and built up a fleet size of 760 buses currently serving 100 routes in
Hong Kong. New World First Ferry Services Limited operates a total of 11 routes serving outlying
islands and inner harbour routes. New World First Ferry Services (Macau) Limited provides ferry
services between Hong Kong and Macau.
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Financial

The principal operating companies are New World Insurance Services Limited (wholly-
owned by NWS), Tai Fook Securities Group Limited (20%-owned by NWS) and Tricor Holdings
Limited (23%-owned by NWS), which provide international risk management and insurance broking
services, securities services and secretarial services respectively.

Environmental

The principal operating companies are Hong Kong Island Landscape Company Limited
(wholly-owned by NWS) and Far East Landfill Technologies Limited (47%-owned by NWS).
Hong Kong Island Landscape Company Limited provides landscaping consultancy, plant hire and
maintenance services, while Far East Landfill Technologies Limited operates the North East New
Territories Landfill in Fanling, one of Asia’s largest landfill sites.

THE DISTRIBUTION

NWI will convert all the Preference Shares into fully-paid PPC Shares immediately prior to
Completion in the ratio of one Preference Share to one PPC Share according to the terms of the
Preference Shares.

Immediately following Completion and the conversion in full of all the Preference Shares,
NWI will hold an aggregate of approximately 5,592 million PPC Distribution Shares, representing
approximately 31.40% of the enlarged issued ordinary share capital of PPC after taking into
account the issuance of the Consideration Shares, but without taking into account any PPC Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of any share options granted under the employee share option
scheme of PPC.

The NWI Board has passed a resolution, subject to the approval of the NWI Shareholders in
general meeting, to distribute the PPC Distribution Shares to the NWI Shareholders by way of a
distribution in specie in the ratio of approximately 5.87 PPC Distribution Shares to one NWI Share
held on the Record Date (based upon 952,180,007 NWI Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable
Date without taking into account any new NWI Shares which may be issued after the Latest
Practicable Date upon conversion of the convertible bonds due 2003 or upon exercise of the share
options granted under the NWI employee share option scheme).

No distribution of the PPC Distribution Shares will be made to NWI Shareholders in respect
of fractional entitlements. NWI will sell any PPC Distribution Shares aggregated from fractional
entitlements, and will keep the proceeds from such sale for its own benefit.

Conditions of the Distribution

The Distribution is conditional upon, among other things:

. completion of the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement;
. completion of the Services Assets Sale Agreement; and
. the passing of an ordinary resolution by the NWI Shareholders at a general meeting

approving the Distribution.
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Closure of Register of Members of NWI and Registration Procedures

If the ordinary resolutions set out in the notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting are
passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting, the register of members of NWI will be closed from
7 January, 2003 to 9 January, 2003 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the
entitlements of the NWI Shareholders to the PPC Distribution Shares under the Distribution. No
transfer of NWI Shares may be registered during the book closure period.

In order to qualify for the Distribution, all transfers accompanied by the relevant NWI
share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch registrar of NWI, Standard
Registrars Limited, at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
by no later than 4:00 p.m. on 6 January, 2003.

Share Certificates of the PPC Distribution Shares

Definitive certificates of the PPC Distribution Shares are expected to be despatched by
ordinary mail to the NWI Shareholders, at their own risk, by no later than 22 January, 2003,
assuming that Completion will take place on 15 January, 2003.

NWI Shareholders should note that the Distribution is conditional upon, among other
things, the completion of the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and the completion of the
Services Assets Sale Agreement, which may or may not take place. NWI Shareholders are
advised to exercise caution when dealing in NWI Shares.

NWI Shareholders should note that if they trade in PPC Shares on the basis of their
entitlements to the PPC Distribution Shares described in this circular prior to receipt of
evidence of title or share certificates of the PPC Distribution Shares, they do so entirely at
their own risk.

Tentative Timetable for the Distribution

Last day of dealings in NWI Shares cum entitlement to the PPC
Distribution Shares pursuant to the Distribution . ..................... 2 January, 2003

Commencement of dealings in NWI Shares
on an ex-entitlement basis ... ........ e 3 January, 2003

Latest time for lodging transfers of NWI Shares

in order to qualify for the Distribution .................. 4:00 p.m. on 6 January, 2003
Register of members for NWIcloses ..................... 7 January to 9 January, 2003
Record Date . ... 9 January, 2003
Distribution in specie of the PPC Distribution Shares .................. 15 January, 2003

Note: The above timetable is indicative only. An announcement will be made should there be major changes to
the above timetable.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Financial Information on the Infrastructure Assets

The audited pro forma combined profit and loss accounts of the Sale Group Companies and
the Tangjin Highway Companies for the two years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002 are as follows:

Year ended 30 June

2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 617,210 709,919
Operating costs (361,404) (273,950)
Operating profit before financing 255,806 435,969
Finance costs (114,208) (93,461)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities 579,550 524,719
Profit before taxation 721,148 867,227
Taxation (72,118) (49,985)
Profit after taxation 649,030 817,242
Minority interests (4,985) (39,813)
Profit attributable to shareholders 644,045 777,429

The audited pro forma combined total assets of the Sale Group Companies and the Tangjin
Highway Companies as at 30 June, 2002 was approximately HK$13,220 million and the audited
pro forma combined net tangible assets of the Sale Group Companies and the Tangjin Highway
Companies, together with the Shareholder’s Loans and Tangjin Loans due to the NWI Group as at
30 June, 2002 aggregated to approximately HK$9,024 million. For details on the financial
information on the Infrastructure Assets, please refer to part 1 of appendix I of the PPC Circular.
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Financial Information on NWS

The audited consolidated profit and loss accounts of NWS for the two years ended 30 June,

2001 and 2002 are as follows:

Year ended 30 June

2002 2001
HK$°000 HK$’000
Turnover 11,666,265 11,712,917
Cost of sales (9,855,578) (10,000,822)
Gross profit 1,810,687 1,712,095
Other revenues 211,204 151,829
General and administrative expenses (837,155) (821,262)
Other operating expenses (125,476) (223,525)
Operating profit before financing 1,059,260 819,137
Finance costs (82,288) (110,741)
Share of profits less losses of
Jointly controlled entities 93,440 51,619
Associated companies 55,558 229,199
Profit before taxation 1,125,970 989,214
Taxation (193,142) (169,565)
Profit after taxation 932,828 819,649
Minority interests (84,091) (758)
Profit attributable to shareholders 848,737 818,891

The audited consolidated total assets and net tangible assets of NWS as at 30 June, 2002
were approximately HK$13,863 million and HK$4,525 million respectively. For details on the
financial information on NWS, please refer to part 2 of appendix I of the PPC Circular.

Financial effects of the Reorganisation on the NWI Group
The completion of the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and the Services Assets Sale
Agreement, the conversion in full of the Preference Shares and the Distribution are inter-conditional

and will take place simultaneously, accordingly, the Reorganisation will be treated as a single
transaction.
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Assuming the Reorganisation had been completed on 30 June, 2002, the NWI Board estimates
that the Reorganisation would result in a gain of approximately HK$0.6 billion to NWI. Such gain
does not take into account: (i) the change in the net asset values of the Sale Group Companies, the
Tangjin Highway Companies and the PPC Group as a result of the profit or loss of the Sale Group
Companies, the Tangjin Highway Companies and the PPC Group for the period from 1 July, 2002
to the date of Completion; and (ii) the movement in the Shareholder’s Loans and the Tangjin Loans
from 1 July, 2002 to 30 September, 2002 which, in aggregate, could significantly affect the results
of the Reorganisation.

INFORMATION ON THE NWI GROUP

The NWI Group is principally engaged in the development, investment, operation and/or
management of and in: (i) toll roads, expressways, bridges and tunnels; (ii) water treatment plants
and microfiltration equipment company; (iii) power plants; (iv) container terminals; (v) cargo
handling and storage facilities; and (vi) telecommunications, media and technology businesses, in
Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. NWI’s non-traditional infrastructure projects include mobile
communications and data transmission operations in the PRC and the United States of America.

SHAREHOLDERS’ APPROVALS

As PPC is a 75.00%-owned subsidiary of NWI, the Infrastructure Assets Disposal constitutes
a major and connected transaction for NWI under the Listing Rules and therefore requires the
approval of the Independent NWI Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting. Mombasa
Limited, the controlling shareholder of NWI and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWD,
and its associates, will not be allowed to vote on the resolution approving the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal. Financial Concepts Investment Limited, a shareholder of NWI and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWS, which, in turn, is approximately 52.35%-owned by NWD, and its associates,
will not be allowed to vote on the resolution approving the Infrastructure Assets Disposal.

As PPC is a 75.00%-owned subsidiary of NWI and NWS is an approximately 52.35%-
owned subsidiary of NWD, the controlling shareholder of NWI, the Services Assets Acquisition
constitutes a major and connected transaction for NWI under the Listing Rules and therefore
requires the approval of the Independent NWI Shareholders at a general meeting. Mombasa Limited,
Financial Concepts Investment Limited, NWD and their respective associates will not be allowed
to vote on the resolution approving the Services Assets Acquisition.

The NWI Independent Board Committee has been formed to consider the Infrastructure
Assets Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition. An independent financial adviser, Anglo
Chinese, has been appointed to advise the NWI Independent Board Committee regarding the
Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition.

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

A notice convening the Extraordinary General Meeting to be held at Room 405, Level 4,
Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at 11:30
a.m. on 12 December, 2002 is set out on pages 51 to 52 of this circular. At the Extraordinary
General Meeting, ordinary resolutions will be proposed to approve: (i) the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal; (ii) the Services Assets Acquisition; and (iii) the Distribution.
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A form of proxy for use at the Extraordinary General Meeting is enclosed. Whether or not
you are able to attend the Extraordinary General Meeting, you are requested to complete the
enclosed form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return the same to
the head office of New World Infrastructure Limited at 9th Floor, New World Tower 2, 18 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event no less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for the holding of the Extraordinary General Meeting or any adjournment thereof.
Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting at the
Extraordinary General Meeting or any adjournment thereof should you so desire.

RECOMMENDATION

Taking into account the above reasons and factors, the NWI Board is of the opinion that the
Infrastructure Assets Disposal, the Services Assets Acquisition and the Distribution are in the best
interests of NWI and the NWI Shareholders, and the terms of the Infrastructure Assets Sale
Agreement, the Services Assets Sale Agreement and the Distribution are fair and reasonable.
Accordingly, the NWI Board recommends the NWI Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary
resolutions in respect of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal, the Services Assets Acquisition and the
Distribution.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the following sections of this
circular:

(1) Letter from the NWI Independent Board Committee;
(i)  Letter from Anglo Chinese;
(ii1) Financial information of the NWI Group set out in appendix I of this circular;

(iv) Pro forma financial information of the NWI Group post-Reorganisation set out in
appendix II of this circular;

(v)  Valuation of the Infrastructure Assets set out in appendix III of this circular;
(vi)  Valuation of the NWS Group set out in appendix IV of this circular;
(vii) Valuation of PPC set out in appendix V of this circular;
(viii) General information on NWI set out in appendix VI of this circular; and
(ix) the PPC Circular set out in appendix VII of this circular.
Yours faithfully,
By order of the Board of
NEW WORLD INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Mr. Chan Wing-Tak, Douglas
Managing Director
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New World Infrastructure Limited
e FRrERR LI

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
18 November, 2002
To the NWI Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
INTRODUCTION

We refer to the circular dated 18 November, 2002 (the “Circular”) issued by NWI of which
this letter forms part. Terms defined in the Circular have the same meanings when used in this
letter.

We, being the independent non-executive NWI Directors constituting the NWI Independent
Board Committee, have been appointed by the NWI Board to advise you as to whether, in our
opinion, the Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition are in the best
interests of NWI and the NWI Shareholders and whether the terms of the Infrastructure Assets
Sale Agreement and the Services Assets Sale Agreement are fair and reasonable so far as the
Independent NWI Shareholders are concerned.

Details of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition and the
terms of the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and the Services Assets Sale Agreement are
summarised in the “Letter from the NWI Board”. In addition, as the NWI Independent Board
Committee, we have been advised by Anglo Chinese in considering the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition. You are strongly urged to read Anglo Chinese’s
letter to the NWI Independent Board Committee.

RECOMMENDATION
As the NWI Independent Board Committee, we have discussed with the management of

NWI the reasons for, and benefits of, the Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Services Assets
Acquisition. We also understand the basis upon which Anglo Chinese’s advice has been given.
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Taking into account the advice of Anglo Chinese, the NWI Independent Board Committee
considers that the Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition are in the
best interests of NWI and the NWI Shareholders and that the terms of the Infrastructure Assets
Sale Agreement and the Services Assets Sale Agreement are fair and reasonable so far as the
Independent NWI Shareholders are concerned. Accordingly, the NWI Independent Board Committee
recommends the Independent NWI Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary resolutions in
respect of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition to be proposed at
the Extraordinary General Meeting, the notice of which is set out on pages 51 to 52 of the
Circular.

Yours faithfully,
NWI Independent Board Committee
Dr. Li Kwok-Po, David
Mr. Cheng Wai-Chee, Christopher
Mr. Coull, Gary William John
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The following is the text of the letter from Anglo Chinese to the NWI Independent Board
Committee, prepared for incorporation into this circular in connection with the major and connected
transactions contemplated under the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and the Services Assets

%
%

18 November, 2002

Sale Agreement.

ANGLO CHINESE

CORPORATE FINANCE, LIMITED

LY ESN BRI

40th Floor, Two Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong.

To the NWI Independent Board Committee
New World Infrastructure Limited

9th Floor, New World Tower 2

18 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
INTRODUCTION

We refer to our appointment as an independent financial adviser by NWI to advise the NWI
Independent Board Committee as to the fairness and reasonableness of the Infrastructure Assets
Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition under the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and
the Services Assets Sale Agreement, respectively, details of which are contained in the circular
dated 18 November, 2002 (“this circular”) of which this letter forms part. The Infrastructure
Assets Disposal and the Services Assets Acquisition constitute major and connected transactions
of NWI under the Listing Rules and accordingly, they are subject to the approval of the Independent
NWI Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting to be convened on 12 December, 2002.

The terms used in this letter shall have the same meanings as those defined in the section
headed “Definitions” in this circular unless the context otherwise requires.

In formulating our recommendation, we have relied on the information, representations and
valuations contained or referred to in this circular together with other information and representations
provided to us by the NWI Directors. We have also assumed that such information and
representations were true and accurate at the time they were made and continue to be so at the date
of the despatch of this circular. We have no reason to doubt the truth, accuracy and completeness
of the information and the representations provided to us by the NWI Directors. The NWI Directors
have also confirmed to us that no material facts have been omitted from this circular.

We consider that we have reviewed sufficient information to reach an informed view, to

justify the reliance on the accuracy of the information contained in this circular and to provide a
reasonable basis for our recommendation. We have not, however, carried out any independent
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verification on the information provided to us by the NWI Directors, nor have we conducted any
form of in-depth investigation into the businesses and affairs or the prospects of the NWI Group,
the PPC Group, the NWS Group or any of their respective associates.

Apart from normal professional fees for our services to NWI in respect of the engagement
described above, no arrangement exists whereby Anglo Chinese receives any fees or benefit from
NWI, its subsidiaries or any of their respective associates.

PRINCIPAL FACTORS AND REASONS

In arriving at our opinion, we have taken into consideration the following principal factors
and reasons:

Background and rationale

On 21 October, 2002, NWD, NWI and PPC jointly announced the Reorganisation,
which principally comprises: (i) the proposed disposal of the Infrastructure Assets by NWI
to PPC for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$10,227 million under the
Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement; (ii) the proposed acquisition of NWS by PPC from
NWD and the NWS Shareholders for a share consideration of approximately HK$10,913
million under the Services Assets Sale Agreement; and (iii) the proposed distribution of all
PPC Distribution Shares held and to be held by NWI to its shareholders in the ratio of
approximately 5.87 PPC Distribution Shares to one NWI Share. Please refer to the subsections
headed “Conditions of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal” and “Conditions of the Services
Assets Acquisition” in the section headed “Letter from the NWI Board” in this circular for
conditions of the completion of the Infrastructure Assets Disposal and the Services Assets
Acquisition.

As set out in the subsection headed “Reasons for, and benefits of, the Reorganisation”
in the section headed “Letter from the NWI Board” in this circular, the NWI Board believes
that the Reorganisation will significantly enhance the NWI Group’s operational and capital
structures. The key benefits of the Reorganisation to NWI and the NWI Shareholders,
according to the NWI Board, are summarised as follows:

(1) Reduces NWI’s debt and gearing. The net gearing ratio of NWI is expected to
fall from approximately 72.23% as at 30 June, 2002 to below 15% immediately
after the Reorganisation; and

(ii))  Unlocks value for the NWI Shareholders. The Reorganisation will enable the
NWI Shareholders to hold shares in each of NWI and PPC. Each of the two
companies, post-Reorganisation, will have a clear business strategy and
appropriate capital structure. NWI will focus on telecommunications, media
and technology businesses and PPC will focus on infrastructure, ports
developments and services businesses.

The Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement

The NWI Group is principally engaged in the development, investment, operation
and/or management of and in: (i) toll roads, expressways, bridges and tunnels; (ii) water
treatment plants and microfiltration equipment company; (iii) power plants; (iv) container
terminals; (v) cargo handling and storage facilities in the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau; and
(vi) the TMT Assets in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States of America.
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Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement:

. NWI will procure its wholly-owned subsidiary, Lotsgain to sell, and PPC will
purchase, the entire issued share capital of the Sale Companies;

. NWI will procure Lotsgain to assign all its rights and benefits under the
outstanding Shareholder’s Loans to PPC absolutely;

. NWI will enter into the Deed of Trust in respect of the transfer of the rights
and benefits, liabilities and obligations accruing to NWI (from the date of
Completion) in respect of its indirect interest (through NWCI) in the Tangjin
Highway Companies (including the Tangjin Loans) to PPC. Pursuant to the
Deed of Trust, PPC will also undertake to repay the principal and interest
outstanding from NWCI (as borrower) under the BOC Loan from time to time
as they fall due; and

. PPC will make an up-front payment representing the face value of the NWI
Notes, subject to adjustment, if any.

NWTI has given a non-compete undertaking to PPC whereby NWI and its subsidiaries
undertake that, amongst other things, they will not in any relevant capacity carry out any
investment, development, construction, operation or management of toll roads, toll bridges,
tunnels, power plants, water treatment plants, or the manufacture, trading and sale of water
treatment equipment anywhere in the world other than certain permitted activities for a
period of 15 years commencing from the date of Completion.

Information on the Infrastructure Assets
The Infrastructure Assets consist of NWI’s entire interests in the Highway
Companies, the Tangjin Highway Companies, the Bridge Companies, the Power
Companies and the Water Companies. These assets are summarised below:
(i) Highway Companies and Bridges Companies
The Highway Companies, Tangjin Highway Companies and Bridge
Companies together operate 35 toll roads, 4 bridges and 1 tunnel covering
approximately 1,120.3 km across four provinces in the PRC namely, Guangdong,
Guangxi, Shanxi and Hubei, one municipality in the PRC namely, Tianjin and
one special administrative region of the PRC namely, Hong Kong.
(it)  Power Companies
The Power Companies operate 4 power plants located in two provinces
in the PRC namely, Guangdong and Sichuan and 1 power plant in one special
administrative region of the PRC namely, Macau.

(iii) Water Companies and Water Treatment Companies

The Water Companies operate 1 water treatment plant in Macau, 15
water treatment plants and 1 microfiltration equipment company in the PRC.

Further details of the Infrastructure Assets are set out in the summary valuation
report in appendix III to this circular.
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Financial Information on the Infrastructure Assets

The audited pro forma combined profit and loss accounts of the Sale Group
Companies (through which NWI holds its effective interest in the Infrastructure Assets)
for the two years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002 as set out in this circular are
summarised below:

Energy
and water Toll Toll

HKS$’ million treatment roads bridges Total
30 June, 2002
Turnover 42 424 151 617
Segment results 26 200 30 256
Share of results of

jointly controlled entities 401 175 4 580
Profit attributable to

shareholders 644
30 June, 2001
Turnover 139 417 154 710
Segment results 139 246 51 436
Share of results of jointly

controlled entities 377 142 6 525
Profit attributable to

shareholders 777

The pro forma combined profit attributable to shareholders of the Sale Group
Companies decreased from approximately HK$777 million for the year ended 30
June, 2001 to approximately HK$644 million for the year ended 30 June, 2002,
representing a drop of around 17%. The pro forma net tangible assets together with
the Shareholder’s Loans and Tangjin Loans were approximately HK$9,024 million as
at 30 June, 2002.

The pro forma combined turnover of the Sale Group Companies decreased
from approximately HK$710 million for the year ended 30 June, 2001 to approximately
HK$617 million for the year ended 30 June, 2002, representing a decrease of
approximately 13%. The breakdown of turnover by segments indicated that the decrease
in the pro forma combined turnover was mainly caused by the decrease in turnover
from energy and water treatment segment. The performance of the three segments of
business is discussed below:

(i) Energy and water treatment

The decrease in turnover of this segment was caused by changes in the
accounting treatment of Shunde De Sheng Power Plant Co. Ltd. but had been
offset to a certain extent by the increase in profits from share of results of
jointly controlled entities.
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(ii)  Toll roads

The turnover for the toll roads remained relatively unchanged for the
two years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002.

In Southern Guangdong, the operating profit of Guangzhou City Northern
Ring Road for the year ended 30 June, 2002 was affected by the diversion
effect of Guangyuan East Road. The decrease in operating profit from Southern
Guangdong was offset, to a certain extent, by the improvement of Beijing-
Zhuhai Expressway as a result of approximately 17% increase in its average
daily traffic flow. In Northern Guangdong, result was affected by the operating
loss of Roadway 1906 (Qingcheng Section) in its first year of operation. The
average daily traffic flow of other toll roads in Eastern Guangdong remained
steady.

(iii) Toll Bridges

The turnover of the toll bridges also remained relatively unchanged for
the two years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002.

The performances of the bridges, in general, were benefited by the overall
increase in traffic volume. The average daily traffic flow of Yonghe Bridge
decreased by approximately 14% for the financial year ended 30 June, 2002.
The fall in daily traffic flow of this bridge was mainly caused by the traffic
diversion to Tangjin Expressway (Tianjin North Section) Section II.

For the two financial years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002, turnover of
the Sale Group Companies decreased by approximately 5% and approximately
13% respectively and in tandem with the downward trend in turnover was the
profit attributable to shareholders, which decreased by approximately 6.5%
and 17% respectively over the two financial years.

Consideration
(i) Basis of consideration

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, NWI will dispose
of the Infrastructure Assets to PPC at a total consideration of approximately
HK$10,227 million.

We noted that the total consideration of approximately HK$10,227 million
for the disposal of the Infrastructure Assets has been determined by arm’s
length negotiations with reference to the valuation of the Infrastructure Assets
as at 30 June, 2002 by Sallmanns, an independent valuer, based on, inter alia,
income approach whereby earnings and cash flow projection of the Infrastructure
Assets in future were discounted at appropriate discount rates. The discount
rates used in the valuation, being (a) 10.68% for power and water projects in
Macau and 14.68% for power and water projects in PRC; and (b) 14.84% for
roads and bridges projects, are set out in the summary valuation report in
appendix III to this circular, and have been adjusted to incorporate various
uncertainties including but not limited to liquidity risk, business risk and country
risk. We also noted that Sallmanns had visited certain roads, bridges, water and
power plants of the Infrastructure Assets. We have reviewed the valuation report
including the valuation method and discount rates adopted by Sallmanns and
consider that the valuation of the Infrastructure Assets is reasonable.
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The Infrastructure Assets were valued at approximately HK$10,160
million and after deduction of corporate expenses and the addition of the Book
Value of the Wuhan Bridge, which was not included in the valuation of the
Infrastructure Assets, arrived at approximately HK$10,227 million, representing
approximately 1.13 times of the audited pro forma net tangible assets of the
Infrastructure Assets together with the Shareholder’s Loans and the Tangjin
Loans as at 30 June, 2002 and approximately 9.6 times the EBITDA of the
Infrastructure Assets for the year ended 30 June, 2002, respectively.

(ii)  Settlement of the total consideration

The total consideration of approximately HK$10,227 million will be
settled by:

. the payment of the Cash Consideration in the amount of HK$8,545
million by PPC to NWI, subject to adjustment, if any;

. the issue of approximately 853 million NWI Consideration Shares
by PPC to NWI or its nominee at the Issue Price of approximately
HK$0.9327 each, or approximately HK$796 million in total; and

. the undertaking to pay certain liabilities of NWCI by PPC in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$886 million.

(iii) Assessment of the total consideration

In assessing the fairness of the consideration, in terms of enterprise
value “EV” (being the consideration plus the value of any debt, assumed,
redeemed, repurchased or cancelled and net of any cash directly assumed) to
EBITDA and price to book value ratios, we noted that there are few companies,
whose securities are listed on the Stock Exchange and whose commercial
operations are similar to those of the Infrastructure Assets to be sold by NWI
under the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement. Accordingly, we have reviewed
in our analysis for reference only the companies, which derived revenue from
any of the operations of toll roads, bridges, tunnels, or power plants in Asia,
and whose securities are listed on stock exchanges located in the Asia Pacific
region. These companies might be subject to various risks or uncertainties
unique to their principal places of operation and the study of such uncertainties
are beyond the scope of this letter.

For purpose of reference only, the price to book ratio of approximately
1.13 times and the EV to EBITDA of approximately 9.6 times implied by the
consideration are similar to the average ratios of the companies considered in
the analysis.

Cash Consideration

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, the Cash
Consideration of HK$8,545 million payable by PPC to NWI on the date
of Completion accounted for approximately 84% of the total
consideration. The NWI Directors intend to apply the proceeds from the
Cash Consideration principally to repay NWI’s debt.
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The following table summarises the repayment schedule of the
total long-term bank loans of NWI Group as at 30 June, 2002 based on
appendix I to this circular:

Principal

HK$000

Within one year 535,396
Between one and two years 1,527,810
Between two and five years 4,296,856
After five years 175,863
Total 6,535,925

As at 30 June, 2002, NWI had total bank and other borrowings
(which include the total long-term bank loans summarised above) of
approximately HK$10,436 million, representing a net gearing ratio (i.e.
the ratio of book debt less bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$1,795 million to shareholders’ equity) of approximately 72.23%.
The total long-term bank loans, as shown in the table above, of
approximately HK$6,536 million represent approximately 55% of the
audited consolidated net asset value of NWI of approximately HK$11,963
million as at 30 June, 2002. The net cash outflow from operating activities
of NWI was approximately HK$1,115 million and approximately HK$556
million for the two financial years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002,
respectively.

The application of the Cash Consideration to repay the existing
liabilities of the NWI Group and the undertaking to pay certain liabilities
of the NWI Group by PPC would decrease the net gearing ratio of the
NWI Group from approximately 72.23% to below 15.00%, and increase
the current ratio of the NWI Group from approximately 0.96 times to
approximately 3.1 times.

In view of the above, we concur with the NWI Board’s belief that
the Reorganisation will significantly reduce NWI’s debt and gearing.

Adjustment to the Cash Consideration

We noted that the Cash Consideration of HK$8,545 million may
be adjusted to the extent by: (i) the changes in the outstanding amounts
of the Shareholder’s Loans and the Tangjin Loans; (ii) the outstanding
liabilities of NWI under the NWI Notes; and (iii) differences between
the Compensation Amount and the Book Value of the Wuhan Bridge.

If any additional Shareholder’s Loans or Tangjin Loans are made
between 1 October, 2002 and Completion, PPC will acquire such loans
for cash at their face value. If any Shareholder’s Loans or Tangjin Loans
are repaid between 1 October, 2002 and Completion, the Cash
Consideration will be reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis.
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PPC undertakes that, if so requested by NWI in certain
circumstances, PPC will execute a deed poll to assume the liabilities of
NWI under the outstanding NWI Notes with effect from Completion.
Accordingly, the Cash Consideration will be reduced by the outstanding
liabilities under the NWI Notes.

Having considered the overall arrangements in the Reorganisation,
we are of the view that the terms for this proposed adjustment to the
Cash Consideration are fair and reasonable to the NWI Shareholders as
a whole.

Possible further adjustment to the Cash Consideration in relation to the
Wuhan Bridge

The Wuhan Bridge is located in Wuhan city of the PRC held by
one of the Bridge Companies and forms part of the Infrastructure Assets.
Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, NWI will dispose
of an effective interest of approximately 48.86% in the Wuhan Bridge to
PPC at the Book Value (approximately HK$751 million) subject to
adjustment, if applicable.

According to the NWI Directors, the Wuhan Bridge Construction
Company Limited has received a notification from the Wuhan government
to cease toll collection of the Wuhan Bridge from 1 October, 2002. In
this connection, preliminary discussions between NWI and the Wuhan
government for compensation are in progress and, as at the Latest
Practicable Date, the parties have not reached any agreement. The NWI
Directors expect that there should not be any material adverse impact on
the NWI Group arising from the disposal of the Wuhan Bridge. Of the
total consideration of approximately HK$10,227 million, approximately
HK$751 million is to be paid by PPC for the Wuhan Bridge valued at
the Book Value on the assumption that PPC will receive an amount of
not less than the Book Value from the disposal of the Wuhan Bridge to
the Chinese shareholder or the Wuhan government.

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, if the
Compensation Amount exceeds the Book Value, PPC will pay to NWI
an amount equivalent to half of the amount by which the Compensation
Amount exceeds the Book Value. If the Compensation Amount is less
than the Book Value, NWI will pay to PPC an amount equivalent to the
amount by which the Book Value exceeds the Compensation Amount.

Having considered that the portion in the total consideration
representing the Book Value is likely to be settled by PPC before the
finalisation of the negotiations with the Wuhan government and in view
of the uncertainties faced by PPC, we concur with the NWI Directors
that it is fair and reasonable for: (i) NWI to share with PPC equally any
amount in excess of the Book Value to be received from the Wuhan
government; or (ii) NWI to top up the amount to be received by PPC
from Wuhan government such that the aggregate amount receivable by
PPC equals the Book Value.
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NWI Consideration Shares

Approximately 8% of the total consideration or approximately
HK$796 million will be settled by the issue of approximately 853 million
NWI Consideration Shares at approximately HK$0.9327 each by PPC to
NWI. NWI Shareholders will hold shares in both the NWI Group and
the PPC Group following Completion and the Distribution.

In assessing the fairness of the issue of NWI Consideration Shares
as part of the total consideration, we have made reference to the unaudited
pro forma net tangible asset value and earnings per share of the Enlarged
PPC Group represented by such NWI Consideration Shares, which was
determined, to a certain extent, by the valuation of the Infrastructure
Assets acquired by PPC from NWI under the Infrastructure Assets Sale
Agreement, the valuation of the Services Assets acquired by PPC from
the NWS Shareholders under the Services Assets Sale Agreement and
the valuation of PPC before the completion of such acquisitions. Please
see the paragraph headed “The Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement”
under the section headed “Opinion and recommendation” in this letter
for our recommendation on the Infrastructure Assets Disposal.

The valuation of the Infrastructure Assets has been discussed in
the previous section and the valuation of the Services Assets and PPC
will be discussed in the next section.

The Services Asset Sale Agreement

NWS is a private company principally engaged in, amongst other things, facilities
management (which include property management, security and guarding, cleaning and
laundry services), contracting (which includes construction and engineering services),
transport services, financial services and environmental services.

Pursuant to the Services Assets Sale Agreement, the NWS Shareholders will sell, and
PPC will purchase, the entire issued share capital of NWS for a consideration of approximately
HK$10,913 million.

In addition, NWD will undertake to PPC that for the period of 15 years from the date
of Completion, NWD will not and will procure that its subsidiaries (other than members of
the PPC Group) will not, directly or indirectly, participate in, hold any right or interest in
any business in the nature of any of the services comprised in the Services Assets anywhere
within Asia or any of the projects comprised in the Infrastructure Assets anywhere in the
world.

Each of the NWS Shareholders has given an undertaking to PPC not to dispose of any
of the NWS Consideration Shares allotted to it within a period of six months following
completion of the Services Assets Acquisition, except with the prior consent of PPC or for
disposal of any of the NWS Consideration Shares to NWD or its nominee.
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Financial information on NWS

The audited consolidated profit and loss accounts of NWS for the two years
ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002 set out in this circular are summarised below:

Contracting
and

HK$ million Facilities  engineering Transport Financial Others Total
30 June, 2002
Turnover 1,838 8,134 1,650 23 21 11,666
Segment results 340 412 214 14 54 1,034
Share of results of

associated companies/

jointly controlled

entities 20 110 5 (11) 25 149
Profit attributable to

shareholders 849
30 June, 2001
Turnover 1,727 8,406 1,536 31 13 11,713
Segment results 366 306 164 26 (82) 780
Share of results of

associated companies/

jointly controlled

entities 9 85 7 20 160 281
Profit attributable to

shareholders 819

The audited consolidated net tangible assets of NWS as at 30 June, 2002 were
approximately HK$4,525 million. The audited consolidated turnover of NWS has
been relatively unchanged for the two years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002, while the
profit attributable to shareholders increased from approximately HK$819 million for
the year ended 30 June, 2001 to approximately HK$849 million for the year ended 30
June, 2002.

The performance of the main segments of NWS’ operations is discussed below:
(i) Contract and engineering services

The turnover from this segment decreased slightly from approximately
HK$8,406 million to approximately HK$8,134 million for the year ended 30
June, 2002 while segment results increased from approximately HK$306 million

for the year ended 30 June, 2001 to approximately HK$412 million for the
year ended 30 June, 2002.
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(ii)  Facilities

The turnover from this segment increased from approximately HK$1,727
million to approximately HK$1,838 million for the year ended 30 June, 2002.
The improvement in turnover could be attributable to the increase in turnover
from the cleaning services and property management of NWS.

(iii) Transport services
The turnover from this segment increased from approximately HK$1,536
million to approximately HK$1,650 million for the year ended 30 June, 2002.
The increase in the number of franchise bus routes and passenger volumes had
contributed to the improved result of this segment.
Overall profitability of NWS
In respect of profitability, the profit after taxation of NWS increased by
approximately 10.6% and approximately 13.8% for each of the two financial years
ended 30 June, 2001 and 30 June, 2002.

Other financial information of NWS

The following table summarises the net gearing ratios and related figures of
NWS for the last three financial years ended 30 June, 2000, 2001 and 2002:

As at 30 June,

HKS$ million 2002 2001 2000
Book debt 2,751 1,883 1,313
Cash 2,639 1,847 1,763
Net book debt 112 36 (450)
Net gearing ratio (%) 2.5 0.9 N/A

NWS had a cash balance of approximately HK$2,639 million and book debt of
approximately 2,751 million, giving net book debt of approximately HK$112 million
and net gearing ratio of approximately 2.5% as at 30 June, 2002.

The financial performance of NWS indicated that NWS had maintained ample

liquidity, low gearing ratio and stable growth in the profit attributable to shareholders
in each of the two financial years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002.
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Consideration
(i) Basis of consideration

Under the Services Assets Sale Agreement, the NWS Shareholders will sell,
and PPC will acquire, the entire issued share capital of NWS for a consideration of
approximately HK$10,913 million to be satisfied by the issue of approximately 11,701
million NWS Consideration Shares of approximately HK$0.9327 each to the NWS
Shareholders. We noted that the consideration for NWS was determined by arm’s
length negotiations with reference to the valuation report provided by American
Appraisal, an independent valuer. NWS was valued by American Appraisal at
approximately HK$11,003 million as at 30 June, 2002 based on, inter alia, earnings
and cash flow projection of the Services Assets discounted at appropriate discount
rates which after adjustment of cash dividend of approximately HK$89.61 million
elected by the NWS Shareholders, arrived at approximately HK$10,913 million. The
discount rates used in the valuation, being (a) approximately 10% for contracting,
electrical and mechanical engineering, and property management; (b) approximately
9% for facility management, transport, and environmental and consumer-related
services; (c) approximately 14% for security; (d) approximately 15% for financial
management and investment; and (e) approximately 9.3% for consolidation adjustment
of corporate expenses, are set out in the summary valuation report in appendix IV to
this circular, and have been adjusted to incorporate specific risks of NWS Group. We
have reviewed the valuation report including the valuation method and discount rates
adopted by American Appraisal and consider that the valuation of the Services Assets
is reasonable.

(ii)) Assessment of the consideration

In our analysis of the fairness of the consideration payable by PPC for NWS,
in terms of the price to earning and price to book ratios, we noted that few companies,
whose securities are listed on the Stock Exchange and whose commercial operations
are similar to those of NWS. Accordingly, we have reviewed companies, which derived
revenue from any of the operations of property and facilities management, construction
and contracting services, transportation services, financial services and environmental
services, and whose securities are listed on stock exchanges located in the Asia
Pacific region. These companies might be subject to various risks or uncertainties
unique to their principal places of operation and the study of such uncertainties are
beyond the scope of this letter.

For purpose of reference only, the price to earning and EV to EBITDA ratios
implied by the consideration of approximately 13 times and approximately 7 times,
respectively, are similar to the average ratios of companies considered in the analysis,
while the price to book ratio implied by the consideration of approximately 2.4 times
is above the average ratio. We would however note that the price to book ratio is not
the most appropriate method for the assessment of the fairness of the valuation of the
Services Assets as these assets comprise mainly operations in the service industries.

The acquisition of the Services Assets by PPC will be satisfied by the issue of

the NWS Consideration Shares, the value of which will be based, to a certain extent,
on the valuation of the Services Assets.
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In addition to the independent valuation of the Services Assets, the profitability
of the Services Assets as discussed in the previous section are also important factors
for the determination of the reasonableness of the consideration, and given the proven
profitability and restrained leverage of the Services Assets, we believe the consideration
of approximately HK$10,913 million payable by PPC for the acquisition of the Services
Assets is fair and reasonable to the NWI Shareholders as a whole.

Valuation of PPC
(i) Information on PPC

The PPC Group is principally engaged in investment in, and the development,
operation and management of, terminals in seaports and riverports and related
businesses in Hong Kong and various parts of the PRC. The ordinary share capital of
PPC is owned indirectly as to approximately 75% by NWI.

(it)  Financial Information on PPC

The audited consolidated profit and loss accounts of PPC for the two years
ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002 set out in this circular are summarised below:

HKS$ million

Cargo  Container
handling and handling and Road freight

storage storage service Warehousing Total

30 June, 2002
Turnover 28 90 7 - 125
Segment results (5,449) 15,960 (4,186) - 0,325
Share of results of

associated companies/

jointly controlled entities - 214 - 212 426
Profit attributable to

shareholders 144
30 June, 2001
Turnover 58 71 7 - 136
Segment results (15,150) 11,067 (2,382) - (6,465)
Share of results of

associated companies/

jointly controlled entities - 194 - 201 395
Profit attributable to

shareholders 276
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The financial performance of PPC was affected by the cessation of the
consolidation of the financial results of Nanjing cargo handling and storage operation
and turnover decreased from approximately HK$136 million for the year ended 30
June, 2001 to approximately HK$125 million for the year ended 30 June, 2002,
representing a drop of approximately 8% for the year ended 30 June, 2002. Coupled
with the loss on disposal of interests in subsidiaries and partial disposal of jointly
controlled entities and the impairment losses of fixed assets, profit attributable to
shareholders of PPC decreased from approximately HK$276 million to approximately
HK$144 million for the year ended 30 June, 2002.

(iii) Assessment of the valuation

In assessing the fairness of the valuation of PPC, we have made reference to
the valuation report provided by Chesterton, an independent valuer, based on, inter
alia, the audited net profit of PPC after excluding non-operating and non-recurring
items for the year ended 30 June, 2002. A summary of Chesterton’s valuation report
is attached in appendix V to this circular.

In terms of price to earning and price to book ratios, we noted that few
companies, whose securities are listed on the Stock Exchange and whose commercial
operations are similar to those of PPC. Accordingly, we have reviewed companies,
which derived revenue from any of the operations of cargo handling and storage,
container handling and storage, road freight services and warehousing, and whose
securities are listed on stock exchanges located in the Asia Pacific region. These
companies might be subject to various risks or uncertainties unique to their principal
place of operation and the study of such uncertainties are beyond the scope of this
letter.

For purpose of reference only, the price to book value, EV to EBITDA, and EV
to Adjusted EBITDA ratios implied by the valuation of approximately 1.4 times, 17.8
times and 10.1 times respectively, save for EV to EBITDA, are similar to the average
ratios of the companies considered in the analysis. Given the magnitude of the non-
operating and non-recurring items which included the impairment losses of fixed
assets of approximately HK$120 million and the loss on disposal of subsidiaries and
partial disposal of jointly controlled entities of approximately HK$90 million of the
PPC Group for the financial year ended 30 June, 2002, it is more appropriate to use
the EV to Adjusted EBITDA in the analysis. We also note that the price to earning
ratio implied by the valuation on the basis of the net profit excluding non-operating
and non-recurring items of PPC is approximately 14 times and is similar to the
average ratio. The net profit excluding non-operating and non-recurrent items was
approximately HK$276 million and approximately HK$353 million for the two
financial years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

PPC will issue a total of approximately 15,748 million shares, of which approximately

853 million shares will be issued to NWI as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
all the Infrastructure Assets under the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, approximately
3,194 million shares will be issued to NWI pursuant to the conversion in full of the Preference
Shares, and approximately 11,701 million shares will be issued to the NWS Shareholders
for the acquisition of the Services Assets under the Services Assets Sale Agreement. The
number of shares issued and fully paid in the share capital of PPC will increase from
approximately 2,060 million shares to approximately 17,808 million shares following
Completion.
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As set out in the appendix headed “Pro forma financial information on the Enlarged
PPC Group” to the circular issued by PPC of even date, the pro forma unaudited adjusted
consolidated net tangible assets and profit attributable to shareholders of the Enlarged PPC
Group immediately following Completion were approximately HK$8,889 million and
approximately HK$854 million, respectively, for the year ended 30 June, 2002. The Issue
Price of each PPC Share of approximately HK$0.9327 represents approximately 1.87 times,
19 times and 7.8 times the pro forma unaudited adjusted consolidated net tangible asset
value, profit attributable to shareholders and Cash Earnings per PPC Share of the Enlarged
PPC Group, respectively.

Upon Completion, PPC will be enlarged and improved substantially in terms of the
scope of commercial operations and financial condition. Some of the salient changes in the
financial position of the Enlarged PPC Group on a pro forma basis (as if Completion took
place on 30 June, 2002) are listed below:

. turnover would be approximately HK$12,409 million representing approximately
99.2 times the turnover of PPC Group of approximately HK$125 million;

. attributable profit would be approximately HK$854 million representing
approximately 5.9 times the attributable profit of PPC Group of approximately
HK$144 million;

. attributable profit per PPC Share would be approximately HK$0.048 representing
approximately 1.8 times the attributable profit per PPC Share of approximately
HK$0.027 of the PPC Group (based on approximately 2,060 million PPC Shares
in issue and approximately 3,194 million Preference Shares in issue);

. Cash Earnings per PPC Share would be approximately HK$0.12 representing
approximately 1.7 times the Cash Earnings per PPC Share of approximately
HK$0.072 of the PPC Group;

. cash balance would be approximately HK$2,251 million representing
approximately 6.4 times the cash balance of PPC Group of approximately
HK$349 million;

. total assets would be approximately HK$37,196 million representing
approximately 9.7 times the total assets of PPC Group of approximately
HK$3,817 million;

. net assets would be approximately HK$15,403 million representing
approximately 4.1 times the net assets of PPC Group of approximately HK$3,717
million ; and

. net debt to total capitalisation would be approximately 34.1%.

On this basis, we consider: (i) the issue of approximately 853 million shares at
approximately HK$0.9327 each by PPC to NWI or its nominees as part of the consideration
of approximately HK$10,227 million relating to the disposal of the Infrastructure Assets
under the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement; and (ii) the issue of approximately 11,701
million shares at approximately HK$0.9327 each by PPC to the NWS Shareholders for the
consideration of approximately HK$10,913 million relating to the acquisition of the Services
Assets under the Services Assets Sale Agreement to be fair and reasonable to the NWI
Shareholders as a whole.
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The Distribution

Under the Reorganisation, NWI will convert all the Preference Shares into fully-paid
PPC Shares immediately prior to Completion in the ratio of one Preference Share to one
PPC Share according to the terms of the Preference Shares.

Immediately following Completion and the conversion in full of the Preference Shares,
NWI will hold an aggregate of approximately 5,592 million PPC Shares or approximately
31.40% of the issued share capital of PPC, which PPC Shares consist of approximately
1,545 million PPC Shares held by NWI, approximately 853 million NWI Consideration
Shares, and approximately 3,194 million PPC Shares issued upon conversion in full of the
Preference Shares. NWI will, subject to the approval of the NWI Shareholders, distribute
approximately 5,592 million PPC Distribution Shares to the NWI Shareholders in the ratio
of approximately 5.87 PPC Shares to one NWI Share held on the Record Date. After the
distribution of the PPC Distribution Shares held by NWI to its shareholders, the minority
shareholders of NWI will hold approximately 13.40% of the enlarged issued ordinary share
capital of PPC.

A NWI Shareholder who holds one NWI Share with a net tangible asset value of
approximately HK$12.47 per share and loss per share of approximately HK$0.23 as at 30
June, 2002 will, upon Completion, receive approximately 5.87 PPC Distribution Shares,
which will have an aggregate net tangible asset value of approximately HK$2.94, aggregate
attributable profit of approximately HK$0.28 and aggregate Cash Earnings of approximately
HK$0.7, respectively; and continue to hold the NWI Share with a net tangible asset value of
approximately HK$9.08 per share. The attributable operating loss of the TMT Assets per
share for the year ended 30 June, 2002 was approximately HK$0.11 (being the attributable
operating loss of the TMT Assets of approximately HK$102.4 million for the financial year
ended 30 June, 2002 divided by the outstanding number of NWI Shares as at the Latest
Practicable Date). We would however point out that the attributable operating loss per share
was before charging head office items such as gain/loss on disposal of investments, impairment
loss, provisions and other overheads and should not be interpreted as the loss per share
calculated in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong.
As such, the shareholdings in the NWI Group and the Enlarged PPC Group held by the NWI
Shareholders will not be subject to material change in terms of net asset value and
profitability.

NWI after Completion
Upon Completion, NWI will focus mainly on the TMT Assets.

The TMT Assets comprise investments in data communication facilities and
technologies, multimedia technologies and services, energy technologies, and biotechnologies.

As stated in the published annual report of the NWI Group for the year ended 30
June, 2002, NWI Group recorded attributable operating loss in the TMT Assets of
approximately HK$1.7 million, HK$33.3 million and HK$102.4 million for the three financial
years ended 30 June, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively, as most of the TMT Assets were
still in development stages. However, the telecommunications and media operations of the
TMT Assets are maturing and will be in a position to launch products in 2003.

As stated in the paragraph headed “Working Capital” in appendix II to this circular,
NWI Directors are of the opinion that, based on the expected cash flows, the NWI Group
will, following completion of the Reorganisation, have sufficient working capital to meet its
present requirements in the absence of unforeseen circumstances.

Given that the TMT Assets are still in development stages, NWI Shareholders should
note that the growth prospect and profitability of the TMT Assets are not proven. However,
we understand that the NWI Directors are of the view that they are confident about the
prospects of the TMT Assets, and based on our work performed in this appointment as
summarised in the section headed “Introduction” of this letter, we have not identified any
information which is inconsistent with this confident view of the NWI Directors.
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OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION
The Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement

We consider the disposal of the Infrastructure Assets under the Infrastructure Assets
Sale Agreement for a consideration of approximately HK$10,227 million to be fair and
reasonable to the NWI Shareholders as a whole in view of the following:

. the basis of determination of the consideration for the disposal of the
Infrastructure Assets;

. the consideration which represents approximately 1.13 times the audited pro
forma net tangible assets of the Infrastructure Assets together with the
Shareholder’s Loans and the Tangjin Loans as at 30 June, 2002 and
approximately 9.6 times the EBITDA of the Infrastructure Assets;

. the terms of the disposal, of which the Cash Consideration accounted for over
80% of the consideration;

. the lower debt burden of the NWI Group after Completion; and

. the opportunity for NWI Shareholders to hold shares in PPC, which will engage
in a diverse scope of business encompassing management of toll roads, bridges,
water treatment plants and equipment manufacturing, power plants, cargo
handling, facilities, contracting and engineering services, transport services,
financial and environmental services.

The Services Assets Sale Agreement

We consider the Services Assets Acquisition under the Services Assets Sale Agreement
for a consideration of approximately HK$10,913 million, to be satisfied by the issue of
approximately 11,701 million NWS Consideration Shares at the issue price of approximately
HK$0.9327 each to the NWS Shareholders, to be fair and reasonable to the NWI Shareholders
in view of the following:

. the basis of determination of the consideration for the acquisition of the Services
Assets;

. the consideration payable by PPC by the issue of the NWS Consideration
Shares;

. the profitability of the Services Assets; and
. the cash earning ability of the Enlarged PPC Group.
Recommendation

Having considered the above principal factors and reasons, we are of the view that
the disposal of the Infrastructure Assets under the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and
the Services Assets Acquisition under the Services Assets Sale Agreement and the terms
thereof, are fair and reasonable so far as the Independent NWI Shareholders are concerned.
Accordingly, we advise the NWI Independent Board Committee to recommend the NWI
Independent Shareholders vote in favour of the resolutions as detailed in the Notice of
Extraordinary General Meeting set out in this circular.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of
Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited
Leung, Chi-Ching Frederick Li, Tak-Kwong Charles
Director Director
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NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

New World Infrastructure Limited
e FRrERR LI

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders
of the Company will be held at Room 405, Level 4, Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre,
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 12 December, 2002 at 11:30 a.m. for the purpose of
considering, and if thought fit, passing the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:

(1)

(2)

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

“THAT the conditional agreement dated 21 October, 2002 between the Company as
the vendor and Pacific Ports Company Limited (“PPC”) as the purchaser (the
“Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement”), a copy of which has been produced to the
meeting marked “A” and signed by the chairman of the meeting for the purpose of
identification, under which the Company has conditionally agreed to sell (or procure
Lotsgain Limited to sell) the Sale Shares and the Loans (as respectively defined in
the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement) to PPC for an aggregate consideration of
HK$10,227 million (to be satisfied by cash, ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in PPC
and an undertaking by PPC to pay certain liabilities of the Company), and the
transactions contemplated therein (including, but not limited to, the termination and
release of New World Development Company Limited and Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited from the non-compete agreement entered into by them on 17 September,
1995 (as amended by a supplemental non-compete agreement dated 22 December,
1997)), be and are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified and that the directors of
the Company be and are hereby authorised to do such acts and things and execute
such other documents which in their opinion may be necessary, desirable or expedient
to carry out or give effect to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and the
transactions contemplated therein and otherwise to procure the completion thereof™;

“THAT the conditional agreement dated 21 October, 2002 between PPC (a 75%-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as purchaser and the shareholders of New World
Services Limited (“NWS”) as vendors (the “Services Assets Sale Agreement”), a
copy of which has been produced to the meeting marked “B” and signed by the
chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification, under which PPC has
conditionally agreed to purchase the Sale Shares (as defined in the Services Assets
Sale Agreement) from the shareholders of NWS for a consideration of approximately
HK$10,913 million (to be satisfied by the allotment of 11,700,980,469 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in PPC), and the transactions contemplated therein, be and are
hereby approved, confirmed and ratified and that the directors of the Company be and
are hereby authorised to do such acts and things and execute such other documents
which in their opinion may be necessary, desirable or expedient to carry out or give
effect to the Services Assets Sale Agreement and the transactions contemplated therein
and otherwise to procure the completion thereof”; and
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(3)  “THAT the distribution of the shares held by the Company in PPC in the manner set
out in the circular to the shareholders of the Company dated 18 November, 2002 (the
“Distribution”), be and is hereby approved, subject to completion of both the
Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement and the Services Assets Sale Agreement having
taken place, and that the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do
such acts and things and execute such other documents which in their opinion may be
necessary, desirable or expedient to carry out or give effect to the Distribution”.

By Order of the Board
Chow Oi-Wah, Fergus
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 18 November, 2002

Notes :

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who must
be individuals) to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be effective, the instrument appointing a proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any,
under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power of attorney or authority, must be deposited at
the head office of the Company at 9/F., New World Tower 2, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong not less than
48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

A form of proxy for use at the meeting is enclosed. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude
you from attending and voting at the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either
personally or by proxy, in respect of such share as if he were solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so present whose name
stands first on the register of members in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.
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I. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE NWI GROUP

Set out below is an extract from the audited financial statements of the NWI Group for the
year ended 30 June, 2002 (the date to which the latest audited financial statements were made up),
together with the comparative figures for the years ended 30 June, 2001 and 2000 together with
relevant notes to the annual accounts of the NWI Group. The financial statements of the NWI
Group for the three years ended 30 June, 2000, 2001 and 2002 were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants.

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 30 June 2002

2002 2001 2000
Restated
Note HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Turnover 2 801,897 1,103,132 987,828
Other operating income 4 159,075 246,624 757,480
Operating costs 5 (1,014,903) (1,399,376) (679,887)
Operating (loss)/profit
before financing (53,931) (49,620) 1,065,421
Finance costs 6 (849,277) (786,903) (589,830)
Share of results of
associated companies 174,128 319,027 405,855
Share of results of jointly
controlled entities 728,655 644,109 632,819
(Loss)/profit before taxation (425) 126,613 1,514,265
Taxation 8 (142,002) (162,016) (183,548)
(Loss)/profit after taxation (142,427) (35,403) 1,330,717
Minority interests (5,937) (58,676) (62,860)
(Loss)/profit for the year 9 (148,364) (94,079) 1,267,857
Dividend — — 214,381
(Loss)/earnings per share 11
Basic (HK$0.23) (HK$0.18) HK$1.39
Diluted N/A N/A HK$1.26
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Balance Sheets
As at 30 June 2002

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000  HK$000

ASSETS

Current assets
Inventories 12 1,179,124 500,247 1,179,124 500,247
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 13 1,250,305 1,260,818 1,086,944 965,595
Amount due from a minority shareholder 205,389 185,727 - -
Pledged deposits 14 838,666 - 518,200 -
Bank balances and cash 956,408 4,946,891 224,201 3,064,853

Total current assets 4,429,892 6,893,683 3,008,469 4,530,695

Non-current assets

Deferred expenditure 15 50,997 81,425 50,997 81,425
Subsidiaries 16 - - 14,900,435 15,902,009
Associated companies 17 2,763,858 1,995,600 233,011 70,201
Jointly controlled entities 18 10,837,603 9,059,195 - 1,672
Loans receivable 381,114 381,114 381,114 381,114
Other investments 19 880,333 1,874,354 4,065 7,344
Deposit for proposed investment

in Network 20 786,916 - 786,916 -
Fixed assets 21 7,493,158 8,573,996 10,488 12,856

23,193,979 21,965,684 16,367,026 16,456,621

Total assets 27,623,871 28,859,367 19,375,495 20,987,316
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Note

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals 22
Amounts due to minority shareholders
Short-term bank loans
Secured
Unsecured
Current portion of bank and
other borrowings 23
Provision for premium on
redemption of convertible bonds 23(b)
Taxation

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Bank and other borrowings 23
Provision for premium on
redemption of convertible bonds 23(b)
Deferred interest income
Deferred taxation 8

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital and reserves
Share capital 24
Reserves 25

Mandatorily convertible bonds 26

Minority interests

Total equity and liabilities
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Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$’000
1,257,892 1,281,591 69,217 130,445
126,886 233,260 - -
598,131 - - -
- 82,680 - 82,680
2,236,935 5,907,768 2,138,339 5,859,243
373,588 - 373,588 -
5,108 5,704 - _
4,598,540 7,511,003 2,581,144 6,072,368
8,890,408 6,928,171 6,677,200 4,716,739
- 161,041 - 161,041
234916 168,968 - -
9,318 - - -
13,733,182 14,769,183 9,258,344 10,950,148
952,180 855,325 952,180 855,325
11,010,464 10,148,773 9,164,971 8,019,658
11,962,644 11,004,098 10,117,151 8,874,983
- 1,162,185 - 1,162,185
11,962,644 12,166,283 10,117,151 10,037,168
1928045 1923901 - =
27,623,871 28,859,367 19,375,495 20,987,316
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2002

Note

Net cash outflow from operating activities 29(a)

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received

Interest paid

Dividends received from
Associated companies
Jointly controlled entities
Non-trading securities

Dividend paid

Dividend paid to minority shareholders
in subsidiaries

Income from a fixed return co-operative
joint venture

Net cash inflow from returns on investments and
servicing of finance

Taxation
PRC income tax paid

Investing activities

Increase in investments in associated companies
Increase in amounts due from

associated companies
Additions to fixed assets
Decrease in amounts due from jointly

controlled entities
Increase in investments in jointly controlled entities
Increase in investments in non-trading investments
Investments in pledged deposits and short-term

deposits maturing after three months
Uplift of short-term deposits maturing

after three months
Increase in payments on account of proposed

joint ventures and deposit for proposed

investment in Network
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries 29(e)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 29(g)
Disposal of

Associated companies

Non-trading investments

Jointly controlled entities

A subsidiary 29(i)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities

Net cash (outflow)/inflow before financing
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2001
HK$’000

(1,115,384)

445,720
(708,315)

170,605

660,415

11,766
(214,381)

17,725

(1,659,805)

383,535

(744,262)

(104,724)
(58,185)

671,274
(8,915)
(155,198)
(131,339)
235,007
(662,276)
1,981
(19,454)
1,523,408
324,031

238,786
7,536

(2,815,039)

1,117,670
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Financing activities
Drawdown of bank and other borrowings
Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Capital contributions from minority shareholders
Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Repurchase of convertible bonds
Redemption of convertible bonds
Additions to deferred expenditure
Repurchase of own shares

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash
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Note

29(b)

2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS$°000
4,376,244 2,965,023
765,341 82,680

- 4,280
(4,976,175) (238,224)
(249,890) (78,000)
(39,567) (72,445)
(931,476) -
(628) (33,230)
- (51,757)
_(1,056,151) 2,578,327
(3,997,929) 2,951,776
4,815,552 1,863,776
817,623 4,815,552
817,623 4,815,552
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses
For the year ended 30 June 2002

2002 2001
Restated
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Net surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of
non-trading investments 25 28,002 (1,639,478)
Interest on mandatorily convertible bonds 25 (49,149) (58,979)
Net losses not recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account (21,147) (1,698,457)
Loss for the year (148,364) (94,079)
Total recognised losses (169,511) (1,792,536)
Goodwill eliminated directly against reserves 25 - (447)
Release of reserves upon disposal of associated 25
companies, jointly controlled entities and
a subsidiary
Company and subsidiaries (34,245) 395,792
A jointly controlled entity - 976

(203,756) (1,396,215)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting
policy to retained profit brought forward
as at 1 July 2001 (109,145)
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these accounts are set out below:
(a) Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The
accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of non-trading
securities.

In the current year, the Group has changed certain of its accounting policies following the
adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) which
became effective during the current accounting period:

SSAP 9 (revised) Events after the balance sheet date

SSAP 26 Segment reporting

SSAP 28 Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
SSAP 30 Business combinations

SSAP 31 Impairment of assets

The effect of adopting these new and revised standards is set out in the accounting policies
below.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and all its subsidiaries made
up to 30 June and include the Group’s share of the results for the year and undistributed post-acquisition
reserves of its associated companies and jointly controlled entities. The results of subsidiaries, associated
companies and jointly controlled entities acquired or disposed of during the year are dealt with in the
consolidated profit and loss account from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal respectively.

All material intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between the proceeds of
the sale and the Group’s share of its net assets together with any goodwill or capital reserve which was
not previously charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the operating results and net
assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

(c) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair values ascribed to net
assets of subsidiaries, associated companies or jointly controlled entities acquired.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries occurring on or after 1 July 2001 is classified separately
in the balance sheet. Goodwill on acquisitions of associated companies or jointly controlled entities
occurring on or after 1 July 2001 is included in investments in associated companies or jointly controlled
entities. Goodwill is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful lives of not more
than twenty years. Goodwill on acquisition that occurred prior to 1 July 2001 was previously taken to
reserves. The Group has adopted the transitional provisions in SSAP 30 and goodwill occurred prior to 1
July 2001 has not been retroactively capitalised and amortised. Any subsequent impairment of such
goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account in accordance with SSAP 31. This
change in accounting policy for recognition of goodwill impairment has been applied retrospectively and
impairment losses of HK$109,145,000 were accordingly recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account for the year ended 30 June 2001 as detailed in notes 5 and 25 by means of a prior year adjustment.
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(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are companies, including equity or co-operative joint ventures in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), in which the Group has the power to exercise control governing the financial and
operating policies of the companies.

(e) Associated companies

An associated company is a company other than a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, in
which the Group’s interest is held for the long term and is substantial, and significant influence is
exercised through representations on the board of directors. The Group’s investments in associated
companies include the Group’s share of net assets and goodwill (net of accumulated amortisation) on
acquisition. The Company’s investments in associated companies are carried at cost less provision for
impairment losses. Results of associated companies are accounted for by the Company only to the extent
of dividends received and receivable.

(f) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture established as a corporation, partnership or other
entity in which the venturers have their respective interests and they have established a contractual
arrangement among them to define their joint control over the economic activity of the entity.

The Company’s interests in jointly controlled entities are classified as long-term investments and
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost plus the Group’s share of
their post-acquisition results and reserves, and goodwill (net of accumulated amortisation) on acquisition
less provision for impairment losses. The share of post-acquisition results and reserves is based on the
relevant profit sharing ratios which vary according to the nature of the jointly controlled entities explained
as follows:

(i) Equity joint ventures

Equity joint ventures are Sino-foreign joint ventures established in the PRC in respect of
which the venturers’ capital contribution ratios are defined in the joint venture contracts and the
venturers’ profit sharing ratios are in proportion to the capital contribution ratios.

(ii) Co-operative joint ventures

Co-operative joint ventures are Sino-foreign joint ventures established in the PRC in
respect of which the venturers’ profit sharing ratios and share of net assets upon the expiration of
the joint venture periods are not in proportion to their capital contribution ratios but are as
defined in the joint venture contracts. Where the Group is not entitled to share the net assets of a
co-operative joint venture at the end of the joint venture period, the cost of investment in such co-
operative joint venture is amortised over the joint venture period.

(iii) Companies limited by shares

Companies limited by shares are limited liability companies in respect of which each
shareholder’s beneficial interests therein is in accordance with the amount of the voting share
capital held thereby.

(g) Joint ventures in the PRC

(i) Equity joint ventures

The Group’s investments in these joint ventures are accounted for as subsidiaries (where
the Group has the power to exercise control governing the financial and operating policies) or as
jointly controlled entities (where the Group and the other venturers of the equity joint ventures

established joint control over the economic activity thereof).

Where the Group has no unilateral or joint control over the management of the equity
joint ventures, the joint ventures are accounted for as other investments.
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(i) Co-operative joint ventures

The Group’s investments in these joint ventures are accounted for as subsidiaries (where
the Group has the power to exercise control governing the financial and operating policies) or as
jointly controlled entities (where the Group and the other venturers of the co-operative joint
ventures established joint control over the economic activity thereof).

(iii) Fixed return joint ventures

Where investment income derived from investments in and loans to joint ventures is
predetermined in accordance with the provisions of the joint venture contracts for a substantial
portion of the joint venture period, these joint ventures are referred to as fixed return joint
ventures. Fixed return joint ventures are carried at cost less capital repayments received.

(h) Other investments

Other investments are long-term investments other than subsidiaries, associated companies and
jointly controlled entities and include fixed return joint ventures and non-trading securities.

(i) Fixed return joint ventures
These joint ventures are accounted for as set out in note g(iii) above.
(ii) Non-trading securities

Non-trading securities are investments in which the Group’s interest are held for non-
trading purposes. They are stated at their fair values in the balance sheet. Changes in fair value of
individual securities are accounted for as movements in the investment revaluation reserve until
the security is sold or is determined to be impaired. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred from the investment revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account. Transfers from
the investment revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account as a result of impairment are
written back to the profit and loss account when the circumstances and events that led to the
impairment cease to exist.

(i) Capitalisation of fixed assets

All direct and indirect costs relating to the construction of fixed assets including borrowing costs
and foreign exchange differences on the related borrowed funds during the construction period, are
capitalised as the costs of the fixed assets.

(j) Repair and maintenance expenses

Toll roads and bridges repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the profit and loss account
as incurred.

(k) Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of toll roads and toll bridges is provided for on a sinking fund method or a straight-
line method. For the sinking fund method, annual depreciation amounts compounded at rates ranging
from 2% to 13% per annum will equal the costs of the relevant toll roads and toll bridges, at the expiry of
the relevant joint venture periods. Certain toll roads and toll bridges are depreciated at rates sufficient to
write off their costs less accumulated impairment losses on a straight-line basis over their remaining toll
collection periods ranging from 21 to 29 years.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is calculated to write off their costs less accumulated impairment
losses over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The principal annual rates are as

follows:
Land under medium-term leases Over the lease terms
Buildings 2% to 3%
Port facilities and terminal equipment 2.25% to 15%
Other fixed assets 7% to 33.3%
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No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

Major costs incurred in restoring fixed assets to their normal working condition are charged to
the profit and loss account. Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives
to the Group.

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information are considered to
assess whether there is any indication that fixed assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss
account.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

(1) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all
costs of purchase and, where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, is calculated using the first-in-first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(m) Deferred expenditure

Expenses in relation to the issue of convertible bonds and obtaining bank loan and notes are
deferred and amortised on the straight-line basis over the unexpired term of the bonds and the available
period of the facility respectively. Where the bonds are converted, redeemed or repurchased before the
maturity date, the relevant portion of the issue costs is charged to the profit and loss account in the year
in which the conversion, redemption or repurchase occurs.

(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

(o) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current rate of taxation in respect of timing differences
between profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that a
liability or an asset is expected to be payable or recoverable in the foreseeable future.

(p) Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessors are accounted for as operating leases and rentals payable, net of incentives received from the
lessors, are accounted for on the straight-line basis over the periods of the leases.

(q) Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) which is
available to all the Company’s employees in Hong Kong whose employment commenced before 1 October
2000. The assets of the ORSO Scheme are held separately in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme are based on rates ranging from 5% to 15% of employees’
salaries depending on length of service and are expensed as incurred. The Group’s contributions in
respect of employees who leave the ORSO Scheme during the year are not forfeited to reduce the
employer’s contributions for the year.

A mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) was established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance in December 2000. Commencing on 1 December 2000,
newly-joined and eligible employees are compulsorily required to join the MPF Scheme. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are ranging from 5% to 10% of employees’ salaries depending on
length of service and are expensed as incurred.
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The Group also contributes to employee pension schemes established by municipal government in
respect of certain joint ventures in the PRC. The municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the Group. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

(r) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt
with in the profit and loss account, other than those dealt with in note 1(i) above.

The accounts of subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly controlled entities expressed in
foreign currencies are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising therefrom are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the financing of the Group’s investments in joint
ventures investing in infrastructural projects are capitalised as the cost of investments in these joint
ventures up to the respective commissioning dates of the joint ventures’ infrastructural assets.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the profit and loss account in the year in which they are
incurred, other than those dealt with in note 1(i) above.

(t) Dividend

In accordance with revised SSAP 9, the Group no longer recognised dividends proposed or
declared after the balance sheet date as a liability at the balance sheet date. This change in accounting
policy has been applied retrospectively so that the comparatives presented have been restated to conform
to the changed policy.

As detailed in note 25, this change has resulted in an increase in retained profit at 1 July 2000 by
HK$214,381,000 which is the reversal of provision for 2000 proposed final dividend previously recorded
as a liability as at 30 June 2000 although not declared until after the balance sheet date.

(u) Revenue recognition

Toll revenues, income from cargo and container handling and storage are recognised when services
are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis that takes into account the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rates applicable.

Interest received and receivable in respect of loan financing provided to equity and co-operative
joint ventures (where they are not accounted for as subsidiaries) during their pre-operational period is
deferred and amortised over the repayment periods of these loans.

Income from investments in and loans to fixed return joint ventures is recognised on an accrual
basis so as to produce a constant return on the investment and loan balance (net of capital repayments) on

a combined basis, throughout the period of the Group’s investments in these joint ventures.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
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2 Turnover

Turnover represents income from the operation of toll roads and bridges, income from cargo and container
handling and storage, interest income and investment income from joint ventures, net of business and withholding

taxes, where applicable, analysed as follows:

2002 2001
HK$°000 HK$°000
Toll income 594,180 557,186
Cargo and container handling and storage income 129,283 140,560
723,463 697,746
Business tax (47,325) (33,306)
_....076,138 ... 564,440

Interest income from
Joint ventures 88,192 112,639
Third parties 53,403 221,883
141,595 334,522
Withholding tax (15,836) (19,491)
______ 125,759 _....315,031
Income from a fixed return co-operative joint venture . - 123,661
801,897 1,103,132

3 Segment information

The Group is organised into five main business segments including energy and water treatment, toll roads,

toll bridges, cargo handling and telecommunications, media and technology (“TMT”).

In respect of geographical segment reporting, segment revenues, segment assets and capital expenditure

are where the investments/operating assets are located.

There are no sales or other transactions between the business and geographical segments. Unallocated
costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of fixed assets, receivables and operating
cash. Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation and certain corporate

borrowings. Capital expenditure comprises additions to fixed assets.
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Primary reporting format — business segments

Year ended 30 June 2002

Energy
and water Toll Toll Cargo
treatment roads bridges handling T™MT Group
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Segment revenues 53,962 423,734 151,791 130,175 — 759,662
Other interest income 42,235
Turnover 801,897
I
Segment results 37,856 199,747 29,782 (6,698) (195,026) 65,661
Other interest income 42,235
Unallocated costs (161,827)
Operating loss before
financing (53,931)
Finance costs (849,277)
Share of results of
Associated companies (8,006) - - 257,569 (75,435) 174,128
Jointly controlled
entities 384,871 175,054 3,848 176,591 (11,709) 728,655
Loss before taxation (425)
Taxation (142,002)
Loss after taxation (142,427)
Minority interests (5,937)
Loss for the year (148,364)
—
As at 30 June 2002
Energy
and water Toll Toll Cargo
treatment roads bridges handling T™T Group
HK$'000 HK3$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
Segment assets 16,364 5,750,724 2,081,283 285,782 3,845,653 11,979,806
Associated companies 393,801 - - 730,675 1,639,382 2,763,858
Jointly controlled entities 2,557,145 4,134,686 79,336 2,357,125 1,709,311 10,837,603
Unallocated assets 2,042,604
Total assets 27,623,871
—
Segment liabilities (366) (854,315) (52,085) (4,408) (46,529) (957,703)
Unallocated liabilities (12,775,479)
Total liabilities (13,733,182)
—
Capital expenditure - 49,121 268 24,017 379
Depreciation - 140,531 72,176 38,807 284
Amortisation charges - 17,857 - - -
Impairment losses - - - 125,274 148,250
Provision — — — — 30,662

— 65 -



APPENDIX I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE NWI GROUP

Segment revenues

Other interest income

Turnover

Segment results

Other interest income
Unallocated costs

Operating loss before
financing

Finance costs

Share of results of

Associated companies

Jointly controlled
entities

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Loss after taxation
Minority interests

Loss for the year

Segment assets
Associated companies
Jointly controlled entities
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Amortisation charges
Impairment losses/
(written-back of
impairment loss)

Year ended 30 June 2001 (Restated)

Energy
and water Toll Toll Cargo
treatment roads bridges handling T™MT Others Group
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
144,233 424,774 182,131 141,138 1,223 - 893,499
209,633
1,103,132
I
(162,871) 189,895 178,566  (49,646) (302,149) 14,252 (131,953)
209,633
(127,300)
(49,620)
(786,903)
91,151 14,769 - 232,122 (19,015) - 319,027
356,352 151,382  (17,416) 164,775  (10,984) - 644,109
126,613
(162,016)
(35,403)
(58,676)
(94,079)
—
As at 30 June 2001 (Restated)
Energy
and water Toll Toll Cargo
treatment roads bridges handling TMT Others Group
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
900,971 5,883,480 2,095,372 1,332,135 2,192,139 - 12,404,097
356,490 - - 576,536 1,062,574 - 1,995,600
1,921,690 4,350,148 90,552 1,863,191 833,614 - 9,059,195
5,400,475
28,859,367
—
(5,071)  (795,153) (27,527)  (176,704) (45,327) - (1,049,782)
(13,719,401)
(14,769,183)
—
- 63,514 1,731 112,170 454 -
- 102,921 68,895 42,944 119 -
- 1,534 - - - -
- 982 - - 352,956 (12,480)
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Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

China mainland
Hong Kong
Overseas

Other interest income

Turnover

Unallocated costs

Operating loss before financing

Associated companies
Jointly controlled entities
Unallocated assets

Total assets

China mainland
Hong Kong
Overseas

Other interest income

Turnover

Unallocated costs

Operating loss before financing

Associated companies
Jointly controlled entities
Unallocated assets

Total assets
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Year ended 30 June 2002

(53,931)

2,763,858
10,837,603

2,042,604

27,623,871

Segment Segment Segment Capital
revenues results assets expenditure
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
751,625 123,721 9,048,045 73,405
8,037 88,525 1,025,146 347
- (146,585) 1,906,615 33
759,662 65,661 11,979,806 73,785
I
42,235 42,235
801,897
I
(161,827)

Year ended 30 June 2001 (Restated)

Segment Segment Segment Capital
revenues results assets expenditure
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
884,299 196,972 10,211,958 177,415
7,977 (172,375) 446,067 -
1,223 (156,550) 1,746,072 454
893,499 (131,953) 12,404,097 177,869
I
209,633 209,633
1,103,132
—
(127,300)
(49,620)
I
1,995,600
9,059,195
5,400,475
28,859,367
—
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4 Other operating income

Profit on repurchase of convertible bonds

Net gain on foreign currency forward contracts

Net gain on disposal of non-trading investments (note 25)
Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Written-back of impairment loss on other investments
Dividend from listed non-trading securities

Others

5 Operating costs

Impairment losses on other investments (note 25)

Impairment losses on fixed assets (note 21)

Impairment losses on goodwill (note 25)

Provision for doubtful debt

Provision for payments on account of proposed joint ventures

Loss on disposal of associated companies

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Depreciation

Management fees paid in connection with toll collection, maintenance
and management services

Auditors’ remuneration

Rental for leased premises

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Amortisation of cost of investments in co-operative joint ventures

Staff costs

Retirement benefit costs

Other operating costs

6 Finance costs

Interest on convertible bonds
Interest on bank and other borrowings
Wholly repayable within five years
Not wholly repayable within five years
Amortisation of deferred expenditure
Provision for premium on redemption of convertible bonds

Amount capitalised as construction in progress (note)
Amount capitalised as investment in a jointly controlled entity (note)

2002
HK$’000

14,974

113,676
21,735

8,690

159,075
——

2002
HK$’000

154,024
119,500

25,000
33,002

256,830

60,445
6,953
17,830
4,938
17,857
153,500
7,100

157,924

1,014,903

2002
HK$°000

15,417
573,418

54,207
30,657

220,914

894,613
(45,336)

849,277
——

2001
HK$°000

1,772

110,422
99,419

12,480
11,766
10,765

246,624
——

2001
Restated
HK$’000

244,793

109,145

426,125
6,963
219,838

57,622
6,854
20,952
821
1,534
140,259
7,335

157,135

1,399,376

2001
HK$’000

60,952

643,488
47,021
32,817
70,202

854,480
(57,629)

(9,948)

786,903
——

Note: To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of financing the
construction of fixed assets and qualifying investment in a jointly controlled entity, the
capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as

part of the costs of these assets is 6.6% (2001: 7.0%) for the year.
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7 Emoluments of directors and senior management

Details of the emoluments paid to the directors are as follows:

Fees
Salaries and other emoluments
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme

The emoluments of the directors fall within the following bands:

Emolument band
HKS$

Nil - 1,000,000

1,000,001 - 1,500,000
3,500,001 — 4,000,000
4,000,001 - 4,500,000

2002
HK$°000

850

8,915
497

10,262

2001
HK$’000

8,801
480

9,281

Number of individuals

2002

—_ = = =

14

2001

[ V)

12

Directors’ fees disclosed above include HK$300,000 (2001: nil) paid to independent non-executive directors.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include 2 (2001: 3)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining

3 (2001: 2) individuals during the year are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument band
HK$

1,500,001 — 2,000,000
2,000,001 - 2,500,000
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8 Taxation

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000

Company and subsidiaries
PRC income tax 21,100 11,636
Deferred tax 9,318 -
_______ 30,418 .. 11,636

Associated companies

Hong Kong profits tax 41,147 52,024
PRC income tax 48 36,715
o ALs 88,739

Jointly controlled entities
Hong Kong profits tax 25,899 22,899
Macau income tax 18,277 22,676
PRC income tax 16,539 16,066
Deferred tax 9,674 -
_______ 70,389 . 61,641
142,002 162,016

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% (2001: 16%) on income assessable to Hong
Kong profits tax. PRC and Macau income tax have been provided on the estimated assessable profits for the year
at their prevailing rates of taxation.

As at 30 June 2002, deferred taxation of the Group of HK$9,318,000 (2001: nil) was provided for timing
differences in respect of accelerated depreciation allowances.

There was no material unprovided deferred tax charge for the year (2001: nil).
9 Loss for the year

Loss for the year is dealt with in the accounts of the Company to the extent of profit of HK$128,984,000
(2001: HK$84,033,000).

10 Dividend

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of an interim dividend and a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2002 (2001: nil).

11 Loss per share

The calculation of loss per share is based on the loss attributable to the shareholders of HK$197,513,000
(2001: HK$153,058,000 (restated)) after adjusting for the interest of HK$49,149,000 (2001: HK$58,979,000) on
the mandatorily convertible bonds and the weighted average of 871,516,679 (2001: 856,739,175) shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the year is not presented as the Company has no dilutive potential shares at year
end (2001: n/a).

12 Inventories
Group and Company
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
Raw materials, at cost 1,179,124 500,247
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13 Debtors, deposits and prepayments

(a) Ageing analysis of trade debtors is not presented as the amount outstanding at year end is
insignificant.

(b) At 30 June 2002, the balance included a housing loan of HK$2,398,000 (2001: HK$2,766,000) to
the Company Secretary, Mr. Chow Oi Wah, Fergus. The loan is secured by a legal mortgage over
the subject property, carries interest at 3% (2001: 5%) per annum and is repayable by monthly
installments up to March 2008. The maximum of the amount outstanding during the year was
HK$2,766,000 (2001: HK$3,102,000).

(c) Also included are trade deposits of approximately HK$969 million (2001: HK$698 million) paid

to an associated company for the purchase of inventories.

14 Pledged deposits

This represents deposits pledged to banks for banking facilities granted to a subsidiary and a jointly

controlled entity.

15 Deferred expenditure

Cost less amount amortised
Convertible bonds and notes issuing expenses
Bank loan procurement expenses

16 Subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due by subsidiaries, net of provision

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Group and Company

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
6,812 15,730

44,185 65,695
50,997 81,425
I I

Company

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
4,842,899 4,842,899
10,735,940 12,468,160
15,578,839 17,311,059
(678,404) (1,409,050)
14,900,435 15,902,009
I I

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries, which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the
results of the Group for the year and/or assets of the Group as at 30 June 2002, are set out in note 34.

17 Associated companies

Group’s share of net assets
Goodwill on acquisition
Amounts due by associated companies

(note a)
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Company

2001 2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

1,828,500 - -

167,100 233,011 70,201

1,995,600 233,011 70,201
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(a) Except for an amount of HK$46,800,000 (2001: HK$46,800,000) which carries interest at 8% per
annum, the amounts due by associated companies are interest free, unsecured and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

(b) Particulars of associated companies, which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the
results of the Group for the year and/or assets of the Group as at 30 June 2002, are set out in note
35.
18 Jointly controlled entities
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001

HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

Equity joint ventures

Group’s share of net assets 709,371 744,760 - -
Amounts due by joint ventures (note a) 34,186 50,152 - 1,672
743,557 794,912 - 1,672

Co-operative joint ventures
Cost of investments (less accumulated
amortisation of HK$27,444,000

(2001: HK$9,587,000)) (notes b and e) 2,790,153 2,075,196 - -
Share of undistributed post-acquisition
results 305,990 330,950 - -

3,096,143 2,406,146 - -

Amounts due by joint ventures (note a) 2,759,399 2,459,246 - -

5,855,542 4,865,392 — —

Companies limited by shares

Share of net assets 2,628,873 2,581,923 - -
Subordinated loans (note c¢) 215,934 215,934 - -
Amounts due by jointly controlled entities

(note a) 68,625 115,848 - -
Promissory note due to a jointly

controlled entity (note d) (80,007) (80,007) - -

2,833,425 2,833,698 - -

Payments on account of proposed
joint ventures (note f) 1,405,079 565,193 - -

10,837,603 9,059,195 - 1,672

Particulars of jointly controlled entities, which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the
results of the Group for the year and/or assets of the Group as at 30 June 2002, are set out in note 36.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

The amounts due by jointly controlled entities are analysed as follows:

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest bearing
Fixed rates ranging from 6% to 15%

(2001: 6% to 15%) per annum 1,179,213 1,315,433 - -
Non-interest bearing 1,682,997 1,309,813 - 1,672
2,862,210 2,625,246 - 1,672

The repayment terms of the amounts due by jointly controlled entities are specified in the relevant
joint venture agreements.

The amounts include contributions to the registered capital of joint ventures of HK$98,775,000
(2001: HK$98,775,000) which carries interest at 10% per annum and HK$149,773,000 (2001:
HK$149,773,000) which carries interest at Hong Kong prime rate.

Except for an amount of HK$19,038,000 (2001: HK$19,038,000) which carries interest at 14%
per annum, the loans to jointly controlled entities are interest free, have no fixed terms of repayment
and are subordinated to bank borrowings and all other major indebtedness.

The promissory note is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Included in investments in co-operative joint ventures is the Group’s investment in 60% interest
in registered capital of Shunde DeSheng Power Plant Company Limited (“DeSheng Power Plant™)
which was previously accounted for as a fixed return joint venture under other investments. In
2001, DeSheng Power Plant resumed the operation of the power plant upon the expiry of a five-
year plant lease to the PRC joint venture partner. With effect from 1 July 2001, the Group
accounted for the results and net assets of DeSheng Power Plant on an equity accounting basis
and accordingly, the Group’s investment in DeSheng Power Plant has been reclassified as an
investment in jointly controlled entity.

The balances represent payments on account of proposed joint ventures for which only preliminary
agreements have been signed and the joint venture companies have not yet been established as at
the year end. Upon the completion of the relevant joint venture contracts and the establishment of
the respective joint venture companies, the relevant amounts will be reclassified to joint venture
balances.

In September 2002, the Group decided to withdraw from a preliminary agreement and, as a result
of such withdrawal, the Group has no further material obligation under such preliminary agreement.
The payment on account of this proposed joint venture amounting to HK$620 million was
substantially refunded to the Group.
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19 Other investments
Fixed return joint venture
Co-operative joint venture (note 18e)
Capital and loan contributions (cost less
capital repayment)
Amount due by a joint venture
Equity joint venture
Capital and loan contributions
(cost less capital repayment)
Amount due by a joint venture
Provision
Non-trading securities
Unlisted
Shares, at fair value
Investments in equity joint ventures,
at cost
Provision
Listed
Shares listed in Hong Kong, at fair value
Shares listed outside Hong Kong,
at fair value
Market value of listed shares
20 Deposit for proposed investment in Network

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 639,564 - -
- 215,450 - _
_____________ - ....855.014 - .=
23,850 23,850 - -
1,325 1,325 - -
(25,175) (25,175) - -
589,127 703,864 1,961 5,271
249,484 261,964 - -
(249,484)  (249,484) - -
______ 589,127 716,344 1,961 5271
26,927 37,301 - -
264,279 265,695 2,104 2,073
______ 291,206 302,996 2,104 __ 2,073
880,333 1,874,354 4,065 7,344
291,206 302,996 2,104 2,073

During the year, the Group entered into an option agreement with a PRC entity for the acquisition
(“Acquisition”) of interest in an optical fibre backbone network (“Network™) in the PRC (“Agreement”). Subject
to certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement, the Group is entitled to acquire up to 70% interest in the
Network at a consideration of approximately HK$2,563 million.

As at 30 June 2002, approximately HK$787 million was paid as a deposit for the Acquisition. In September
2002, the Group disposed of its interests in certain investments at a total consideration of approximately HK$660
million which has also been applied as a further payment for the Acquisition, bringing the total payments to

approximately HK$1,447 million.

The Group is required to pay a further sum of approximately HK$1,116 million should the Group decide

to increase its interest in the Network up to 70%.
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21 Fixed assets

Cost
At 1 July 2001
Additions
Disposals

Transfer upon completion

Deconsolidation of
subsidiaries
Disposal of a subsidiary

At 30 June 2002

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
At 1 July 2001
Charge for the year
Impairment losses
Disposals
Deconsolidation of

subsidiaries
Disposal of a subsidiary

At 30 June 2002

Net book value
At 30 June 2002

At 30 June 2001

Group Company
Port
facilities

and Con-

Toll Toll Land and terminal  struction
roads bridges buildings equipment in progress Others Total Others
HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4231919 1,950,532 476,023 478,504 2,053,010 186,097 9,376,085 21,642
1,402 - 149 3,871 63,944 5,959 75,331 1,352
- (12,445) - (3,954) (504)  (1,708)  (18,611) (890)
195,479 - 1,120 7,711 (204,310) - - -
- - (131,883) (315,097)  (306,735) (42,322) (796,037) -
- - - (120,757) (1,665) (14,692) (137,114) -
(4428800 1938087 345409 50284 1603740 133,334 8499654 ___ 22,104
331,389 254,073 35,828 97,526 - 83,273 802,089 8,786
134,379 70,532 11,465 22,762 - 17,692 256,830 3,305
- - 117,000 - 2,500 - 119,500 -
- (7,747) - (3,459) - (1,033)  (12,239) (475)
- - (14,793)  (59,974) - (26,454)  (101,221) -
- - - (48,646) - (9.817)  (58,463) -
__ 465768 __ 316858 _ 149,500 ____ 8209 ____- 2,500 ___ 63,661 1,006,496 ___ 11616
3,963,032 1,621,229 195,909 42,075 1,601,240 69,673 7,493,158 10,488
3,900,530 1,696,459 440,195 380,978 2,053,010 102,824 8,573,996 12,856

As at 30 June 2002, finance costs of HK$149,823,000 (2001: HK$132,037,000) were capitalised in

construction in progress.

Land and buildings comprise medium-term leases situated in Hong Kong of HK$37,894,000 (2001:
HK$38,699,000) and in the PRC of HK$275,015,000 (2001: HK$401,496,000).

22

Creditors and accruals

Ageing analysis of trade payable is not presented as the amount outstanding as at year end is insignificant.
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23 Bank and other borrowings
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5% Convertible bonds due 2001 (note a) - 931,593 - 931,593
1% Convertible bonds due 2003 (note b) 1,350,539 1,381,739 1,350,539 1,381,739
10% Fixed rate notes due 2004 (note c) 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Floating rate notes due 2003 (note d) 351,000 351,000 351,000 351,000
Loan from a fellow subsidiary (note e) 1,400,000 - 1,400,000 -
Bank loans
Unsecured (note f) 5,514,000 7,713,222 5,514,000 7,711,650
Secured (note f) 1,021,925 869,626 - -
Loans from minority shareholders of
subsidiaries
Interest bearing (note g) 1,026,822 1,000,646 - -
Non-interest bearing (note h) 263,057 388,113 - -
11,127,343 12,835,939 8,815,539 10,575,982
Current portion included in current liabilities (2,236,935) (5,907,768) (2,138,339) (5,859,243)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

8,890,408 6,928,171 6,677,200 4,716,739

The convertible bonds bore interest at 5% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears. The bonds
were listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Each holder of the bonds had the option to
convert the bonds into shares of HK$1 each of the Company at a conversion price of HK$19.61
per share, subject to adjustment, at any time until 2 July 2001. During the year, bonds with
principal amount of US$15,000 were converted into 5,917 shares of HK$1 each of the Company,
the remaining balance of the bonds were redeemed at par by the Company on 15 July 2001.

The convertible bonds bear interest at 1% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears. The bonds
are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Each holder of the bonds has the option to convert
the bonds into shares of HK$1 each of the Company at a conversion price of HK$23.05 per share,
subject to adjustment, at any time until 1 April 2003. Subject to certain conditions, the bonds are
redeemable at the option of the Company at any time on or after 15 April 2001, in whole or in
part, in cash and/or for the Company’s shares. Unless previously converted, redeemed or
repurchased, the bonds will be redeemed at 143.4% of their principal amount together with the
accrued interest on 15 April 2003. Provision of HK$373,588,000 (2001: HK$161,041,000) for the
premium payable has been made in the accounts so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge to the profit and loss account over the terms of the bonds.

During the year, the Company repurchased bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of US$4,000,000 for a total consideration of HK$39,567,000 (2001: nil) and these bonds were
then cancelled. Provision for premium on redemption of the bonds of HK$8,367,000 was applied
to set off against the deficit arising from the repurchase of the bonds.

The fixed rate notes bear interest at 10% per annum payable quarterly in arrears. The notes are
unsecured, transferable and repayable at their principal amount on 9 July 2004.

The floating rate notes bear interest at U.S. dollar deposit rate in the London interbank market
plus 1.4% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears. The notes are unsecured and repayable at

their principal amount on 24 February 2003.

Loan from a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, bears interest at prevailing market rate and wholly
repayable on 16 May 2004.
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(f) Long-term bank loans are repayable as follows:

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 535,396 4,976,175 436,800 4,927,650
Between one and two years 1,527,810 96,260 1,419,600 -
Between two and five years 4,296,856 3,304,142 3,657,600 2,784,000
After five years 175,863 206,271 - -

6,535,925 8,582,848 5,514,000 7,711,650

The loans are secured by certain of the Group’s interests in joint ventures in the PRC and the toll
collection rights of certain toll roads held by the Group.

(2) The loans represent loans made by the minority shareholders in consolidated joint ventures for
the development of the relevant infrastructure projects. The loans are unsecured, bear interest at
fixed rates ranging from 10% to 15% per annum and have repayment terms as specified in the
relevant joint venture agreements.

(h) The loans are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

24 Share capital

2002 2001
HK$°000 HK$°000
Authorised:

2,000,000,000 shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000 2,000,000
— —

Issued and fully paid:
952,180,007 (2001: 855,325,340) shares of HK$1 each 952,180 855,325
— —

During the year, 96,854,667 shares (2001: nil) were issued upon the conversion of US$15,000 5%
convertible bonds due 2001 and US$150,000,000 mandatorily convertible bonds at a conversion price of HK$19.61
and HK$12.00 per share, respectively. No shares were repurchased during the year (2001: 6,589,600 shares were
repurchased and cancelled by the Company).

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 3 October 1997, the Company may grant options to
directors and employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company. No
share options were granted during the year. The movements in the number of share options during the year and
the balance outstanding at 30 June 2002 are as follows:

Exercise price At Lapsed At
per share 1 July 2001 during the year 30 June 2002
HKS$
10.20(a) 2,282,000 - 2,282,000
10.20(b) 360,000 (120,000) 240,000
12.00(c) 10,423,000 (32,000) 10,391,000
12.00(d) 1,440,000 (480,000) 960,000
14,505,000 (632,000) 13,873,000

(a) Exercisable from 1 July 1999 to 1 June 2004.

(b) Exercisable from 1 July 2000 to 1 June 2005.
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25

(c) Divided into 3 or 5 tranches exercisable from 1 July 1999 to 1 June 2004, from 1 July 2000 to 1
June 2004, from 1 July 2001 to 1 June 2004, from 1 July 2002 to 1 June 2004 and from 1 July
2003 to 1 June 2004 respectively.

(d) Divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 1 July 2001 to 1 June 2005, from 1 July 2002 to 1 June
2005 and from 1 July 2003 to 1 June 2005 respectively.

Reserves

Group

At 1 July 2000, as
previously reported

Effect of adopting SSAP 9
(revised) (note 1(t))

At 1 July 2000, as restated

2000 final dividend paid

Loss for the year

Interest on mandatorily
convertible bonds

Transfer to capital reserve
account

Repurchase of own shares

Net deficit on revaluation of
non-trading investments

Impairment losses charged
to profit and loss
account (note 5)

Written-back of impairment loss
transferred to profit and loss
account (note 4)

Net realised gain transferred to
profit and loss account (note 4)

Goodwill on acquisition of
Subsidiaries
Associated companies
Additional interests in a jointly

controlled entity

Release of reserves upon disposal
of interests in associated
companies and a subsidiary

Company and subsidiaries
A jointly controlled entity

At 30 June 2001

Company and subsidiaries
Jointly controlled entities
Associated companies

Investment

Contributed Share Capital Retained revaluation
surplus premium reserve profit reserve Total

(note a) (note b)

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
971,021 4,639,767 341,073 4,211,258 1,427,036 11,590,155
- - - 214,381 - 214,381
971,021 4,639,767 341,073 4,425,639 1,427,036 11,804,536
- - - (214,381) - (214,381)
_ _ - (94,079) - (94,079)
- - - (58,979) - (58,979)
- - 2,759 (2,759) - -
- (45,167) - - - (45,167)
- - - - (1,761,369) (1,761,369)
109,145 - - - 244,793 353,938
_ - - - (12,480) (12,480)
- - - - (110,422) (110,422)
(21,612) - - - - (21,612)
(86,925) - - - - (86,925)
(1,055) - - - - (1,055)
395,792 - (1,946) 1,946 - 395,792
976 - - - - 976
1,367,342 4,594,600 341,886 4,057,387  (212,442) 10,148,773
1,367,342 4,594,600 341,886 2,434,739  (212,442) 8,526,125
- - - 1,306,601 - 1,306,601
- - - 316,047 - 316,047
1,367,342 4,594,600 341,886 4,057,387  (212,442) 10,148,773
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Investment
Contributed Share Capital Retained revaluation
surplus premium reserve profit reserve Total
(note a) (note b)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

Group
At 1 July 2001, as previously

reported 1,258,197 4,594,600 341,886 4,166,532 (212,442) 10,148,773
Effect of adopting SSAP 30

(note 1(c)) 109,145 - - (109,145) - -
At 1 July 2001, as restated 1,367,342 4,594,600 341,886 4,057,387  (212,442) 10,148,773
Loss for the year - - - (148,364) - (148,364)
Interest on mandatorily

convertible bonds - - - (49,149) - (49,149)
Transfer to capital reserve

account - - 7,177 (7,177) - -
Release of capital reserve upon

utilisation - - (14,512) 14,512 - -
Net deficit on revaluation of

non-trading investments - - - - (126,022) (126,022)
Impairment losses charged to

profit and loss account (note 5) - - - - 154,024 154,024
Premium on shares issued - 1,065,447 - - - 1,065,447
Release of reserves upon disposal of

interests in associated companies,

a jointly controlled entity and

a subsidiary 10,257 - (44,502) - - (34,245)
At 30 June 2002 1,377,599 5,660,047 290,049 3,867,209  (184,440) 11,010,464
Company and subsidiaries 1,377,599 5,660,047 290,049 2,385,150  (184,440) 9,528,405
Jointly controlled entities - - - 1,233,088 - 1,233,088
Associated companies - - - 248,971 - 248,971

1,377,599 5,660,047 290,049 3,867,209  (184,440) 11,010,464
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Investment
Contributed Share Retained revaluation
surplus premium profit reserve Total

(note a) (note a)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Company

At 1 July 2000, as previously

reported 3,269,219 4,639,767 134,016 - 8,043,002
Effect of adopting SSAP 9

(revised) (note 1(t)) - - 214,381 - 214,381
At 1 July 2000, as restated 3,269,219 4,639,767 348,397 - 8,257,383
2000 final dividend paid - - (214,381) - (214,381)
Profit for the year - - 84,033 - 84,033
Repurchase of own shares - (45,167) - - (45,167)
Deficit on revaluation of

non-trading investments - - - (8,176) (8,176)
Impairment losses charged

to profit and loss account - - - 3,653 3,653
Realised loss transferred to profit

and loss account - - - 1,292 1,292
Interest on mandatorily

convertible bonds - - (58,979) - (58,979)
At 30 June 2001 3,269,219 4,594,600 159,070 (3,231) 8,019,658
At 1 July 2001 3,269,219 4,594,600 159,070 (3,231) 8,019,658
Profit for the year - - 128,984 - 128,984
Premium on share issued - 1,065,447 - - 1,065,447
Interest on mandatory

convertible bonds - - (49,149) - (49,149)
Net deficit on revaluation of

non-trading investments - - - (3,279) (3,279)
Impairment losses charged to

profit and loss account - - - 3,310 3,310
At 30 June 2002 3,269,219 5,660,047 238,905 (3,200) 9,164,971
(a) Under the Cayman Islands Company Law, the contributed surplus and share premium are both

distributable. Accordingly, total distributable reserves of the Company amount to HK$9,164,971,000
(2001: HK$8,019,658,000) as at 30 June 2002.

The contributed surplus of the Company arose in 1995 when the Company issued shares in
exchange for the shares of companies being acquired, and represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued and the value of net assets of the companies
acquired.

(b) Included in the capital reserve are the Group’s share of the statutory reserves of PRC subsidiaries
and capital reserve arising from the reorganisation of the port and port-related businesses in 2000.

26 Mandatorily convertible bonds

The mandatorily convertible bonds bore interest at the higher of 5% per annum payable semi-annually in
arrears and a percentage equal to the dividends declared or paid per share during the relevant interest payment
period divided by the conversion price. The holder of the bonds had the option to convert the bonds into shares of
HKS$1 each of the Company at a conversion of HK$12 per share, subject to adjustment, at any time on or before
30 April 2002. There are no definitive accounting guidelines in Hong Kong in respect of the classification of
mandatorily convertible bonds. On the basis of the above, the bonds were classified as equity and the interest
thereon was charged to retained profit as a movement in reserves. On 30 April 2002, the bonds were mandatorily
and automatically converted in full into shares of the Company.
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27 Contingent liabilities

The Group has contingent liabilities relating to guarantees given to banks of approximately HK$1,059
million (2001: HK$1,455 million) in respect of the bank loan facilities extended to two (2001: two) jointly
controlled entities of the Group. On 11 October 2001, a subscription agreement was entered into between the
Group and an associated company in respect of the disposal of an effective interest of 9.75% in Asia Container
Terminals Limited, a jointly controlled entity of the Group (“Subscription Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of
the Subscription Agreement, the associated company has agreed to counter-indemnify the Group in respect of
such guarantee amounting to approximately HK$527 million. As at 30 June 2002, the outstanding amounts under

the bank loan fa

cilities in respect of the guarantees were approximately HK$361 million (2001: HK$284 million).

28 Commitments

(a)

(b)

(c)

At 30 June 2002, the capital commitments, principally for construction of toll roads and port
facilities and acquisition of other investments were as follows:

2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contracted but not provided for 6,621 32,132
Authorised but not contracted for 181,211 1,877,516
187,832 1,909,648

The Group has committed to provide sufficient funds in the forms of capital and loan contributions
to certain joint ventures under various joint venture contracts to finance relevant infrastructural
projects. The directors estimate that the Group’s share of projected funds requirements of these
projects would be approximately HK$79 million (2001: HK$92 million) which represents the
attributable portion of the capital and loan contributions to be made to the joint ventures.

At 30 June 2002, the Group’s share of capital commitments of the jointly controlled entities
themselves not included in note 28(b) above were as follows:

2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contracted but not provided for 206,000 509,000
Authorised but not contracted for 129,000 130,000
335,000 639,000

I I

A subsidiary and certain jointly controlled entities are parties to agreements with third parties
pursuant to the joint development of Container Terminal 9 (“CT9”) in Hong Kong, the related
berth swap arrangement and the funding therefor. The Group’s attributable share of capital
commitments as at 30 June 2002 was HK$261 million (2001: HK$639 million) which has been
included above.

One of the jointly controlled entities has obtained banking facilities to finance 60% of its share of
the development costs at CT9 and reduced the funds to be injected by the Group accordingly. The
Group has given guarantee in respect of the banking facilities and is included in note 27 above.

In the event of default of any of the third parties, the subsidiary and jointly controlled entities
will be required to provide additional funds for the project. The Company has given guarantees in
respect of these obligations of the subsidiary and jointly controlled entities to provide additional
funds. Were the Company required to perform its obligations under the guarantees, the maximum
amount of the additional liabilities assumed, in addition to the Group’s share of the capital
commitments of CT9 as included above, is HK$1,482 million (2001: HK$1,482 million). Pursuant
to the terms of the Subscription Agreement, an associated company has agreed to counter-indemnify
the Company in respect of such guarantees amounting to approximately HK$876 million.
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(d)

(e)

()

Certain PRC subsidiaries have entered into various contracts with the PRC partners or their
supervisory authorities for the provision of toll collection, maintenance and management services
and these subsidiaries have agreed to pay a management fee at fixed rates ranging from 14% to

16% (2001: 14% to 16%) per annum of toll revenues after business tax.

At 30 June 2002, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under operating leases

as follows:

2002
HK$’000

Land and buildings
In the first year 9,516
In the second to fifth years inclusive 6,934
After the fifth year -

16,450

2001
HK$’000

15,511
41,066

108,528

165,105
——

At 30 June 2002, the Group has outstanding foreign currency forward contracts amounting to
US$50 million (2001: US$650 million) for the purpose of hedging of long-term borrowings.

29 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

(a)

Reconciliation of operating loss before financing to net cash outflow from operating activities

2002
HK$’000

Operating loss before financing (53,931)
Depreciation 256,830
Dividend from listed non-trading securities -
Profit on repurchase of convertible bonds -
Net gain on disposal of non-trading investments -
Impairment losses on other investments 154,024
Impairment losses of fixed assets 119,500
Impairment losses on goodwill -
Provision for payments on account of proposed joint ventures 33,002
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 4,938
Amortisation of deferred interest income (7,403)
Amortisation of cost of investments in co-operative

joint ventures 17,857
Income from a fixed return co-operative joint venture -
Interest income (134,192)
Increase in debtors and prepayments (121,710)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors and accruals (10,381)
Movements in amounts with minority shareholders 191
Increase in inventories (678,877)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of

A subsidiary (21,735)

Associated companies -

Jointly controlled entities (113,676)
Written-back of impairment loss on other investments -
Net cash outflow from operating activities (555,563)
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2001
Restated
HK$’000

(49,620)
219,838
(11,766)
(1,772)
(110,422)
244,793

109,145
821
(30,352)

1,534
(123,661)
(304,171)
(838,526)
23,220
(65,387)
(500,247)

6,963
426,125
(99,419)

(12,480)

(1,115,384)
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(b)

Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Share capital
including Mandatorily Bank
share Contributed ~ convertible  and other  Short-term  Minority ~ Deferred
premium surplus bonds  borrowings  bank loans interests  expenditure Total
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
At 1 July 2000 5,501,682 971,021 1,162,185 10,189,008 - 1987593 (81,491) 19,729,998
Net cash (outflow)/inflow
from financing (51,757) - - 2576354 82,680 4280 (33,230) 2,578,327
Profit on repurchase of
convertible bonds - - - (1,772) - - - (1,772)
Amortisation of deferred
expenditure - - - - - - 33,296 33,296
Minority interests” share
of profit - - - - - 58,676 - 58,676
Dividend to minority interests - - - - - (2,964) - (2,964)
Land use right contributed by a
minority shareholder of
a subsidiary - - - 72,349 - - - 72,349
Impairment losses charged to
profit and loss account - 109,145 - - - - - 109,145
Acquisition of a subsidiary - - - - - 529 - 529
Goodwill on acquisition
Subsidiaries - (21,612) - - - - - (21,612)
Associated companies - (86,925) - - - - - (86,925)
Additional interest in a jointly
controlled entity - (1,055) - - - - - (1,055)
Release of reserves upon
disposal of interests in
associated companies
Company and a subsidiary - 395,192 - - - - - 395,192
A jointly controlled entity - 976 - - - - - 976
Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - (124213) - (124213)
At 30 June 2001 5449905 1367342 1,162,185 12835939 82,680 1,923,901 (81,425) 22,740,547
At 1 July 2001,
as previously reported 5449905 1258197 1,162,185 12,835,939 82,680 1,923,901 (81,425) 22,631,402
Effect of adopting SSAP 30
(note I(c)) - 109,145 - - - - - 109,145
At 1 July 2001, as restated 5449925 1367342 1162185 12,835,939 82,680 1,923,901 (81,425) 22,740,547
Net cash (outflow)/inflow
from financing - - - (1570974) 515451 - (628)  (1,056,151)
Issue of shares upon
conversion of convertible
bonds 1,162,302 - (L162,185) (117) - - - -
Deficit on repurchase of
convertible bonds - - - 8,307 - - - 8,307
Amortisation of deferred
expenditure - - - - - - 31,056 31,056
Minority interests’ share
of profit - - - - - 5,937 - 5,937
Dividend to minority interests - - - - - (14,453) - (14,453)
Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary - - - 4,615 - (3939) - 676
Release of reserves upon
disposal of interests in
associated companies,
a jointly controlled entity and
a subsidiary - 10,257 - - - 67,681 - 71,938
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries - - - (130,522) - (70,007) - (200,529)
Disposal of a subsidiary - - - (19,965) - 18,925 - (1,040)
At 30 June 2002 6,612,207 1377,599 - 1127343 598,131 1,928,045 (50997) 21,592,348
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(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

In 2001, land use right of HK$72,349,000 was contributed by a minority shareholder of a subsidiary
in the form of shareholders’ loan to that subsidiary.

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
Net assets deconsolidated

Fixed assets 694,816 -
Debtors and prepayments 24,094 -
Bank balances and cash 81,186 -
Creditors and accruals (12,170) -
Bank and other borrowings (130,522) -
Minority interests (70,007) -

587,397 —

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the deconsolidation of
subsidiaries

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
Bank balances and cash deconsolidated 81,186 —

The subsidiaries contributed HK$39,255,000 to the Group’s net operating cash flows, utilised
HK$12,899,000 for investing activities and contributed HK$9,648,000 for financing activities.
The deconsolidated subsidiaries were reclassified to jointly controlled entities in June 2002.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

2001
HK$’000

Net assets acquired
Fixed assets 187
Bank balances and cash 2,774
Creditors and accruals (1,816)
Minority interests (529)
616
Goodwill on acquisition 21,612

22,228
——

Represented by:
Cash 22,228

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries

2001

HK$’000

Cash consideration (22,228)
Bank balances and cash acquired 2,774

(19,454)
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()

(i)

30 Related

Disposal of a subsidiary

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed

Fixed assets 78,651 206,501
Debtors and prepayments 49,291 8,131
Bank balances and cash 29,346 23,248
Creditors and accruals (30,083) (22,140)
Amount due to a minority shareholder of a subsidiary (130,380) -
Taxation - (633)
Bank and other borrowings (19,965) -
Minority interests 18,925 (124,213)
Exchange reserve (690) -
(4,905) 90,894

Gain/(loss) on disposal 21,735 (6,963)
16,830 83,931

Analysis of the net (outflow)/inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of a
subsidiary

2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash received 16,830 30,784
Bank balances and cash disposed (29,346) (23,248)
(12,516) 7,536

— —

party transactions

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions during the year carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business:

2002 2001
HK$°000 HK$°000

Interest income from jointly controlled entities
(gross of withholding tax) (note a) (88,192) (112,639)

Management fee received from a jointly controlled entity (note b) (8,690) (6,753)

Purchases from an associated company (note c¢) 673,772 500,247

Rental for leased premises to a fellow subsidiary (note d) 8,192 8,924

I I

Notes:

(a) This represents interest income in respect of loan financing provided to jointly controlled entities.
These loans are unsecured, carry interest at Hong Kong prime rate (2001: Hong Kong prime rate)
or at fixed rates ranging from 6% to 15% per annum (2001: 6% to 15% per annum) and have
repayment terms as specified in the respective joint venture agreements.

(b) This represents management fee income in respect of management and administrative services
rendered by the Company to a jointly controlled entity. The management fee is charged at a fixed
annual amount as specified in the management and administrative services agreement.

(c) These represent purchases of inventories from an associated company which were sold to the
Group at a price approximate to its original purchase costs from third party suppliers. The Group
also paid approximately HK$969 million (2001: HK$698 million) as trade deposits to the associated
company for the purchase of inventories (note 13(c)).

(d) The rental is charged at fixed monthly fees as specified in the tenancy agreements.
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31

32

33

Subsequent events

(a)

(b)

(c)

On 29 June 2002, the Group entered into a conditional agreement for the sale of its entire interest
in certain subsidiaries holding the Group’s interest in Jincheng to Jiaozuo Expressway (Shanxi
Section) at a cash consideration of approximately HK$650 million. The transaction was completed
in September 2002 and the disposal will not have significant financial effect to the Group for the
year ending 30 June 2003.

In September 2002, Wuhan City Government (the “Government”) announced that the toll collection
right of five bridges in Wuhan, including Yangtze Bridge No. 2, a toll bridge operated by a
subsidiary of the Group, would be ceased with effect from 1 October 2002. The Government has
undertaken to compensate investors on mutually acceptable terms. Although it is difficult to
estimate the outcome of the subsequent negotiation with the Government, the directors consider
that there should not be any material adverse impact to the Group. The net book value of the toll
bridge as at 30 June 2002 was approximately HK$1,381 million in which the Group’s interest was
48.86%.

On 18 October 2002, the board of directors of the Company resolved to implement a Group
reorganisation whereby the Group would dispose of its investments in roads and bridges, water
treatment and power plant projects to a 75% owned subsidiary, Pacific Ports Company Limited
(“PPC”) and acquire the entire equity interest of New World Services Limited, a 52.4% owned
subsidiary of the ultimate holding company by PPC. In addition, pursuant to the reorganisation,
the Group would convert all preference shares of PPC into ordinary shares and thereafter distribute
all the PPC ordinary shares including the consideration shares received from PPC in respect of
the aforesaid disposal to the shareholders of the Company. After the reorganisation, the Group
will be focusing on the TMT businesses.

Ultimate holding company

The directors of the Company consider New World Development Company Limited, incorporated and
listed in Hong Kong, as being the ultimate holding company.

Approval of accounts

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on 18 October 2002.
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34 Principal subsidiaries
As at 30 June 2002 and 30 June 2001
Percentage of
Share capital issued equity shares held
Par value By the By the

Number per share Company Group Principal activities

Incorporated and operating in

Hong Kong
Billionoble Investment Limited 4,998 HKS$1 - 100  Investment holding
ordinary
2 HK$1 - -
non-voting
deferred
Keen Sales Limited 2 HK$1 - 75  Investment holding
ordinary
2 HKS$1 - -
non-voting
deferred
New World Port Investments 2 HKS$1 - 75  Investment holding
Limited ordinary
Ready City Limited 200 HKS$1 - 75  Investment holding
ordinary
True Hope Investment Limited 4,998 HKS$1 - 100 Investment holding
ordinary
2 HKS$1 - -
non-voting
deferred
Try Force Limited 4,998 HKS$1 - 100  Investment holding
ordinary
2 HK$1 - -
non-voting
deferred
Incorporated in Bermuda and
operating in Hong Kong
Pacific Ports Company 2,059,968,000 HK$0.10 - 75  Investment holding
Limited ordinary
3,193,654,306  HK$0.10 - 100
preference
Incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and
operating in Hong Kong
Lotsgain Limited 100 USS$1 100 - Investment holding
ordinary
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Share capital issued/
registered capital

Par value
Amount  per share
Incorporated and
operating in the PRC
Gaoming Xinming Rmb60,000,000 -
Bridge Ltd.
Guangdong Xinzhaogao Rmb80,000,000 -

Highways Co., Ltd.

Guangxi Beiliu Xinbei
Highways Limited

Guangxi Cangwu Xincang
Highways Limited

Guangdong Gaoyao
Xinjun Highways
Limited

Guangdong Gaoyao
Xinwei Highways
Limited

Guangxi Rongxian
Xinrong Highways
Limited

Guangxi Yulin Xintong
Highways Limited

Guangxi Yulin Xinye
Highways Limited

Guangxi Yulin Xinyu
Highways Limited

New World Infrastructure
(China) Investment
Limited

Qingyuan Xincheng
Highways Limited

Shanxi Xinbei Expressway
Company Limited

Shanxi Xinda Highways
Limited

Shanxi Xindan Expressway
Company Limited

Shanxi Xinhan Expressway
Company Limited

Shanxi Xinjing Expressway
Company Limited

Shanxi Xinhuang
Highways Limited

Rmb99,200,000

Rmb64,000,000

Rmb71,600,000

Rmb38,500,000

Rmb82,400,000

Rmb64,000,000

Rmb63,800,000

Rmb96,000,000

US$123,000,000

Rmb36,000,000

Rmb85,050,000

Rmb49,000,000

Rmb87,150,000

Rmb84,700,000

Rmb80,500,000

Rmb57,100,000
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Attributable

interest (note)

To the To the

Company  Group

- 80(e)

- 70(d)

- 60(d)

- 70(d)

- 55(d)

- 60(d)

- 70(d)

- 60(d)

- 60(d)

- 60(d)

100(b) -

- 80(d)

- 90(f)

- 90(f)

- 90(f)

- 90(f)

- 90(f)

- 90(f)

Principal activities

Operation of toll bridge

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Investment holding

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road
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Share capital issued/ Attributable
registered capital interest (note)
Par value To the  To the
Amount  per share Company  Group Principal activities

Shanxi Xinnan Expressway Rmb83,650,000 - - 90(f) Operation of toll road
Company Limited

Shanxi Xinze Expressway Rmb82,950,000 - - 90(f) Operation of toll road
Company Limited

Suzhou Huisu International US$3,750,000 - - 41.25(c) Container handling,
Container Freight warehousing and road
Wharfs Co., Ltd freight operations

Taiyuan Xintai Highways Rmb72,120,000 - - 90(f) Operation of toll road
Limited

Taiyuan Xinyuan Rmb85,880,000 - - 90(f) Operation of toll road
Highways Limited

Wuhan Bridge Rmb502,850,000 Rmbl - 48.86(a) Operation of toll bridge
Construction Co., Ltd.

Wuzhou Xinwu Highways Rmb72,000,000 - - 45(d) Operation of toll road
Limited

Xiamen New World US$5,000,000 - - 75(b) Development of
Xiangyu Warehouse & warehousing,
Processing Zone Limited processing and

logistic facilities

Yunfu Xinxing Rmb30,000,000 - - 55(d) Operation of toll road
Highways Limited

Zhaoqing Deqing Xinyue Rmb68,000,000 - - 65(d) Operation of toll road
Highways Limited

Zhaoqing Xinde Rmb165,867,000 - - 45(d) Operation of toll road
Highways Co., Ltd.

Zhaoqing Xinfeng Rmb94,000,000 - - 45(d) Operation of toll road
Highways Co., Ltd.

Zhaoqing Xingao Rmb54,000,000 - - 40(d) Operation of toll road
Highways Co., Ltd.

Zhaoqing Xinhui Rmb103,500,000 - - 50(d) Operation of toll road
Highways Co., Ltd.

Zhaoging Xinning Rmb90,000,000 - - 55(d) Operation of toll road
Highways Co., Ltd.

Notes:

(a) percentage of equity interest in a joint stock limited company

(b) percentage of equity interest in wholly foreign-owned enterprises

(c) percentage of equity interest in equity joint ventures

(d) profit sharing percentage in co-operative joint ventures

(e) profit sharing percentage in a co-operative joint venture for the first 7 years of the joint venture

period, and thereafter 30%
) cash sharing ratio for the first 12 years of the joint venture period, and thereafter 60%
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35 Principal associated companies

As at 30 June 2002
Percentage of
equity shares held
Share capital issued (note)
Par value To the To the
Number per share Company Group Principal activities

Incorporated and operating

in Hong Kong
CSX World Terminals 55,000 “A” HK$1 - —  Operation of container
Hong Kong Limited Ordinary terminal
5,000 “B” HK$1 - 25.01
Ordinary
Incorporated and operating
in the United States
CyberLancet Corporation 49,000,000 - - —  Development of
Common internet technology
21,000,000 - - 100
Series A
Preferred
CyberNova Corporation 30,000,000 - - —  Development of
Common cable modem
20,000,000 - - 100
Series A
Preferred
PrediWave Corporation 35,000,000 - - —  Development of
Common video-on-demand
15,000,000 - - 100 technology
Series A
Preferred
TechStock, Inc. 30,000,000 - - —  Technology
Common investment holding
20,000,000 - - 100
Series A
Preferred
Visionaire Technology 35,000,000 - - —  Technology
Corporation Common investment holding
15,000,000 - - 100*
Series A
Preferred
WarpEra Corporation 42,000,000 - - —  Development of
Common computer
18,000,000 - - 100* hardware and
Series A software
Preferred

Incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and operating

in Hong Kong
New QU Energy Limited 65,000,000 - - — Development and
Common production of heat
35,000,000 - - 64.29% transfer devices
Series A
Preferred

Note: except for the associated companies acquired during the year which are marked with an asterisk,
percentage of equity interest is unchanged from 30 June 2001
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36

Principal jointly controlled entities

As at 30 June 2002

Incorporated and operating
in the PRC

Equity joint ventures

Guangzhou Oriental Power
Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Pearl River
Power Co., Ltd.

CSX Orient (Tianjin) Container
Terminals Co., Limited
(formerly Sea-Land Orient
(Tianjin) Container Terminals
Co., Limited)

Co-operative joint ventures

Beijing-Zhuhai Expressway
Guangzhou — Zhuhai
Section Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Northring
Freeway Company Limited

Huishen (Yantian)
Expressway Huizhou
Co., Ltd.

Huizhou City Hui-Ao
Roadway Co., Ltd.

Huizhou City Huixin
Expressway Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen New World
Xianglong Network
Technology Company
Limited

Shenzhen New World
Xianglong Technology
Development Company
Limited

Sichuan Qianwei Dali
Power Company Limited

Tianjin Xindi Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinlong Expressway
Company Limited

Registered
capital
Amount

Rmb990,000,000

Rmb420,000,000

US$29,200,000

Rmb580,000,000

US$19,255,000

Rmb39,000,000

Rmb75,000,000

Rmb34,400,000

Rmb187,680,000

Rmb93,840,000

Rmb248,413,000

Rmb93,688,000

Rmb99,400,000

91—

Attributable
interest (note)

To the
Company

To the
Group

25(a)

50(b)

18.38(a)

25(c)

65.29(c)

33.33(c)

50(c)

50(c)

84.46(c)

84.46(c)

60(c)

90(d)

90(d)

Principal activities

Generation and supply
of electricity

Generation and supply
of electricity

Operation of container
terminal

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll roads
Investment holding and

operation of toll road
Exploration of wireless

telecommunication
network

Exploration of wireless
telecommunication
network

Generation and supply
of electricity

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road
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Tianjin Xinlu Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinming Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinqing Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinquan Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinsen Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinshi Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinsi Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xintong Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xintuo Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinxiang Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinyan Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Xinzhan Expressway
Company Limited

Tianjin Yongfa Highway And
Bridge Construction
Development Company
Limited

Wuhan Airport Road
Development Ltd.

Xiamen Xiang Yu Quay
Co., Ltd.

Xiamen Xinyuan Container
Terminal Co., Ltd.

Xiamen Xiangyu Free Port
Developing Co., Ltd.

Registered

capital

Amount

Rmb99,092,000

Rmb85,468,000

Rmb99,368,000

Rmb92,016,000

Rmb87,300,000

Rmb99,388,000

Rmb96,624,000

Rmb99,448,000

Rmb99,316,000

Rmb90,472,000

Rmb89,028,000

Rmb89,392,000

Rmb40,000,000

Rmb60,000,000

Rmb100,000,000

Rmb17,000,000

Rmb117,340,000
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Attributable

interest (note)

To the To the

Company  Group

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(d)

- 90(c)

- 40(c)

45.98(c)

45.98(c)

— 45.98(c)*

Principal activities

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll road

Operation of toll bridge

Operation of toll road

Container handling,
and storage and road
freight operations

Cargo consolidation,
container storage and

repairs and maintenance

Development of
container terminal
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE NWI GROUP

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

percentage of equity interest in equity joint ventures

percentage of equity interest in an equity joint venture for the 11th year and onwards of the joint
venture period. For the first 10 years of the joint venture period, the Group is entitled to a fixed

return

profit sharing percentage in co-operative joint ventures

cash sharing ratio for the first 15 years of the joint venture period, and thereafter 60%

Except for the jointly controlled entity acquired during the year which is marked with a asterisk and the
profit sharing ratio of Xiamen Xiang Yu Quay Co., Ltd. and Xiamen Xinyuan Container Terminal Co., Ltd.
decreased from 69% to 45.98% and 52.5% to 45.98% respectively, percentage of attributable interest unchanged
from 30 June 2001.

Share capital issued

Par value
Number per share
Incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong
Companies limited by shares
ATL Logistics Centre 100,000 “A” HKS$1
Hong Kong Limited ordinary
20,000 “B” HK$1
preference
54,918 HK$1
non-voting
deferred
Tate’s Cairn Tunnel Company 1,100,000 HK$0.01
Limited ordinary
600,000,000 HK$1
non-voting
deferred
Asia Container Terminals 1,000 HKS$1
Limited ordinary
Incorporated in Hong Kong
and operating in Macau
and the PRC
Companies limited by shares
Sino-French Holdings 1,086,280 HK$100
(Hong Kong) Limited “A” ordinary
2,089,000 HK$100
“B” ordinary
1,002,720 HK$100
“C” ordinary
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Percentage of
equity shares held

By the By the
Company Group

- 41.75

- 59.69

- 29.50

- 27.25

Principal activities

Operation of cargo
handling and
storage facilities

Operation of
toll tunnel

Development and
operation of
container terminal

Operation of water
and electricity
plants
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II. INDEBTEDNESS

At the close of business on 30 September, 2002, being the latest practicable date for the
purpose of this indebtedness statement prior to the printing of this circular, the NWI Group had
outstanding borrowings totalling approximately HK$11,459 million.

The NWI Group had outstanding secured bank loans of approximately HK$1,620 million.
The bank loans are secured by the NWI Group’s interest in certain PRC joint ventures, the toll
collection right of certain toll roads in PRC held by the NWI Group in the PRC and pledge of
deposits.

The NWI Group also had outstanding unsecured borrowings totalling approximately
HK$7,968 million comprising bank loans of approximately HK$5,514 million, a loan from a
fellow subsidiary of approximately HK$1,400 million and loans from minority shareholders of
approximately HK$1,054 million.

In addition, the NWI Group had outstanding notes totalling approximately HK$551 million
comprising 10% notes due 2004 of HK$200 million and floating rate notes due 2003 of
approximately HK$351 million. The NWI Group also had approximately HK$1,320 million 1%
convertible bonds due 2003 outstanding as at 30 September, 2002.

The NWI Group has contingent liabilities relating to guarantees given to banks of
approximately HK$1,059 million in respect of the bank loan facilities extended to two jointly
controlled entities of the NWI Group, out of which approximately HK$527 million has been
counter-indemnified by an associated company of the NWI Group. As at 30 September, 2002, the
outstanding amounts under the bank loan facilities in respect of the guarantees were approximately
HK$374 million.

Save as aforesaid, and apart from intra-group liabilities and trade creditors, the NWI Group
did not have outstanding at the close of business on 30 September, 2002 any debentures, loan
capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued, overdrafts, loans or other similar indebtedness
in the nature of borrowings, liabilities under acceptance or acceptance credits, mortgages, charges,
hire purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

The NWI Directors have confirmed that, as at the Latest Practicable Date, there has been no
material change in the indebtedness and contingent liabilities of the NWI Group since 30 September,
2002.

III. FINANCIAL AND TRADING PROSPECTS

The financial and trading prospects of the infrastructure and ports businesses which the
NWI Group currently holds are not expected to change significantly before Completion.

Following completion of the Reorganisation, the NWI Group will continue to operate its
non-traditional infrastructure projects including mobile communications and data transmission
operations in the PRC and the United States of America. The TMT Assets are maturing and many
of them will be in a position to launch products in the market in 2003. Given that the TMT Assets
are still in the developmental stages, the NWI Shareholders should note that the growth prospects
and profitability of the TMT Assets are not proven and therefore, the financial prospects of the
TMT Assets, will be dependent on the successful launch of the commercialised TMT products.
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APPENDIX II PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF
THE NWI GROUP POST-REORGANISATION

1. PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED ADJUSTED CONSOLIDATED NET

TANGIBLE ASSETS OF THE NWI GROUP

The following is a statement of the pro forma unaudited adjusted consolidated net tangible
assets of the NWI Group immediately following Reorganisation. It is based on the audited net
tangible assets of the Group as at 30 June, 2002, adjusted to reflect the effect of the disposal of the
Infrastructure Assets to PPC, the Services Assets Acquisition by PPC, the conversion of all the

Preference Shares and the Distribution.

Audited consolidated net assets of the NWI Group as at 30 June, 2002

Less: Deferred expenditure and goodwill (Note 1)

Audited consolidated net tangible assets of the NWI Group
as at 30 June, 2002

Add: Cash Consideration to be received from PPC and
the release of obligations under the BOC Loan (Note 2)

Less: Carrying value of the Infrastructure Assets to be disposed of
to PPC (Note 3)

Estimated expenses relating to the Reorganisation

Change in the net tangible asset value of the Enlarged PPC Group to
be held by the NWI Group immediately following the disposal of the
Infrastructure Assets to PPC, the Services Assets Acquisition

by PPC and the conversion of all the Preference Shares (Note 4)

Distribution of net tangible asset value of the Enlarged PPC Group to
shareholders (Note 5)

Pro forma unaudited adjusted consolidated net tangible assets
of the NWI Group immediately following the Reorganisation

Audited consolidated net tangible asset value per NWI Share
as at 30 June, 2002 (Note 6)

Pro forma unaudited adjusted consolidated net tangible asset value
per NWI Share immediately following the Reorganisation (Note 7)
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11,962,644

(85,890)

11,876,754

9,431,411

(9,070,338)

(35,000)

(1,163,377)

(2,389,724)

8,649,726
HK$12.47

HK$9.08



APPENDIX II PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF

THE NWI GROUP POST-REORGANISATION

Notes:

This includes deferred expenditure of HK$50,997,000 (as shown under non-current assets) and goodwill
on acquisitions of associated companies of HK$34,893,000 (as included under associated companies).

This represents the aggregate amount of Cash Consideration of HK$8,545,000,000 to be paid by PPC and
undertaking to repay the principal and interest outstanding from NWCI under the BOC Loan of
HK$886,411,000 by PPC for the disposal of Infrastructure Assets to PPC.

The carrying value of the Infrastructure Assets includes the book value of the Infrastructure Assets of
HK$9,024,162,000 and the borrowing costs capitalised by the NWI Group of HK$46,176,000 relating to
the financing of the qualifying investments in Tangjin Highways Companies.

This represents the change in share of net tangible assets of the PPC Group held by the NWI Group as at
30 June, 2002 of HK$3,553,101,000 and share of net tangible assets of the Enlarged PPC Group immediately
before the Distribution of HK$2,389,724,000.

This represents distribution in specie of net tangible asset value of the Enlarged PPC Group held by the
NWI Group immediately before Distribution to the NWI Shareholders.

The audited consolidated net tangible asset value per NWI Share as at 30 June, 2002 is calculated based
on 952,180,007 NWI Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date.

The pro forma unaudited adjusted consolidated net tangible asset value per NWI Share immediately

following the Reorganisation is calculated based on 952,180,007 NWI Shares in issue as at the Latest
Practicable Date.
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THE NWI GROUP POST-REORGANISATION

2. UNAUDITED PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF ADJUSTED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
OF THE NWI GROUP

The following is a statement of the unaudited pro forma adjusted assets and liabilities of the
NWI Group immediately following the Reorganisation. It is based on the audited consolidated net
assets of NWI as at 30 June, 2002 as set out in Part 1 of Appendix I, adjusted to reflect the effect of
the disposal of the Infrastructure Assets to PPC, the Services Assets Acquisition by PPC, the conversion
of all the Preference Shares and the Distribution.

Disposal of the Infrastructure Assets to PPC, The NWI
the Services Assets Acquisition by PPC Group The NWI
The NWI and the conversion of all the Preference Shares before The Distribution Group after
Group ~ Adjustments Note Adjustments Nofe Adjustments Note Adjustments Note Distribution Adjustments Note Adjustments Note Distribution
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Non-current assets
Deferred expenditure 50,997 50,997 50,997
Associated companies 2,763,858 (730,677) 3 2,033,181 2,033,181
Tnvestment in PPC - 358799 3 804513 3 4452507 493564 5 (4946071) 5 -
Jointly controlled
entities 10,837,603 (6,607.719) 2 (2357125) 3 1,872,759 1,872,759
Fixed assets 7493158 (5,657,627) 2 (272,189 3 1,563,342 1,563,342
Amount due from PPC - 190,151 1 790,151 790,151
Other non-current assets 2,048,363 (3,007) 3 2,045,336 2,045,336
Total non-current assets 23,193979 12,808,273 8,355,766
Current assets
Amount due from PPC - 96,2600 1 96,260 96,260
Pledged deposits §38,666 §38,660 838,666
Bank balances and cash 956,408 8,545,000 1 (352,182) 2 (349.331) 3 8,799,895 §,799,895
Other current assets 2,634,818 (296,126) 2 (6,091) 3 2,332,001 2,332,001
Toal st g S5 4
Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals (1,257,892) 681,100 2 19627 3 (35,000) 4 (592,165) (592,165)
Current portion of
long term liabilities (2236935) 1336 2 (2,234,599 (2,034,599
Other current liabilities (1,103,713 ) 87,069 2 n 3 (1,016,373) (1,016,373
Total current liabilities (4,598,540 ) (3.843,137) (3,843,137)
Non-current liabilities (9,134,642 1397339 2 1248 3 (1,7124814) (1,7124814)
Total liabilities _(13,733,182) (11,567.951) _(11,567.951)
Minority interests _(1.928,045) 1675872 2 98259 3 _(153.914) __(153914)
Net assets 11,962,644 13,153,230 8,700,723
— I —
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THE NWI GROUP POST-REORGANISATION

Notes:

This represents the total consideration for the disposal of the Infrastructure Assets to PPC which includes:
@) Cash Consideration of HK$8,545,000,000; and

(i) amount due from PPC of HK$886,411,000 for the onward repayment of the principal and interest
outstanding from NWCI under the BOC Loan to be undertaken by PPC. Of this amount,
HK$96,260,000 is receivable within one year and is included in current assets and HK$790,151,000
receivable after one year is included in non-current assets.

These represent the carrying values of assets and liabilities of the Infrastructure Assets to be disposed of
to PPC.

Immediately after the disposal of the Infrastructure Assets to PPC, the Services Assets Acquisition by
PPC and the conversion of all the Preference Shares but before the Distribution, the NWI Group will hold
5,591,617,549 PPC Shares (equivalent to approximately 31.40% issued ordinary share capital of PPC),
being the aggregate number of the 1,544,976,000 PPC Shares held by the NWI Group as at the Latest
Practicable Date, 852,987,243 PPC Shares to be received as consideration for the disposal of the
Infrastructure Assets to PPC and 3,193,654,306 PPC Shares to be received upon the conversion of all the
Preference Shares.

As a result of the dilution of interest from 75% to approximately 31.40% in the ordinary issued share
capital of PPC immediately before the Distribution, PPC ceases to be accounted for as a subsidiary of
NWTI and the carrying values of assets and liabilities of the PPC Group of HK$3,587,994,000 (net)
previously included in the consolidated accounts of NWI as at 30 June, 2002 are deducted from the assets
and liabilities of the NWI Group. The net assets of the PPC Group held by the NWI Group of
HK$4,452,507,000, being 31.40% of net assets of the PPC Group immediately before the Distribution, is
accounted for as an investment in PPC.

This represents the estimated expenses to be incurred relating to the Reorganisation.
This represents distribution in specie of all the PPC Shares held by the NWI Group immediately before
the Distribution. The amount of dividend of HK$4,946,071,000 represents the carrying value of net assets

of the PPC Group of HK$4,452,507,000 and goodwill on acquisition previously taken to reserves of
HK$493,564,000.
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THE NWI GROUP POST-REORGANISATION

3. INDEBTEDNESS

Assuming the completion of the Reorganisation took place at the close of business on 30
September, 2002, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of this indebtedness statement
prior to the printing of this circular, the NWI Group had outstanding borrowings totalling
approximately HK$10,294 million.

The NWI Group had outstanding secured bank loans of approximately HK$1,484 million.
Of this amount, the BOC Loan of approximately HK$886 million was secured by the interests in
the Tangjin Highway Companies. Pursuant to the Deed of Trust, PPC will undertake to repay the
principal and interest outstanding under the BOC Loan from time to time as they fall due. The
remaining bank loans of approximately HK$598 million were secured by pledge of deposits.

The NWI Group also had outstanding unsecured borrowings totalling approximately
HK$6,939 million comprising bank loans of approximately HK$5,514 million, a loan from a
fellow subsidiary of approximately HK$1,400 million and loans from minority shareholders of
approximately HK$25 million.

In addition, the NWI Group had outstanding notes totalling approximately HK$551 million
comprising 10% notes due 2004 of HK$200 million and floating rate notes due 2003 of
approximately HK$351 million. The NWI Group also had an amount of approximately HK$1,320
million 1% convertible bonds due 2003 outstanding as at 30 September, 2002.

Pursuant to the Infrastructure Assets Sale Agreement, NWI will receive Cash Consideration
of HK$8,545 million which will be used by NWI to voluntarily repay NWI’s existing creditors in
an aggregate amount of approximately HK$8,545 million.

Save as aforesaid, and apart from intra-group liabilities and trade creditors, the NWI Group
did not have outstanding at the close of business on 30 September, 2002 any debentures, loan
capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued, overdrafts, loans or other similar indebtedness
in the nature of borrowings, liabilities under acceptance or acceptance credits, mortgages, charges,
hire purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

The NWI Directors have confirmed that, as at the Latest Practicable Date, there has been no
material change in the indebtedness and contingent liabilities of the NWI Group since 30 September,
2002.

4. WORKING CAPITAL
The NWI Directors are of the opinion that, based on the expected cash flows, the NWI

Group will, following completion of the Reorganisation, have sufficient working capital to meet its
present requirements in the absence of unforeseen circumstances.
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APPENDIX III  VALUATION OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

The following is the text of a letter summarising the principal conclusions of a valuation of
the Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June, 2002 prepared for the purposes of inclusion in this circular,
received from Sallmanns, an independent professional valuer.

Ed Sallmanns H

CHARTERED SURVEYORS, PROPERTY CONSULTANTS 15/F Trinity House
LAND, BUILDING, PLANT & MACHINERY VALUERS 166-171 Wanchai Road
FINANCIAL AND INTANGIBLE ASSET VALUERS Wanchai

Hong Kong

18 November, 2002

The Board of Directors

New World Infrastructure Limited
9/F, New World Tower 2

18 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

The Board of Directors

New World Development Company Limited
30/F, New World Tower 1

18 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

The Board of Directors

Pacific Ports Company Limited
21/F, New World Tower 2

18 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

In accordance with NWI’s instructions, we have undertaken a valuation to determine the
market value of (1) a 50% equity interest in Sino-French Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sino-
French Holdings™) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Sino-French Group”), and New World
Infrastructure Limited’s (“NWI”) equity interest in 4 power plants in the PRC (the “PRC Power
Projects”) (together with the Sino-French Group, the “Power and Water Projects”) and (2) NWI’s
equity interest in 36 toll roads, bridges and tunnels in the PRC and Hong Kong (altogether named
the “Roads and Bridges Projects™) as at 30 June, 2002 (the “Valuation Date”). This letter summarises
the principal conclusions stated in our valuation report dated 18 November, 2002.

We understand that the valuation will be used for sales and acquisition reference purposes.
Our valuation was carried out on a market value basis. Market value is defined as “the
estimated amount for which an asset should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing

buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion”.
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Power and Water Projects

NWI, through Sino-French Group and other indirectly held joint-venture companies, operates
a water plant in Macau, 15 water plants and a micro-filtration equipment company in the PRC, 1
power plant in Macau and 4 power plants in the PRC.

Sino-French Group

Sino-French Holdings, incorporated in Hong Kong on 14 May 1985, is an investment holding
company with no operating activity and its principal assets are 90%, 85% and 100% equity interests
in Sino-French Energy Development Company Limited (“Sino-French Energy Development”),
Sociedade de Abastecimento de Aguas Macau S.A.R.L. (“SAAM”) and Sino French Water
Development Company Limited (“Sino French Water Development”) respectively.

Sino-French Energy Development owns 45% interest in Companhia de Electricidade de
Macau — CEM, S.A. (“CEM”), a power plant in Macau. SAAM is a water supply company located
in Macau. Sino French Water Development is an investment holding company which holds equity
interests in various water plant investment companies. The Sino-French Group, through Sino French
Water Development, indirectly owns equity interests in 14 water plants and a micro-filtration
equipment company in the PRC. The Sino-French Group also owns approximately 8.64% equity
interest in Shenyang Public Utility Holding Company Limited (“SPU”), a public listed company in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

PRC Power Projects

The Power and Water Projects also include the PRC Power Projects. NWI has set up separate
joint-venture companies (the “Power JV Companies”) to construct, manage and operate the PRC
Power Projects. The PRC Power Projects comprise 4 power plants in the PRC, which include 3
power plants in Guangdong Province and 1 power plant in Sichuan Province.

Roads and Bridges Projects

NWI has set up separate joint-venture companies (the “Road JV Companies”) to construct,
manage and operate the Roads and Bridges Projects. The operations of the project companies,
except the Tate’s Cairn Tunnel which is in Hong Kong, are in the PRC. In particular, there are 32
toll roads (of which Beijing-Zhuhai Expressway comprises sections I and II and Hui-Ao Roadway
comprises the Hui-Ao section and the Hui-Dan section), 3 bridges and 1 tunnel. In terms of
geographical location, there are 20 toll roads and 2 bridges in Guangdong Province, 6 toll roads in
Guangxi Province, 4 toll roads in Shanxi Province, 1 expressway and 1 bridge in Tianjin
Municipality, 1 expressway in Wuhan City and 1 tunnel in Hong Kong.

In arriving at our assessed value, we have considered three generally accepted approaches.
They are market approach, cost approach and income approach. In this valuation, the market
approach is not appropriate as there are insufficient comparable transactions from which to form
an opinion of value. The cost approach is not appropriate as it ignores the economic benefits of
ownership of the business. We have therefore relied solely on the income approach in determining
our opinion of value.

We are of opinion that the income approach is the most appropriate in the present

circumstances. In using the income approach, we believe that the discounted cash flow method
best reflects the current situation.
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The valuation of the Power and Water Projects and the Roads and Bridges Projects requires
consideration of all pertinent factors affecting the operation of the respective operational areas and
the respective projects’ ability to generate future investment returns. The factors considered in this
valuation included, but were not limited to, the following:

. the operating condition of the project companies in the Power and Water Projects and
the Roads and Bridges Projects;

. the economic outlook in general and the specific economic environment related to the
business;
. past and projected operating results of the project companies in the Power and Water

Projects and the Roads and Bridges Projects;

. the potential of the business and industry outlook;

. comparative advantages and disadvantages of the business and industry;

. market-derived investment returns of entities engaged in similar lines of business;
and

. the financial and operational risk of the business including the continuity of income

and the projected future results.

In determining the value of the Power and Water Projects, and the Roads and Bridges
Projects, we have made the following key assumptions:

. we have assumed that the projected business can be achieved with the effort of the
project companies’ management;

. as advised by NWI, all distributable cash flow generated by the Sino-French Group
for year 2002 will be considered for the valuation of the Power and Water Projects,
notwithstanding the fact that the valuation date is 30 June, 2002;

. in order to realize the growth potential of the business and maintain a competitive
edge, additional manpower, equipment and facilities are necessary to be employed.
For the valuation exercise, we have assumed that proposed facilities and systems are
sufficient for future expansion;

. we have assumed that there will be no material change in the existing political, legal,
technological, fiscal or economic conditions, which might adversely affect the business
of the Sino-French Group, the Power JV Companies and the Road JV Companies;

. natural weather can have an impact on toll roads, including flooding and other types
of inclement weather. We have assumed that no extended closure will occur; and

. we have also assumed the accuracy of the financial and operational information

provided to us by NWI and relied to a considerable extent on such information in
arriving at our opinion of value.
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In determining the discount rate for the operations adopted in the valuation, we have taken
into account a number of factors including the current market condition and the underlying risk
inherent in the business, such as uncertainty risk, liquidity risk, etc. The discount rates adopted in
the valuation of the Power and Water Projects, and the Roads and Bridges Projects are as follows:

Power and Water Projects
Discount rate for the operations of CEM and SAAM is 10.68% while the discount rate for
the operation of Sino French Water Development and the PRC Power Projects is 14.68%.

Roads and Bridges Projects
Discount rate for Roads and Bridges Projects is 14.84%.

We have applied these discount rates in the valuation of the Power and Water Projects, and
the Roads and Bridges Projects and we believe that these discount rates are reasonable.

Please note that in aggregating the market values, we have not included the operating costs,
loan repayments and other cash flow of the direct and indirect investment holding companies of
the Roads and Bridges Projects and those 4 PRC power plants in the Power and Water Projects.

The conclusion of value is based on accepted valuation procedures and practices that rely
substantially on the use of numerous assumptions and the consideration of many uncertainties, not
all of which can be easily quantified or ascertained. Further, while the assumptions and consideration
of such matters are considered by us to be reasonable, they are inherently subject to significant
business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond
the control of Sino-French Group, the Power JV Companies, the Road JV Companies and Sallmanns
(Far East) Limited.

Based on our investigation and analysis, it is our opinion that as at 30 June 2002, the
aggregate market value of the Power and Water Projects was HK$3,459 million (HONG KONG
DOLLARS THREE BILLION FOUR HUNDRED AND FIFTY-NINE MILLION), the Roads
and Bridges Projects was HK$6,701 million (HONG KONG DOLLARS SIX BILLION SEVEN
HUNDRED AND ONE MILLION), and the aggregate market value of the Power and Water
Projects, and the Roads and Bridges Projects was reasonably stated by the amount of HK$10,160
million (HONG KONG DOLLARS TEN BILLION ONE HUNDRED AND SIXTY MILLION
ONLY).

Aggregate Market Value

Power and Water Projects HK$3,459 million
Roads and Bridges Projects HK$6,701 million
Total Aggregate Market Value HK$10,160 million

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of
Sallmanns (Far East) Limited

Paul L. Brown Vincent T. B. Chong
BSc, FRICS FHKIS ACA FHKSA FTIHK
Chief Executive Managing Director
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APPENDIX IV

VALUATION OF THE NWS GROUP

The following is the text of a letter summarising the principal conclusions of a valuation of
the NWS Group as at 30 June, 2002 prepared for the purposes of inclusion in this circular,
received from American Appraisal, an independent professional valuer.

£ B FH LA R 4]

/’A American Appraisal Hongkong Limited

AT S AT 1085 KA A sk P o154 1506-10%

Rm 1506-10, 15/F., Dao Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone & # : (852) 2511 5200  Fascsimile f Ji : (852) 2511 9262
Website #3 3k : www.american-appraisal.com.hk

The Board of Directors

New World Services Limited
17/F, New World Tower 2

18 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

The Board of Directors

New World Development Company Limited
30/F, New World Tower 1

18 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

The Board of Directors

New World Infrastructure Limited
9/F, New World Tower 2

18 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

The Board of Directors

Pacific Ports Company Limited
21/F, New World Tower 2

18 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

PRC Offices

Beijing:—

Unit 608, IBM Tower Pacific

Century Place, 2A Gong Ti Bei Liu,
Chacyang District Beijing,

China, PRC 100027

Tel :(86-10) 6539 1334, 6539 1335
Fax :(86-10) 6539 1336

Shanghai:—

39/F Plaza 66, 1266 Nan Jing
Road West, Shanghai,

China, PRC 200040

Tel :(86-21) 6288 1478/1474
Fax :(86-21) 6288 1475

Shenzhen:—

17A Block South Jing Yuan Building,
Hou Hai Road, Shekou, Shenzhen
China, PRC 518067

Tel/Fax : (86-755) 667 8717

International Offices
Africa

Austria

Canada

Czech Republic
Germany
Greece
Hungary

Italy

Japan

Mexico
Portugal

PR China
Russia

South America
Spain

Thailand

United Kingdom
United States

18 November, 2002

In accordance with your instructions, we have made an appraisal of the fair market value of
the 100% equity interest in New World Services Limited (“NWS”), which includes the following

business enterprises (the “Business Units”):

1. The Contracting Sub-division (“ConSD”), which includes 100% equity interest in

NWS CON Holdings Ltd and its subsidiaries.

2. The E&M Engineering Sub-division (“E&MSD”), which includes 100% equity interest

in NWS E&M Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiaries.
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3. The Facility Management Sub-division (“FMSD”), which includes 100% equity interest
in NWS FM Ltd and its subsidiaries.

4. The Property Management Sub-division (“PMSD”), which includes 100% equity
interest in NWS P&M Ltd and its subsidiaries;

5. The Security Sub-division (“SecSD”), which includes 100% equity interest in NWS
S&G Limited and its subsidiaries.

6. The Environmental & Consumer-related Sub-division (“EnvSD”’), which includes 100%
equity interest in NWS SER Ltd and its subsidiaries.

7. The Transport Division (“TranDiv”’), which includes 100% equity interest in New
World First Holdings Ltd and its subsidiaries.

8. The Financial Management and Investment Division (“FMIDiv”), which includes 100%
equity interest in NWS Financial Management Services Ltd. and its subsidiaries.

This letter identifies the businesses appraised, describes the basis of valuation and
assumptions, explains the valuation methodology utilized, and presents our conclusion of value.

The purpose of this appraisal is to express an independent opinion of the fair market value
of the equity interest in the Business Units as at 30 June, 2002. It is our understanding that this
appraisal is for asset injection into a listed company.

INTRODUCTION

Contracting Sub-division

ConSD provides a comprehensive range of construction and related services such as building
construction, civil engineering, decoration and fitting-out works, construction management and
building equipment and materials supply.

E&M Engineering Sub-division

E&MSD designs, provides and installs a wide range of building-related E&M engineering
works including air-conditioning, heating and ventilation systems, fire services systems, plumbing
and drainage systems, and electrical systems.
Facility Management Sub-division

FMSD operates and manages the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, the leading
world-class fully-integrated convention and exhibition facility in Hong Kong and provides
consultancy and advisory services in relation to design and operation of convention and exhibition
facilities and related functions such as the setting up of media and broadcasting centres for major
international functions, as well as restaurants and catering services.

Property Management Sub-division

PMSD provides services including building management, car park management and property
agency in China.
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Security Sub-division

SecSD provides security and guarding services and security alarm system installation and
monitoring services.

Environment & Consumer-related Sub-division

EnvSD provides a diversified range of services, including building and office cleaning
services, laundry services, landscaping, plant supply and pollution protection.

Transport Division

TranDiv provides various bus and ferry services.
Financial Management and Investment Division

FMIDiv primarily engaged in the insurance business and investment of listed securities.
BASIS OF VALUATION AND ASSUMPTIONS

We have appraised the Business Units on the basis of fair market value. Fair market value is
defined as the estimated amount at which the business enterprise might be expected to exchange
between a willing buyer and a willing seller, neither being under compulsion, each having reasonable
knowledge of all relevant facts, and with the buyer and seller contemplating retention of the
business at its present location for continuation of current operations unless the break-up of the
business or the sale of its assets would yield greater investment returns.

The business enterprise is defined for this appraisal as the combination of all tangible assets
(real property, machinery and equipment, and net working capital) and intangible assets of a
continuing business. Alternatively, the business enterprise is equivalent to the invested capital of
the business, that is, the combination of the value of the shareholders’ equity and total debts.

Our investigation included discussions with the management of NWS in relation to the
history, operations and prospects of the business and a review of the financial projections (the
“Financial Projections”) and business plan (the “B-plan”) provided to us by the management of
NWS, as well as a review of other relevant documents. We have assumed that the data we obtained
in the due course of this valuation as well as the information, opinions and representation provided
to us by NWS are true and accurate. Before arriving at our opinion of value, we have considered
the following principal factors:

. the financial condition of the Business Units;

. the historical operating results and book value of the Business Units;

. the economic outlook in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) in
general and the specific economic and competitive elements affecting the Business
Units’ operation, their industries and their markets;

. the industries of the Business Units in Hong Kong and the PRC in general;

. the stage of development of the Business Units;
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. the Financial Projections of the Business Units; and
. the business risks of the Business Units.

Due to the changing environment in which the Business Units are operating, a number of
assumptions have to be established in order to sufficiently support our concluded value of the
equity interest. The major assumptions adopted in this appraisal are:

. there will be no major changes in the existing political, legal and economic conditions
in Hong Kong and the PRC in which the Business Units will carry on their businesses;

. there will be no major changes in the current taxation law in Hong Kong and the PRC
in which the Business Units operate, that the rates of tax payable remain unchanged
and that all applicable laws and regulations will be complied with;

. exchange rates and interest rates will not differ materially from those presently
prevailing;

. the availability of finance will not be a constraint on the forecast growth of the
companies operation in accordance with the Financial Projections of the Business
Units;

. the Financial Projections of the Business Units have been prepared on a reasonable

basis, reflecting estimates which have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration by the management of the Business Units;

. the Financial Projections provided by the Business Units management will materialize;

. the Business Units will retain and have competent management, key personnel, and
technical staff to support their ongoing operation; and

. industry trends and market conditions for related industries will not deviate significantly
from economic forecasts.

VALUATION METHODOLOGY
Market Approach

One methodology employed in the Market Approach if the securities of the appraised company
are publicly traded is the Direct Market Capitalisation Method. This method is based on observation
of the market prices of the company’s outstanding securities as of the appraisal date. The fair
market value of the company is then arrived by summing up all these market values. In applying
this method, a judgment has to be made on whether the efficient market hypothesis, which states
that the market prices reflect all publicly available information regarding the value of securities,
holds. Another judgment has to be made on whether the market prices of the publicly traded
securities are supported by an adequate trading volume such that an indication of fair market
values could be arrived.
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Income Approach — Discounted Cash Flow Method

A discounted future returns method is normally used if the economic income from the
company’s future operations can be reasonably estimated and the company has a different short-
term growth rate when compared to its stabilized growth rate.

The fair market value of the equity interest in the Business Units has been developed
through the applications of the income approach known as the discounted cash flow method. In
this method, the value depends on the present worth of future economic benefits to be derived
from ownership of equity and debt. Thus, an indication of value is developed by discounting future
free cash flows available for distribution to shareholders and for servicing debts to their present
worth at market-derived rates of return appropriate for the risks and hazards of the companies. The
fair market value of the equity interest equals to the sum of the present value of future free cash
flows less total interest bearing debts.

A major requirement of the discounted cash flow approach is an earning forecast. The
financial projections for the companies have been established for use. The basis for the forecasts is
the ten-year projections, from July 2002 to June 2012, provided by the management of the
companies. The fair market value of the Business Units was then calculated by adding the present
values of the projected annual free cash flow (“FCF”) covering the period projected in the Financial
Projections and the terminal FCF value. The present values were derived by discounting the FCF
by a discount rate that was appropriate for the risk of investing in the business. The forecast and its
many associated assumptions largely rely upon our research findings and the representation of the
companies’ management.

The free cash flow in each of the projected years is derived by adjusting profit after taxation
to the same year’s non-cash expenses (including depreciation expenses and amortization expenses),
financial charges of total debt (if any), including increments in net working capital and capital
expenditures. The net present value of the future free cash flows is then discounted by a rate
appropriate for the risks of the investment.

A discount rate is the expected rate of return (or yield) that an investor would have to give
up by investing in the subject investment instead of in available alternative investments that are
comparable in terms of risk and other investment characteristics. When developing a discount rate
to apply to the companies from operation, the discount rate is the weighted average cost of capital
(WACC).

The costs of equity of the Business Units are developed using Capital Asset Pricing Model
(“CAPM”). CAPM states that an investor requires excess returns to compensate for any risk that is
correlated to the risk in the return from the stock market as a whole but requires no excess return
for other risks. Risks that are correlated with the return from the stock market are referred to as
systematic; other risks are referred to as non-systematic. Under CAPM, the appropriate rate of
return is the sum of the risk-free return and the equity risk premium required by investors to
compensate for the systematic risk assumed.
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We have also taken into consideration company’s specific risk and size in deriving the
discount rate. Our analysis concluded that discount rates of the respective Business Units are as
follows:

Business Units WACC
Contracting
ConSD 10%
E&MSD 10%

Property Management and Facility Management

PMSD 10%

FMSD 9%

SecSD 14%
TranDiv 9%
Others

EnvSD 9%

FMIDiv 15%

Consolidation adjustment 9.3%

CONCLUSION OF VALUE

Based upon the investigation and analysis outlined above and on the appraisal method
employed, it is our opinion that as of 30 June, 2002, the fair market value of the equity interest in
NWS is reasonably stated at the amount of HONG KONG DOLLAR ELEVEN BILLION AND
THREE MILLION (HK$11,003,000,000). The detailed breakdown of the value is as follows:

HK$(million)

ConSD and E&MSD 3,892
FMSD, PMSD and SecSD 3,656
TranDiv 3,980
Others 1,804
Less: Corporate Expenses (688)

12,644
Add: Excess Cash 1,051
Less: Debt (2,692)
100% Equity Interest 11,003

This conclusion of value was based on generally accepted valuation procedures and practices
that rely extensively on the use of numerous assumptions and the consideration of many uncertainties,
not all of which can be easily quantified or ascertained.

We have not investigated the title to or any liabilities against the property appraised.
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We hereby certify that we have neither present nor prospective interests in NWS or the
value reported.

Respectfully submitted,
For and on behalf of
AMERICAN APPRAISAL HONGKONG LIMITED
James Kwok
Vice President
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VALUATION OF PPC

The following is a text of a letter summarising the principal conclusions of a valuation of
PPC as at 30 June, 2002 prepared for the purposes of inclusion in this circular, received from

Chesterton Petty Limited, an independent professional valuer.

The Board of Directors

New World Development Company Limited

30/F, New World Tower 1
18 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

The Board of Directors

New World Services Limited
17/F, New World Tower 2

18 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

The Board of Directors

New World Infrastructure Limited
9/F, New World Tower 2

18 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

The Board of Directors

Pacific Ports Company Limited
21/F, New World Tower 2

18 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

Chesterton

PETTY

H{S

International Property Consultants

Chesterton Petty Ltd
16th Floor, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central

Hong Kong

Tel 28401177
Fax 2840 0600

18 November, 2002

In accordance with your instructions, we have undertaken a valuation on behalf of Pacific
Ports Company Limited (“PPC”) to determine the market value of PPC’s attributable equity interests,
as at 30 June, 2002, in a portfolio of port and port-related projects (the “Portfolio”) mainly
comprising the following companies and projects:

(I)  Xiamen Xinyuan Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Xinyuan”)

(2) Xiamen New World Xiangyu Warehouse & Processing Zone Limited (“WPZ”)
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(3) Xiamen New World Xiang Yu Container Terminals Co., Ltd. (“Xiangyu”)
(4)  Suzhou Huisu International Container Freight Wharfs Co., Ltd. (“Huisu”)
(5) CSX Orient (Tianjin) Container Terminals Co., Limited (“CSXOT”)

(6) N.S.A. (Tianjin) Int’l Cargo Distribution Co., Ltd. (“NSATL”)

(7)  United Asia Terminals (Yantian) Limited (“UATYL”)

(8) CSX World Terminals Hong Kong Limited (“CSXWT Hong Kong”)

(9)  ATL Logistics Centre Hong Kong Limited (“ATL”)

(10) Asia Container Terminals Limited (“ACT”)

The purpose of this valuation is to express an independent opinion of the market
value of PPC’s attributable equity interest in the Portfolio as at 30 June, 2002.

Market value is defined as “the estimated amount for which an asset should exchange
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion”.

The Portfolio assets mainly comprise the aforesaid ten individual projects in China
and Hong Kong. These projects include container terminals, container freight stations and
cargo warehousing facilities. Brief descriptions of the Portfolio assets are as follows:

Xiamen New World Xiangyu Warehouse & Processing Zone Limited (“WPZ”)

WPZ is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPC incorporated in the PRC. WPZ operates as
a logistics and distribution centre providing facilities for auxiliary services such as container
depot, warehousing, maintenance workshop and logistics facilities. The management is
currently planning to develop WPZ into an advanced warehousing and logistics facility.

WPZ currently holds an interest in land, which comprises two parcels of land with a
total site area of approximately 89,448 square meters. The land use rights in respect of such
land were granted to WPZ and the land use term commences from 3 July, 1994 and is for a
period of 70 years for residential use, 50 years for composite and warehousing use and 40
years for commercial use.

Xiamen Xinyuan Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Xinyuan”)
Xinyuan is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. Xinyuan leases
38,000 square metres of land from WPZ for the provision of cargo consolidation, container

storage, container repair and maintenance services. The project commenced operation in
1999.
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Pursuant to a sino-foreign equity joint venture contract dated 9 January, 1998 entered
into between Wisemec Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPC and Xiamen
COSCO International Container Freight Station and Transportation Co., Ltd., Xinyuan was
formed. In accordance with the above-mentioned contract, Xinyuan is 70% owned by PPC
and the joint venture period is for a term of 20 years commencing from the date of issue of
the business license.

Xiamen New World Xiang Yu Container Terminals Co., Ltd. (“Xiangyu”)

Xiangyu is a newly formed sino-foreign joint venture company incorporated in the
PRC. It operates berth Nos. 12 to 16 in Xiamen Port and provides container terminal
services that range from container handling to CFS operations, storage, warehousing, trucking
and other related services.

Pursuant to the merger agreement dated 28 June, 2002 entered into between Xiamen
Xiang Yu Quay Co., Ltd. (“CJV 17), Xiamen Xiangyu Free Trade Zone Huijian Quay Co.,
Ltd. (“CJV 27), and Xiamen Xiangyu Free Port Developing Co., Ltd. (“WSOLLC”), CJV 1
will merge with CJV 2 and WSOLLC by way of absorption whereby all assets and liabilities
of CJV 2 and WSOLLC will be absorbed by CJV1 and thereafter CJV 2 and WSOLLC will
cease to exist. In addition, CJV 1 will be converted from a cooperative joint venture into an
equity joint venture when the merger is completed in accordance with the above-mentioned
merger agreement, and a new joint venture company (“New JV”) will be formally established
as a result of such conversion.

The New JV will be owned as to 50% by Xiamen Xiangyu Group Corporation and
50% by New World (Xiamen) Port Investments Limited. The total investment and the
registered capital of the New JV will be RMB1,150,000,000 and RMB384,040,000,
respectively. The name of the New JV will be changed from Xiamen Xiang Yu Quay Co.,
Ltd. to Xiamen New World Xiang Yu Container Terminals Co., Ltd.

Suzhou Huisu International Container Freight Wharfs Co., Ltd. (“Huisu”)

Huisu is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. Its principal activity is
the provision of trucking services, which commenced operation in 1998. It is intended that
Huisu will expand into a multi-purpose facility handling containers and cargoes and provide
terminal operation services. The designed handling capacity of Huisu is 40,000 twenty-foot
equivalent units (“TEUs”) per annum and 600,000 tonnes per annum.

Pursuant to a sino-foreign equity joint venture contract dated 18 June, 1995, Huisu
was established by Suzhou Port and Commerce Company (now known as #f /N 48 i ¥ 11 47
FR /A 7)) and Fairyoung (Suzhou) Port Investments Limited (now known as New World
(Suzhou) Port Investments Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPC. The joint venture
period is for a term of 30 years commencing from the date of issue of the business licence.

After share transfer, Huisu is now 75% owned by PPC and 25% owned by Suzhou
Tonggang Ports Company Ltd.
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CSX Orient (Tianjin) Container Terminals Co., Limited (“CSXOT”)
(Formerly known as “Sea-Land Orient (Tianjin) Container Terminals Co., Limited”)

CSXOT is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. CSXOT currently
operates four container berths and one coal berth at Dongtuti in Tianjin Xingang, the PRC,
providing container stevedoring, storage, repairs and refrigerated container handling services.
CSXOT commenced operation in January 1999 and the designed handling capacity is
1,400,000 TEUs per annum.

Pursuant to a sino-foreign equity joint venture contract dated 31 January, 1997, CSXOT
was established by Tianjin Port Holdings Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Port of Tianjin
Authority) (“Party A”) and CSX World Terminals New World (Tianjin) Limited (“Party B”).
In accordance with the terms of contract, CSXOT is 49% owned by Party B, of which PPC
has a 50% interest. The joint venture period is for a term of 30 years commencing from the
date of issue of the business licence on 6 March, 1997.

Pursuant to a board resolution of CSXOT dated 17 December, 1998, the board of
directors of CSXOT approved the extension of the commencement date of CSXOT from
1997 to 1999 for a term of 30 years until 31 December, 2029.

N.S.A. (Tianjin) Int’l Cargo Distribution Co., Ltd. (“NSATL”)

NSATL is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The main businesses
of NSATL are intended to be the development and operation of a logistics, warehousing,
and distribution centre on Land Lot Nos. F-2 and F-3 of Tianjin Port Free Trade Zone.
Currently, the businesses of NSATL are not yet in operation. NSATL is a 100% owned
subsidiary of PPC.

A state-owned land use rights in respect of the land use rights of Land Lot Nos. F-2
and F-3 of Tianjin Port Free Trade Zone was granted to NSATL pursuant to a Novation
Agreement in December 1998. Total site area of these two land lots is approximately 134,650
square meters and the land use rights were granted to NSATL for a term of 50 years
commencing from 15 July, 1997.

The proposed development scheme includes the construction of a warehouse with a
gross floor area of approximately 20,000 square meters, and a stacking area of approximately
110,000 square meters. Upon completion, the whole project shall be developed as a logistics,
warehousing and distribution centre. The property is currently vacant.

United Asia Terminals (Yantian) Limited (“UATYL”)

UATYL is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. It is one of the
leading providers of container freight station (“CFS”), warehousing and distribution services
in southern China. UATYL intends to diversify its services into customized processing and
packaging in the future. UATYL started operations in February 1997 and achieved a CFS
handling turnover of 779,877 cubic metres in the first year. PPC has an attributable equity
interest of 40% in UATYL.
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CSX World Terminals Hong Kong Limited (“CSXWT Hong Kong”)
(Formerly known as “Sea-Land Orient Terminals Limited”)

CSXWT Hong Kong is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
company currently operates berth 3, Kwai Chung Container Terminals (“CT3”) in Kwai
Chung, Hong Kong.

CT3 comprises a single 305-metre berth with an associated container yard, which
occupies approximately 41 acres (approximately 16.7 hectares). Stacking capacity of container
yard is approximately 10,872 TEUs. The berth is presently operated by 4 shore cranes. The
air rights to part of the land have been leased to Asia Terminals Limited for the development
of a CFS facility. CSXWT Hong Kong retains the right to use the podium area of this
building for container storage purposes.

CT3 is the most efficient container terminal in Hong Kong in terms of throughput per
berth and average crane productivity. It also provides container terminal services including
loading and unloading containers between vessels and the terminal, cargo consolidation,
equipment repair and maintenance. In fiscal year 2001 of PPC, CSXWT Hong Kong achieved
throughput of 1,740,000 TEUs per annum, representing an increase of 5% over that of the
last corresponding period.

Other than CT3 operation, CSXWT Hong Kong directly owns a 50% equity interest
in ATL Logistics Centre Hong Kong Limited. At present, PPC holds an attributable interest
of approximately 33.34% in CSXWT Hong Kong.

ATL Logistics Centre Hong Kong Limited (“ATL”)
(Formerly known as “Asia Terminals Limited”)

Asia Terminals Ltd was renamed ATL Logistics Centre Hong Kong Limited in
December 2000. ATL is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong engaging in
development, construction and operation of ATL Logistics Centre, a container freight station
and cargo distribution centre at berth 3, Kwai Chung Container Terminals, Hong Kong.

Currently CSXWT Hong Kong holds a 50% direct equity interest in ATL and another
39% indirect equity interest in ATL is held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPC.
Including an approximately 16.67% attributable interest held through CSXWT, PPC owns a
total of approximately 55.67% attributable interest in ATL.

ATL comprises a container freight station and cargo distribution centre occupying
two blocks of 7 and 13 storeys, completed in 1988 and 1994 respectively. The two blocks
together provide a total gross floor area of over 9 million square feet, giving some 5.9
million square feet of usable office, warehousing and loading/unloading space. It is one of
the world’s largest multi-storey drive-in container freight storage buildings. The terminal is
constructed upon a portion of the land occupied by CT3.

Pursuant to two lease agreements dated 30 January, 1985 and 19 September, 1989,

ATL holds the airspace above the designated land from CSXWT Hong Kong and received
the right to construct the terminal complex on it.
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Asia Container Terminals Limited (“ACT”)

ACT is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong, which has the joint
right with Hongkong International Terminals Limited (“HIT”) and Modern Terminals Limited
(“MTL”) to construct, develop, and operate Container Terminal No. 9 (“CT9”) in Tsing Yi,
Hong Kong granted by Hong Kong Government on 7 December, 1998.

In accordance with the swap agreement dated 7 December, 1998 with MTL, ACT will
swap its interest in two berths of CT9 upon its completion in late 2004 for the right to own
and operate the two existing berths at Container Terminal No. 8§ West (“CT8W”) currently
operated by MTL. In December 1998, an agreement was reached among the consortium
members in ACT in principle on the major commercial issues.

CT9 will have a total of six berths with an estimated berth length of 1,940 metres.
ACT has the interest of 2 berths in CT9. The construction has been commenced in early
2000 and the estimated completion date for ACT’s two berths at CT9 is scheduled in late
2003.

Methodology

In the course of the valuation, we have adopted an income approach methodology
known as the price/earnings multiple method to derive the market value of the Portfolio.
Pursuant to this methodology, a required rate of return of PPC is derived according to the
market information including the risk free rate of return in the market and the expected
market return. The required rate of return derived under the said methodology is approximately
10% and a multiplier named as “price/earnings multiple” is then arrived at by inversing the
required rate of return after taking into account the expected growth of PPC. The market
value of the Portfolio is derived by applying the price/earnings multiple to the profit
attributable to shareholders of PPC excluding all non-operating and non-recurring items for
the period from 1 July, 2001 to 30 June, 2002.

Apart from adopting the price/earnings multiple method, we have also reviewed the
market value of each individual company to justify the valuation by reference to the discounted
cash flow approach. However, the price/earnings multiple method is being adopted since the
methodology is a widely accepted market approach in the industry to value portfolio
investment. Also, bearing in mind of the fact that PPC operates and owns a number of
infrastructure projects, we are of the opinion that the price/earnings multiple method can
arrive at a more equitable result for each individual project to reflect the market value of
PPC.

Based on the financial results of PPC for the year ended 30 June, 2002, the profit
attributable to shareholders excluding non-operating and non-recurring items is approximately
HK$353 million. Within the Portfolio, we understand that several companies are not yet in
operation or their earnings have not been taken into account in the current year. NSATL and
ACT are both not yet in operation and thus the earnings of these companies have not been
reflected in the aforesaid profit. Also, some of the companies have just commenced their
operation in recent years, including Xinyuan, WPZ, Huisu and CSXOT and their earnings
are expected to increase in the forthcoming years. Also, in deriving the price/earnings
multiple, we have made reference to various publicly listed companies of similar business
nature (port or port-related) in the Asia Pacific region. We have further considered the
current portfolio of assets, the capital structure, the liquidity of the interests in the Portfolio
and other relevant factors. Bearing in mind of the above, a price earnings multiple of 13.9 is
considered reasonable to be adopted.
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In the course of the valuation of the Portfolio, We have taken into consideration all
pertinent factors affecting PPC’s ability to generate future cash flow. These factors include
the following:

. the general economic outlook as well as specific investment environment for
the Portfolio;

. the nature and current financial status of each company in the Portfolio;

. past and projected performance of each company in the Portfolio;

. the market rate of return for similar businesses; and

. the financial and business risks with regard to the nature of the business and

the general economic environment.

Based on the above, we are of the opinion that the market value of the Portfolio as at
30 June, 2002 is in the order of HK$4,900 million (HONG KONG DOLLARS FOUR
THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED MILLION).

While we have exercised our professional knowledge and cautions in adopting
assumptions and other relevant key factors in our valuation, those factors and assumptions
are still vulnerable to the change of the business, economic environment, competitive
uncertainties or any other abrupt alterations of external factors.

We have reviewed financial information, project documents and other pertinent data
relating to the Portfolio provided by PPC. We have no reason to doubt the truth and accuracy
of the information provided by PPC. We have also made relevant inquiries and obtained
further information as necessary for the purposes of this valuation.

We have not carried out any on-site measurements or structural survey. We are not
able to report that the relevant properties of the Portfolio are free from rot, infestation or
any other structural defect.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
Chesterton Petty Ltd.

Charles C K Chan
MSc FRICS FHKIS MCIArb RPS (GP)
Executive Director

Note: Charles C K Chan, Chartered Estate Surveyor, MSc, FRICS, FHKIS, MCIArb, RPS (GP) has
been a qualified valuer with Chesterton Petty Limited since June 1987 and has about 17 years’
experience in valuation of properties in Hong Kong and has extensive experience in valuation of
properties in the PRC.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose
of giving information with regard to NWI. The NWI Directors collectively and individually accept
full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this circular and confirm,
having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no
other facts the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS BY THE NWI DIRECTORS

(a) As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests of the NWI Directors and their associates
in any equity or debt securities of NWI or any of its associated corporations as
defined in the SDI Ordinance which require notification pursuant to Section 28 of the
SDI Ordinance (including interests which any such director is deemed or taken to
have under Section 31 of, or Part I of the Schedule to, the SDI Ordinance), or which
are required to be entered into the register maintained by NWI under Section 29 of
the SDI Ordinance or which require notification pur